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Chairman’s Statement

TRBE

In 2018, the media industry continued its transformation
and consolidation. The market conditions for the Group’s
traditional print media business continued to be challenging,
with local economic growth slowed by external uncertainties
and advertising demand turned hesitant. The high newsprint
prices during the year also put pressure on the Group’s
financial results, especially in the first half of 2018. However,
the Group’s profit performance improved in the second half
as a result of a range of measures implemented to mitigate
the negative impact. In addition, the Group maintained
its unequivocal lead in the print media market, including
Chinese and English newspapers, magazines and recruitment
publications. In each of these media segments, the Group has
been winning market share among advertisers and readers.

The shift in advertising spending from offline to online has
been a key topic in the media industry’s transformation. The
recently published Advertising Spending Projections 2019
conducted by Nielsen and Hong Kong Advertisers Association
shows that 2018’s advertising expenditure on offline media
was considerably higher than forecast, indicating that the
advertising budget shift from offline to online was in fact
slower than thought. Moreover, the forecast shift in 2019 is
at a lower rate than the previous year. The survey suggests
that traditional media is making a comeback, with advertisers
going for a balanced approach between offline and online
media platforms. The uncertain economic climate in effect
causes advertisers to be cautious and choose to utilise media
channels that are more familiar and proven. Therefore, high-
quality print media platforms such as those owned by the
Group will continue to be in demand. And we shall remain
committed to provide excellent content and high added-value
services to our readers and advertisers, to continue to be their
media of choice.

Headline Daily is the number 1 newspaper in Hong Kong
with the highest circulation, readership and advertising
revenue. Its readership exceeded that of the next newspaper
by over 50%, and almost doubled that of the next free
newspaper. Targeting middle-class readers, Sing Tao Daily
has been successful in maintaining stability in readership and
advertising revenue, and its high-quality content in Political
News, Property, Education and Features are well-recognised
in the market. The Standard is the only widely-circulated
print English newspaper in Hong Kong and its share of the
English newspaper advertising market has been on an uptrend.
East Week has endured the severe changes in the magazine
market and become the leading infotainment weekly, proving
the viability of its business model.
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Chairman’s Statement

While strengthening its market position in print media, the
Group adopts an “offline to online” strategy in developing its
digital media business. By combining print with online and
mobile advertising channels to provide a one-stop service for
advertisers, the Group’s traditional and new media businesses
complement each other to expand their market presence and
revenue potential. The Group’s investments in new media
businesses, focusing on vertical sectors to utilise existing
strengths and take advantage of synergies with existing
businesses, have started to generate positive returns.

Given the media industry’s ongoing transformation, the Group
is constantly striving for optimal efficiency by maintaining
stringent cost control, improving operational processes as well
as reorganising our staffing. We believe that by maintaining
our competitiveness and financial sustainability, we shall be
able to overcome the challenges and be a lasting winner in
the market.

I take this opportunity to thank our directors, management

and staff for their contribution and hard work, and our
advertisers, readers and shareholders for their support.

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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2018 marked the 80"
anniversary of Sing Tao
Daily, which has developed
alongside Hong Kong over
the years, steadfastly serving
its readers and advertisers.
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The Group's Leader of the Year Awards
has reached its 25" year in 2018,
which also celebrated Sing Tao Daily's
80" anniversary. Leader of the Year
2018 recognised outstanding leaders
in five categories, namely, Commerce
& Industry /Finance, Community /
Public Affairs / Environment &
Conservation, Education / Professions /
Technology & Innovation, Sports /
Culture / Performing Arts and Young
Entrepreneur.
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Major Events of theYear
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During the year, Sing Tao Daily launched a number of vertical
digital platforms, including "Sing Tao Motor" which provides
car enthusiasts with local and international motor news and
reports, as well as "ArtCan" which offers art information online.
The former organised "The Rolling Wheels Awards 2018" in
conjunction with Shimba Digital, the Group's digital marketing
company.

Sing Tao Daily and The Standard co-hosted the "33 Sing Tao Inter-School
Debating Competition"; in addition Sing Tao Daily partnered with Bastille
Post to organise the 2™ "Inter-School Chinese History Competition".

Sing Tao Daily joined hands with Modern Educational Research Society
to initiate SMILE ("Sing Tao Modern Information Learning E platform").
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Sing Tao Daily is well-recognised for its strength
in the property sector and revamped its "Sing
Tao Property" website to provide an enhanced
user experience. In addition, to meet the
market's demand, the Group's publications
organised "Overseas Property Expo 2018" by
Sing Tao Daily / Headline Daily and by The
Standard jointly with Sing Tao The Standard
Overseas Property Online.
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" Major Events of the Year
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Headline Daily's 13" anniversary was celebrated with special
promotions and gifts worth over HK$7 million offered to readers.
Limited edition souvenirs were also made available.

According to the Digital News Report 2018 by The University of
Oxford's Reuters Institute, Headline Daily was again ranked the
top brand newspaper in Hong Kong.
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In April, Headline Daily "Jetso" app was enhanced to
offer a new user interface and innovative features, and
subsequently won "The Spark Awards 2018" bronze prize
in "Best Retention Strategy" and "Best Use of Technology".
In October, it launched a self-service advertising platform,
Classified Jetso, to serve SMEs and online shops.
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Smart Parents was voted as Magazine of the Year (Local
Parenting Magazine) by Marketing Magazine in 2018,
for the 6™ consecutive year. In April, Smart Parents and
"Headline POPNews" jointly launched Hong Kong's first
parenting video channel.
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Major Events of the'Year ™
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Ohpama.com has demonstrated its media excellence in "The Spark
Awards 2018" by winning five awards, namely "Fast Growth Award",
"Best Media Campaign—-Experiential’, "Best Acquisition Strategy", "Best
Outdoor Innovation" and "Best Social Media Event". It was also the "No.1
Parenting Digital Media of the Year" selected by Marketing Magazine's
Media Report 2018.
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East Week commemorated its 15 anniversary
in 2018, hosting a celebration luncheon
together with "The Hong Kong Classic Brands
2018" awards presentation. During the year,
the Magazine unit organised East Week's "Hong
Kong Service Awards 2018" and "Greater China
Super Brands Awards 2018", and Caz Buyer's
"The Best of Cars 2018"
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JobMarket hosted a range of
events including "The Employer of
Choice Award 2018", "Best Graduate
Employers 2018", "The 2018 JobMarket
Volunteer Awards", "The Higher Education
and Youth Career Expo 2018" as well as education
fairs and seminars.
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Hong Kong News Awards 2018
2018 FEHRREMELR

Best News Reporting
RENERE
=Winner : Sing Tao Daily

BE (ESH®|)

TR AV BRI THIFRS

Best Young Reporter
REHA
=Winner : Sing Tao Daily
BE : (EBB®H)
TR 1. AIRAT RS

2. B S SEE KR EEASIEER
A

3EREEBENE 14 E ZHEARLZEK
FFEHE

= 2™ Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
FE (EBHE®)
TR BEEAARR ReEER[EEE]
2. R BT RS
I BERFEIENTR  HFIABCT R
Best Arts and Culture News Reporting
BETEHHMEE
= Winner : Sing Tao Daily
BE (EEBH)
T REZEBERT

=Merit : Sing Tao Daily
BE:(EBBE®R)

TR RELPEAMTRTE 2T

FilREE LG
B Lt

S

VIgjorAwards of The Year

Best News Writing (Chinese)
REHMBBE (P3HE)
=Winner : Sing Tao Daily

BE : (2BEM)

TR [ZABgIBRRE RICRERREHEE

=Merit : Sing Tao Daily
BE (EBR®)
FRE  EERER AR
BOABEARBREAL

Best Photograph (Sports)
REER (BEHE)
= Winner : Sing Tao Daily

BE (ESB®)

FRE R T

= 2" Runner-up : Headline Daily
FE : (EEAHR)
FRE REMAE

=Merit : Sing Tao Daily
BE (EBR®)
8 BHEKE

= Merit :
BR:

T

Sing Tao Daily
(ESH®)
BaBisrk

End of the road .
fﬂr § : i s

Best Headline (English)
EERE (FEXH)
=Winner : The Standard

TE  (EXER)

I : SHORTEST... speech opens LONGEST
... bridge

=1 Runner-up : The Standard
TE : (EXRR)

¥/ : Going, Going, Gone ... End of the road
for Gobee.bike
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Best Photograph (News)
mEEE R (FEE)

=1 Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
(EEAR)

 BHEKE

=Merit : Sing Tao Daily
(EBAH)
LB BE

Best Headline (Chinese)
RERE (fxxd)
=Merit  Sing Tao Daily
BE (EBR®)
T FIRERRER ERBTH

=Merit © Sing Tao Daily
BE  (EBR®R)
TR [~ R IERE

Best Science News Reporting
REHPHEEE
=Merit © Sing Tao Daily

BE (EBR®R)

TR I TR R

AT SR EE

Best Business News Writing (Chinese)
REREVHMBE (h3z)
= Merit © Sing Tao Daily

BE  (EBR®R)

T HENMRER F-HZE

Consumer Rights
Reporting Awards 2018
FrN\EHEERHERER

Category : Sustainable Consumption
Awards (Text)
HR) - WS EMEE (FEE)
= Winner : Headline Daily
SRR - (FRIGE®)
ES =N VErN SEY T

Category : Text (News / Features /
Commentaries)
B - XF (%R 58/ FR)
= Gold Award : Headline Daily
&2 GRIEA®)

TR SARIBERT

= Certificates of Merit : East Week
BEE : (RETD
T REEFERRSEIEAE ITRERRDE



The Society for News Design
39" Best of News Design
Creative Competition

EIPR R R E
FETNEHRRERE

et RlEXE

Category : Breaking News Topics
B - REWMME

= Award of Excellence : Sing Tao Daily

BEE : (EBRH)

*& : As Carrie Lam Becomes the Next CE

17" Asian Media Awards
B+-tiEmmREXRE
Best in Newspaper Front Page Design

REREWE A

= Bronze Award : Sing Tao Daily
iwEg : (2R B®M)
B AERR=4

741 .'}.'-‘.-'_I. Press Awards
h‘ _;E.'gfic_ o
8 :

2018 State Street Institutional
Press Awards, Asia Pacific
FtERESREEXE
SRMEHER

Journalist of the Year - Regulation
(Chinese Category)
FEFEIEE —EHRAR (h3iRE)
= Highly Commended : East Week

BREZ: CGRETD

TR RS R ERTRE
BTz BN R AR

Journalist of the Year - FinTech
(Chinese Category)
FEFEIGE —SREEAR (R3XHEa)
= Highly Commended : East Week

BEE : CGRETD

IR Airbnb ABERE BRBEWEERS

y Major Awards of the Year

Reader's Digest Hong Kong
Trusted Brand 2018
(BEXH) EEEERE 2018
Finance & Media - Free Newspaper

SMIMERE — S2EH
= Gold : Headline Daily

£ CAFR®R)

The Spark Awards 2018

Fast Growth Award
= Gold : Ohpama.com
©8% : [On! &15]

T [Onl &5 wAEMT A

Best Media Campaign - Experiential
= Bronze : Ohpama.com
R : [On! &45]
R : [Oh! &4F] x Sony Action Cam T HkEX

Best Acquisition Strategy
= Bronze : Ohpama.com

§#5 - [Oh! 15

I BEeY
Best Outdoor Innovation
= Bronze : Ohpama.com

fmEE : TOn! &45]

F%& : [Onh! 45 x Sony Action Cam

Best Social Media Event
= Bronze : Ohpama.com

5 : [Oh! ”ﬁj
T : Ohl BISHE MR A

Grest X X GohS ALE

v N @yL

Best Retention Strategy
= Bronze : Headline Daily "Jetso" App  +

#fHE : [SEfK Jetso]) FEFFRRZ
TR [BBIE Jetso) App FH4hR _
}R.‘ a0

Best Use of Technology
= Bronze : Headline Daily "Jetso" App "

CESETNE e
8 : [5R( Jetso] App FHRIR | 55 =

O B H| OB

HKAIM Media Convergence
Awards 2017
2017 FEEFEBEDKE

Monthly Magazine Category (Website)

BT%ER (#u8)
= Bronze Award : JET

8R3E - CUET)
A

2017 HSUHK Business
Journalism Awards

2017 EX B EMEE

Best Property Market News
Reporting (Text)
REFMENME (SFH)
= Silver Award : Sing Tao Daily
R (ZBE®R)
THREREAAE ERIEEER

5 £ 5 3t 2 i R 22

2018 Ippies Awards
55175 J& 3L bl B ) 28

Best Investigative /
In-dept Story
RIEFAERRERE
=Winner : Sing Tao Daily
(New York Edition)
BE : (EBB®M) AR
T ROTEREARE?
TreEHEEREE

| Best Story about a Community

RERESRE
= Third Place : Sing Tao Daily (New York Edition)
FE  (EBB®W) AR
B BmER FEERERMR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB Mo

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue of Sing Tao News Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2018 (the
“Year”) amounted to approximately HK$1,432 million as
compared with approximately HK$1,512 million last year.
Profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$24 million as compared with approximately
HK$41 million last year.

Given the continued volatility and the unclear trend during
the Year, the Group’s treasury investment has been conducted
cautiously.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) proposed
a final dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary share and a special
dividend of HK10 cents per ordinary share. Together with
the interim dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary share paid
to shareholders on 21 September 2018, the dividends for the
Year shall be HK14 cents per ordinary share in total.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources, Gearing Ratio and
Charges on Group’s Assets

The Group maintained a strong financial position with a cash
position throughout the Year. During the Year, the Group paid
approximately HK$36 million for deposits and purchases of
items of property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had a cash balance of approximately HK$528
million (31 December 2017: approximately HK$517 million).

The gearing ratio, defined as long-term borrowings to equity,
was zero as at 31 December 2018 (31 December 2017: zero).
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not pledge
any asset.

Capital Structure, Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange
Rates

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its
treasury function and uses different hedging methods to
minimise the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on its
financial performance.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any

contingent liability or claim which the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) considered to be material.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Hong Kong’s economic growth slowed in 2018, decelerating
in the third and fourth quarters. The continuing US-China
trade conflicts and US interest rate hikes have caused
business sentiment to be more cautious, while the local
stock and property markets underwent corrections and the
retail environment also softened. Growth in total advertising
spending in Hong Kong was 3% year-on-year in 2018, but
the print media market continued to experience a decline in
advertising revenue (according to admanGo). On top of this
industry trend, a shortage in the supply of newsprint has led
to an increase in average newsprint prices by 30% year-on-
year. As a result of the negative impact of these factors on the
Group’s Media operations, the Group reported a decrease in
consolidated revenue from approximately HK$1,511.9 million
in 2017 to approximately HK$1,431.7 million in 2018, and
a decrease in profit attributable to owners of the Company
from approximately HK$41.3 million in 2017 to approximately
HK$24.2 million in 2018.

Newspapers

Although the total newspaper advertising market dropped by
5% in 2018 versus 2017, the decline has slowed compared to
the previous two years (according to admanGo). The drop
in advertising revenue of both paid newspapers and free
newspapers in the market has appeared to stabilise.

Headline Daily remained as the distinct number 1 free
newspaper in Hong Kong. According to Hong Kong Audit
Bureau of Circulations 2018Q3 report, Headline Daily’s
average weekday circulation was 719,281 copies, the highest
amongst all newspapers in Hong Kong. Its average readership
of 1,102,000 was also the largest among all newspapers in
Hong Kong, almost doubling that of the next free newspaper
competitor and 19% more than the net total of the other three
Chinese free newspapers combined (according to Ipsos Media
Atlas 2018 report). As the only print media in Hong Kong
with daily readership of over one million, Headline Daily also
continued to command the largest share of total newspaper
advertising revenue in Hong Kong in 2018 (according to
admanGo). In terms of advertising volume, Headline Daily was
the market leader in major advertising categories including
Property, Travel and Banking, and also recorded growth in the
former two categories. Although overall advertising revenue
was adversely affected by the weak market conditions in
2018, Headline Daily further diversified its advertiser base and
continued to offer high value-added services to advertisers.
Its high-quality editorial content was also well-recognised
in the market. Headline Daily was ranked the top brand
newspaper in Hong Kong by The University of Oxford’s
Reuters Institute’s Digital News Report 2018, demonstrating
its popularity and standing in the eyes of readers. Headline
Finance paper continued to be Hong Kong’s most widely-read
finance newspaper, with its readership significantly ahead that
of paid finance newspapers in the market (according to Ipsos
Media Atlas 2018 report).
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In 2018, paid newspapers in Hong Kong continued to face a
challenging industry environment, including declines in terms
of readership and advertising revenue. Sing Tao Daily was able
to maintain relative stability in both readership and advertising
revenue, by remaining committed to producing a high-quality
newspaper for readers and advertisers. According to Ipsos
Media Atlas 2018 report (Q1-Q42018 vs. Q42017-Q32018), Sing
Tao Daily recorded a slight increase in readership. According
to admanGo, Sing Tao Daily continued to be the market leader
in Property and Retail advertisements in 2018. It also grew its
advertising revenue in other categories including Travel and
Pharmaceuticals. 2018 marked the 80™ anniversary of Sing Tao
Daily, which has developed alongside Hong Kong over the
years, steadfastly serving its readers and advertisers. In the
“Hong Kong News Awards 2018” organised by The Newspaper
Society of Hong Kong, Sing Tao Daily gathered a total of 16
prizes including five champions, the best achievement among
all newspapers. Despite a number of paid newspapers raising
their prices in 2019, Sing Tao Daily has maintained its cover
price at HK$8 while continuing to enhance its content, to
bring the best benefit to readers and thereby also maximise
value to advertisers. Smart Parents was again voted as the
number 1 parenting magazine in Hong Kong by Marketing
Magazine in 2018, and recorded a 2% growth in readership
(according to Ipsos Media Atlas 2018 report (Q1-Q42018 vs.
Q42017-Q32018)).

The Standard’s performance in 2018 was relatively stable.
In terms of advertising revenue, it managed to out-perform
not only its English newspaper competitor but also other
free newspapers (year-on-year percentage change, according
to admanGo). It recorded a significant increase in Overseas
Property which has become a major advertising category for
The Standard. According to Ipsos Media Atlas 2018 report
(Q1-Q42018 vs. Q42017-Q32018), The Standard recorded a
slight increase in readership in 2018. Thanks to effective
measures on cost saving and productivity gains, The Standard
achieved an improvement in profitability in 2018.

The overseas operations of Sing Tao Daily continued to
face a difficult industry environment in 2018 and as a
result the performance remained subdued. Restructuring of
the operations to increase efficiency and competitiveness
continued, and the synergies from a more integrated and
streamlined business operation, together with initiatives to
open up new revenue sources, have generated positive impact
to mitigate against the tough market conditions.
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Magazines

Hong Kong’s magazine market continued to experience a
drop in advertising revenue in 2018, but the rate of decrease
has eased compared with the previous two years (according
to admanGo). Given the consolidation in the market, the
Group’s flagship magazine East Week continued to enhance its
efforts to provide a high-quality infotainment magazine and
has strengthened its market position, having achieved a 9%
increase in readership in 2018, according to Ipsos Media Atlas
2018 report (Q1-Q42018 vs. Q42017-Q32018). At the same time,
it performed considerably better than the market’s average
in terms of advertising revenue (according to admanGo), and
achieved growth in categories such as Pharmaceuticals and
Entertainment. East Week recorded a mild increase in total
revenue in 2018 and, together with effective cost control and
restructuring measures, was able to record an improvement in
results. The Magazine unit’s other titles have also realigned
their business model and cost structure to remain competitive
and thereby improved their financial performance in 2018.

Recruitment Media

The Group continued to occupy the leading position in Hong
Kong’s recruitment print media market in 2018. JobMarket
increased its readership by 13% in 2018, according to Ipsos
Media Atlas 2018 report (Q1-Q42018 vs. Q42017-Q32018); its
readership of 356,000 also made it the weekly publication
with the largest readership in the market. According to
admanGo, JobMarket continued to be the recruitment
publication with the largest share of advertising spending in
2018, with “Headline Hot Jobs” closely following in the second
position. The latter saw a significant growth in revenue and
profit, and increased its contribution to the unit’s improved
results in 2018.

New Media Business Development

The Group’s new media business continued its development in
2018 and made progress in both revenue and profit generation.
Under an “offline to online” strategy combining the print
and digital platform of content and advertising, the Group’s
traditional and new media businesses complement each other
to expand their presence and revenue potential.
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In 2018, the Headline Daily “Jetso” app was revamped to
offer a new user interface and enhanced with added functions
such as a membership system for providing personalised
information to users, location-specific promotions, a classified
advertising section tailored for SMEs and online shops, and
online commerce. The app has won “The Spark Awards 2018”
bronze prize in “Best Retention Strategy” and “Best Use of
Technology”, with cumulative downloads of over 410,000 up
to the end of 2018, and over 4.4 million participations in over
160 campaigns organised for partnered merchants during the
year.

The video site “Headline POPNews” further enhanced its
content and launched Hong Kong’s first parenting video
channel in conjunction with Smart Parents. Sing Tao Daily’s
website std.stheadline.com introduced a number of vertical
digital platforms including “Sing Tao Motor” which provides
local and international motor news and “ArtCan” which offers
art information online, and revamped the “Sing Tao Property”
website, all of which generated a steady increase in browsers
and pageviews. The Group’s overseas property online platform
took advantage of the buoyant market and achieved growth
in traffic and revenue.

Ohpama.com, the one-stop education and parenting media
platform, recorded significant increase in both revenue and
profit in 2018. Daily unique browsers and daily pageviews
were on a steady uptrend. Its Facebook page likes also
increased by 29% in 2018, with fans of over 200,000. Together
with the Facebook page likes of 24parent.com (a section of
Ohpama.com), total fans were over 490,000. Recognised as the
number 1 digital parenting media in Hong Kong, Ohpama.com
has built a strong reputation among readers and advertisers
for its trustworthy content and interactive events on parenting,
education and study, as well as creative and relevant marketing
solutions for advertisers. In 2018, Ohpama.com won five
awards in “The Spark Awards 2018” and was also awarded
the “No.1 Parenting Digital Media of the Year” by Marketing
Magazine’s Media Report 2018.

The digital marketing company, Shimba Digital Limited,
achieved satisfactory growth in revenue during the vyear,
leveraging the digital network buy options that combine the
Group’s different advertising platforms to offer advertisers
tailored solutions across a spectrum of channels. Shimba
Digital Limited brought together the sales and marketing of
the Group’s diverse media platforms and facilitated the Group’s
new media business development.
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PROSPECTS

The Group considers the outlook for 2019 to be challenging.
Global economic growth is expected to decelerate amidst
various uncertainties. The trade tensions between the US and
China and the doubtful outcome of Brexit may continue to
cast a shadow over the economy, consumer sentiment and
advertising demand, which will have an adverse impact on
the Group’s performance. Competition will likely remain
intense in both the traditional and new media segments. On
the other hand, newsprint prices appear to have peaked and
their moderation will help to alleviate the pressure on the
Group’s results. At the same time, the Group will continue to
implement cost control and efficiency optimisation initiatives
across all operating units in order to maximise its profitability.

As a leader in the print media market, the Group will
maintain its focus on creating high-quality content and
providing high added-value advertising services to remain
competitive in its core media businesses. The Group will also
continue to improve its presence in the digital media domain
by redeploying resources and enhancing its capabilities
in generating new revenue models. We believe that our
balanced “offline to online” approach will allow the Group to
capture the best opportunities in the media industry’s digital
transformation.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 1,491
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees based on individual
and business performance. Competitive salaries and benefits
are paid to attract and retain quality staff. Other employee
benefits include medical insurance, discretionary bonus, share
options and provident fund schemes.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, GBM (69) has been the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company and
a director of various subsidiaries of the Company since
2000. Mr. Ho was awarded the “Grand Bauhinia Medal”
by The Government of the HKSAR in 2014. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Shun Tak Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Mr. Ho contributes much to public affairs. He is a member
of the Standing Committee of the National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. In
addition, Mr. Ho is an honorary general committee member
of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, an
economic consultant of Shandong Provincial Government of
the People’s Republic of China, an honorary trustee of Peking
University, and a trustee of University of International Business
and Economics in China. He is the father of Mr. Ho Kent
Ching Tak, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Siu Sai Wo (56) has been an Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company since 2013. Mr. Siu
has joined the Group for more than 18 years and was the
Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily
and Headline Daily prior to his appointment as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the Group as
the Executive Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily in 1999. Prior
to joining the Group, he held various senior positions at a
number of leading Chinese newspaper companies in Hong
Kong. He has worked in the print media industry over 30
years. Mr. Siu is the vice chairman of The Newspaper Society
of Hong Kong and the vice chairman of The Chinese Language
Press Institute. He is active in joining social services. He is
currently a member of the Steering Committee on Promotion
of Volunteer Service of the Social Welfare Department of
The Government of the HKSAR. He obtained a Bachelor of
Journalism and Communication degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1985.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak (38) has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2014. He is responsible for development
of digital media and related businesses for the Group. Mr. Ho
was a Non-Executive Director of the Company from 2010 to
2014; and worked for Sing Tao Newspaper in San Francisco.
He has years of experience in media business development,
technology investments and wealth management. Mr. Ho
is the Founder and Chief Executive Officer of s28 Capital,
a US$170 million technology venture capital fund based in
Silicon Valley. Previously, he worked for Goldman Sachs and
was the founding partner of Harbor Pacific Capital. Mr. Ho
serves on the Board of Directors of Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation (HKSTP), and the Innovation
and Technology Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council (HKTDC), and is also an honorary
trustee of Peking University. He has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Grace Wine Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, since June 2018. Mr. Ho has also been named a
2018 Young Global Leader by the World Economic Forum
(WEF). Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor of Science degree in
Economics from Duke University and a Master of Business
Administration degree from Stanford Graduate School of
Business. He is the son of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Jia Hongping (55) has been an Executive Director of
the Company since 2000. He is the Chief Representative of
the Beijing office of the Group and also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Jia brings with him a wealth
of experience in management, investment and government
relations to the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in various capacities in the government departments under
the China State Council. In 1998, Mr. Jia joined the Lear
Corporation China Limited as executive director and chief
representative of its Beijing office. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree from the Beijing Institute of Technology University.

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis (60) has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He is the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company and also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the finance and overall operations of the Group.
Mr. Lau is a Chartered Accountant and holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Commerce and Administration from Victoria
University of Wellington in New Zealand. He is a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand, a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has extensive
experience in corporate management, accounting and finance.
Mr. Lau was an independent non-executive director of
AviChina Industry & Technology Company Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, for the period
from August 2006 to June 2018.
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Mr. Lo Wing Hung (56) has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2002. From 2005 to 2013, Mr. Lo was
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the
Group as Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily in 1999. He was
the Chief Executive Officer of the newspaper group of the
Company prior to his appointment as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lo has extensive experience in
the media industry. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
a number of major newspaper and television companies in
Hong Kong. He is a spokesman of The Newspaper Society of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lo graduated from the School of Journalism
and Communication at The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and holds a Master’s degree in Government and Public
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Judy Chan (41) has been an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company since 2013. Ms. Chan is the
chairlady, chief executive officer and an executive director
of Grace Wine Holdings Limited (“GWH"), a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange since 27 June 2018.
She is also a director of Shanxi Grace Vineyard Company
Limited (“GV”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of GWH,
responsible for the business development and operations for
the winery and wine business. Under her leadership, GV is
considered as one of the best wine producers from China.
Ms. Chan is also a director of Origin Holdings (HK) Limited,
responsible for the management and financial operations of
its businesses of power generation, waste-water treatment
plant, property development and investments in Indonesia.
She was an independent and non-executive director and a
member of the remuneration committee of Memories Group
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on Singapore
Exchange Limited, for the period from December 2017 to
November 2018. Ms. Chan has extensive experience in
marketing, branding and trading in the Asia Pacific Region.
Prior to joining GV since 2002, she had worked in the human
resources department of Goldman Sachs in Hong Kong.
She currently serves as a member of the Shanxi Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from
The University of Michigan. She was awarded the Ernst &
Young — Emerging Entrepreneur of the Year in 2010 and
Entrepreneur of the Year 2010 for China Hong Kong/Macau
Region, and the Asian Wine Personality of the Year 2012 by
the drinks business and the Institute of Masters of Wine.
Ms. Chan was included in Fortune’s “Asia’s 25 hottest people
in business” rankings in 2012 and was ranked among the
50 most influential persons in the global wine industry by
Decanter Magazine in 2013. Ms. Chan was also honoured with
the “Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs Award 2017”7 from
Hong Kong Women Professionals & Entrepreneurs Association.
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Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, JP (56) has been
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since 2001. She runs key offices at various public listed and
private enterprises, including group executive chairman and
managing director of Shun Tak Holdings Limited, chairman,
chief executive officer and director of Shun Tak - China
Travel Shipping Investments Limited, director of Sociedade
de Turismo e Diversdes de Macau, S.A., chairman of Macau
Tower Convention & Entertainment Centre, executive director
of Air Macau Company Limited, vice-chairman of the board
of directors of Macau International Airport Co. Ltd. as well as
co-chairperson and executive director of MGM China Holdings
Limited. Besides gearing her efforts in business endeavors, Ms.
Ho actively serves on a host of economic, social and public
services. In mainland China, she is a standing committee
member of Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, a vice president of
the Chamber of Tourism and Women’s Chamber of Commerce
under All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce. In Hong
Kong, she is the chairperson of Hong Kong Federation of
Women, and is extensively involved in supporting educational
programs through her roles as founding honorary advisor and
a member of the board of directors of The University of Hong
Kong Foundation for Educational Development and Research,
court member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and City University of Hong Kong, and advisory committee
member on Hotel and Tourism Management at The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. Internationally, she is an executive
member of the World Travel and Tourism Council, and was
appointed as Tourism Ambassador of The World Tourism
Organisation (UNWTO) in 2018.

Ms. Ho holds a Bachelor’s degree in marketing and
international business management from the University of
Santa Clara in the United States. She was appointed Justice
of the Peace by The Government of the HKSAR in 2015.

Mr. King Richard Yun Zing (51) has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2004. He is
a Vice Chairman, Corporate Client Solutions — Asia at UBS
AG. He is principally responsible for providing corporate
finance services to clients in China and Hong Kong. He has
over 20 years of investment banking experience in advising
corporations, governments and entrepreneurs in financing
strategies. Previously, he was a senior member of JP Morgan’s
investment banking team in Asia, and was a member of the
board of directors of J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific)
Limited. Prior to joining JP Morgan, he held senior positions
at various renowned institutions including Credit Lyonnais
Securities Asia Limited and CITIC Pacific Limited, a Hong
Kong listed conglomerate. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Economics from Columbia University in New York.
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Directors and Senior Management

SEENEREEE

Mr. Lee Cho Jat, GBS, SBS (80) has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company since 2005. Mr.
Lee was awarded the “Silver Bauhinia Star” and the “Gold
Bauhinia Star” by The Government of the HKSAR in 1998
and 2013 respectively. He is currently director and founder
member of Hong Kong News-Expo Limited, president of The
Newspaper Society of Hong Kong, president of The Chinese
Language Press Institute, permanent honorary chairman of the
Hong Kong Publishing Federation and honorary chairman of
Sino United Publishing (Holdings) Limited, The Commercial
Press (H.K.) Ltd. and Hong Kong Commercial Newspapers
Co., Ltd. He is also the vice chairman of Board of Governors,
Chu Hai College. Mr. Lee started his career in newspaper
publishing industry after graduated from secondary school
in 1952 and has over 50 years of experience in the media
industry devoting to promote Chinese culture. Mr. Lee was
awarded Outstanding Achievement Award of Hong Kong
Print Awards in 1997. Mr. Lee successfully changed traditional
state-owned companies such as The Commercial Press (H.K.)
Ltd., Joint Publishing (Hong Kong) Company Limited, Chung
Hwa Book Co., (HK) Ltd. and C&C Joint Printing Co.,
(H.K) Ltd., into fast-developing modernised international
enterprises, which, under his leadership, become paragons
of the industry. Mr. Lee was appointed a committee member
of The Preliminary Working Committee for The Preparatory
Committee for the HKSAR of The Standing Committee of
The National People’s Congress in 1994 and was further
appointed as a member of The Preparatory Committee for
the HKSAR of The National People’s Congress, participated
in the preparation of the establishment of The Government
of the HKSAR. He was appointed as a member of the
Antiquities Advisory Board of the HKSAR in 1999. Mr. Lee was
appointed a member of 8th, 9th and 10th National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. In
2009, Mr. Lee has been elected the “Hundred of the Greats
of Publishing in the 60 years of New China” which is the
greatest honor in the publishing industry in China. Mr. Lee
was granted an Honorary Doctorate of Arts from Chu Hai
College in July 2011.
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Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kwong King Lim (63) is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group’s China operations (Publications), the Chief
Executive Officer of Sing Tao Daily overseas region, the
Editor-in-Chief of Sing Tao Daily overseas, and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kwong graduated
from the Department of Chinese Language and Literature of
Jinan University. He joined the Group in 2003. Prior to joining
the Group, he was the vice chairman of The Newspaper
Society of Hong Kong and held senior positions in various
media companies. He has extensive experience in editorial,
operations and administration.

Mr. Lai Ting Yiu (67) has been the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily and Headline Daily
since 2013, responsible for the operation and business of these
two newspapers, and is also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. From 2004 to 2013, Mr. Lai was an Executive
Director of the Company. Prior to his re-designation as the
Chief Executive Officer of Sing Tao Daily and Headline Daily,
he was the Chief Executive Officer of the magazine group,
responsible for overseeing the publication of magazines of the
Group. He joined the Group in 1999 as the Vice Editor-in-
Chief and afterwards, was promoted to the Executive Chief
Editor of Sing Tao Daily. Prior to joining the Group, he held
key positions in various renowned media companies.

Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey (52) is a director
(Printing Operations) of the Group and also a director
of various subsidiaries of the Company, responsible for
developing the Group’s printing operations and other
investments. From 2001 to 2013, Mr. Yang was an Executive
Director of the Company. He gained wealth of experience
in finance and investment arena, and had participated in
numerous corporate finance activities for several listed
companies in Hong Kong as well as worked at a leading
international bank. Prior to joining the Group, he held
senior positions in Leefung Asco Printers Holdings Limited,
responsible for the group’s financial affairs and business
development.
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERMSE

The Directors believe that good corporate governance
practices serve as an effective risk management for the
Company and hence, the shareholders of the Company will
benefit from the high standard of corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and complied with the CG
Code throughout the review period with deviations from
certain code provisions of the CG Code specified and
explained below.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for
dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors who
have confirmed that, during the Year, they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2018, the Board consists of 10 directors
including 6 executive directors (“EDs”) and 4 independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs”). Names and biographical
details of the Directors, which include relationship(s) between
the Directors, are set out under the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” on pages 18 to 23.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company. The Board reviews and approves the objectives,
strategies, direction and policies of the Group, the annual
budget and the management structure of the Company. The
Board also reviews the Group’s performance in light of the
Group’s objectives, business plans and budgets.

The Board has delegated the responsibility of the day-to-day
operations of the Group to the management of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
and the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”) of the Group
is Mr. Siu Sai Wo. The roles of the Chairman and the CEO
are separate. The Chairman is primarily responsible for the
management and effective performance of the Board. The
CEO is primarily responsible for the day-to-day management
of the business of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

All INEDs were appointed for a fixed term ending on
31 December 2020 with renewal option subject to retirement
and re-election by rotation under the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”).

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
(“CPD”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
The Company has adopted its own policy on Directors’ CPD.
During the Year, the Company encouraged all Directors to
attend or give speeches at training courses, seminars or
conferences which were relevant to their respective duties
and responsibilities at the Company’s expenses, and provided
relevant materials and updates for their viewing. According
to the records provided by the Directors, the Directors
participated in the following CPD programmes during the

TEERMS
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Year:
Type of CPD programmes
FEEXRREERE
Giving
Attending speeches Viewing
training at training online
courses, courses, video,
seminars or seminars or materials or
conferences conferences updates
RIBIRE - 85
HEZIRE - WHERNEH mERE-
Directors -} MAERER BREH MBARIEFESR
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (Chairman) (EEEAENEYY) v
Siu Sai Wo (CEO) R (77 B AR &) v
Ho Kent Ching Tak Al IEfE v
Jia Hongping B4 v
Lau Chung Man, Louis Bl{h X v
Lo Wing Hung R v
Independent Non-Executive Directors: HIIHRTESE -
Judy Chan bR o5 v 4
Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina ] 238 v
King Richard Yun Zing TR v v
Lee Cho Jat ZHE 4
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Corporate Governance Report

TEERMSE

The Board held 3 regular meetings instead of 4 as required by
the code provision A.1.1 for efficiency consideration during the
Year. The regular meetings were held to consider and approve,
among other things, the annual results, interim results and
annual budget of the Group.

According to the code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2, the
Chairman of the Board and all INEDs shall attend the annual
general meeting (the “"AGM”) of the Company. The Chairman
of the Board and all INEDs, except Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy
Catilina and Mr. King Richard Yun Zing, were unable to attend
the Company’s AGM held in 2018 due to prior or unexpected
business or overseas engagements.

Attendance record of Directors in 2018 is set out below:

AREmMZE  EFERAFERABITT=ZREH
GEMIETRERXALIFMR EHR - EFGETT
MEHERER L ERFERBIAREZZFE
BoTHERERFEES -

RIETANEXAGCTNEL2  EES X FENITABY
FRTEFALEARG ZRRBFRS ((REE
FRE) EESEFHFMBRABELZLIRE LKL
ENNMTERERTEETEARTIELERER
BETERT Z X TBIIN BB MARELFEARRNRZE
—NFROZBRBAFRE -

TE N\FREENHFELEET

Corporate
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Governance
Board Committee Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee AGM
bRER Y
Exe BNZEE ¥Mzse REZEE 88 BEXxg
Number of meetings ZE-NEETH
held in 2018 EETS 3 2 1 1 1 1
Directors Ex
Executive Directors: HITEE:
Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (Chairman) e E) 3/3 0/1
Siu Sai Wo (CEO) ExilGodie E9) 3/3 11 11 11
Ho Kent Ching Tak AR 2/3 1/1
Jia Hongping EaF 3/3 0/1
Lau Chung Man, Louis 2Ifhx 3/3 11 1/1
Lo Wing Hung % 3/3 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BV FERTEE :
Judy Chan R 2/3 0/1
Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina f ¥ 38 2/3 1/2 111 1/1 1/1
King Richard Yun Zing Epi 23 22 /1 1/1 1/1
Lee Cho Jat FHE 2/3 2/2 1/1 01
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee and
its terms of reference are available on both websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee comprised 3 members and a majority of the
members are INEDs. The Committee is chaired by Ms. Ho
Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, with Mr. King Richard Yun Zing
and Mr. Siu Sai Wo as members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

(1  to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s (if any) remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

(i)  to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives; and

(iiD) determine, with delegated responsibilities, the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. approved the discretionary bonus for the EDs and senior
management based on their performances; and

. reviewed the Group’s remuneration structure on the
employees in Hong Kong.

The remuneration of each of the Directors are set out in this
annual report on pages 160 to 161.
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TEERMSE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee and
its terms of reference (revised on 10 December 2018) are
available on both websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange. The Nomination Committee comprised 4 members
and a majority of the members are INEDs. The Committee is
chaired by Mr. Lee Cho Jat, with Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy
Catilina, Mr. King Richard Yun Zing and Mr. Siu Sai Wo as
members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

() to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service) of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board,

(iii)  to assess the independence of INEDs; and

(iv) to review the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy (the “BDP”) and make recommendations on
any proposed revisions to the Board, and monitor its
implementation so as to ensure its effectiveness.

The Board has adopted its own BDP. The BDP aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Selection of
candidates on the Board will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective selection criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity. The Committee will monitor the implementation
of the BDP and from time to time review it, as appropriate,
to ensure its effectiveness.
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Corporate Governance Report

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board, and the BDP;

assessed the independence of the INEDs; and

considered and approved the renewal of the terms of
appointment of the INEDs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Board has established a corporate governance committee

which comprises 2 members. The Committee is chaired by

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis, with the Company Secretary, Ms.

Ip Ka Yee as a member.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

@

€

(€55))

@iv)

W)

to develop, and monitor the

Company’s

review,
policies
governance and make recommendations to the Board so

implement
and practices on corporate
as to comply with the legal and regulatory requirements;
to review and monitor the training and CPD of
Directors;

to review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Company;

to develop, review, implement and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
Directors and employees; and

to review the Company’s annual Corporate Governance
Report.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

reviewed the annual Corporate Governance Report

contained in the Company’s 2017 annual report; and
prepared materials and updates relevant to the
Company’s business for Directors’ viewing in compliance

with the code provision A.6.5 on Directors’ CPD.
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TEERMSE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee and its terms
of reference are available on both websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee comprised 3
members and all of them are INEDs. The Committee is chaired
by Mr. King Richard Yun Zing, with Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy
Catilina and Mr. Lee Cho Jat as members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

(i  to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external
auditor and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor and assessing their
independence and performance;

(i) to review the Group’s financial information and
compliance; and

(iii) to review the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and their
effectiveness.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017,

. reviewed the interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2018; and

. reviewed the internal audit reports including the review

and evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration payable to the Group’s
external auditor, Messrs. Ernst & Young, is set out below:

TEERMS

B ET B &

WARERER - BT TS 2 SN BB 2k & 5T
AES RS B E T

Fee payable

Services rendered R ZR%E EAE R
HK$000

FET

Audit services EETIR 4,534
Non-audit services IEEFT RS 52
Total A& 4,586

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
in presenting balanced and clear interim and annual financial
statements, other financial statements and announcements of
inside information disclosures. The reporting responsibilities
of the external auditor are set out in this annual report on
pages 72 to 80.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated to management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. Our risk management approach
combines a top down strategic review with a complementary
bottom up operational process to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks.
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The Board through its Audit Committee oversees and reviews
regularly the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems, practices and compliance procedures.

The Internal Audit Department independently reviews
major operating, financial and compliance control and risk
management system of the Group on an on-going basis and
covered all major operations of the Group on a rotational
basis. The Internal Audit Department reports twice each
year to the Audit Committee and the Directors on significant
findings on risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, the Board has conducted an annual review
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and their effectiveness and considers the systems are
adequate and effective.

The Company has adopted its policy and procedures for
disclosure of inside information including but not limited to
restricting access to inside information to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis so as to ensure the
disclosure requirement of inside information in compliance
with the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ip Ka Yee has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since 2012. She is a full-time employee of the
Group, has day-to-day knowledge of the Company and has
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company sets out the shareholders’ rights on:

(@)

How shareholders can convene a special general
meeting (the “SGM”)

Pursuant to the bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws and section
74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended)
(the “Act”), shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company with voting right
can submit a written requisition to convene a SGM
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

The written requisition must:
(1  state the purposes of the SGM;

(i) be signed by the requisitionists (which may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists); and

(i) be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of the
Board or the Company Secretary.

Such SGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such SGM,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene a SGM.

TEERMS
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(b)  How to put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings

Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Act, shareholders
can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at a general meeting (the “GM”) if they:

(1  represent not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the GM; or

(i)  are not less than 100 shareholders.
The written requisition must:

(1)  state the resolution, accompanied by a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the GM;

(2 be signed by the requisitionists (which may
be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form);

(3) be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of the
Company Secretary not less than 6 weeks before
the GM in the case of a requisition requiring
notice of a resolution and not less than 1 week
before the GM in the case of any other requisition,
however, if after a copy of the requisition requiring
notice of a resolution has been deposited at the
registered office of the Company, a GM is called
for a date 6 weeks or less after the copy has been
deposited, the copy though not deposited within
the time required as referred to in the above shall
be deemed to have been properly deposited for
the purposes thereof; and

(4)  be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto.
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©

(@

How shareholders can propose a person for election as
a Director

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director
at a GM, please refer to the procedures available on
both websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

How enquiries be put forward to the Board

The Company has already adopted an effective and
efficient way of receiving enquiries from its shareholders
through the corporate e-mail as well as its principal
office in Hong Kong and therefore, will continue these
channels of communication.

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary (whose
contact details are set out below). The Company
Secretary will properly forward the enquiries to the
Board for appropriate action:

The Company Secretary

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited

Sing Tao News Corporation Building, 7 Chun Cheong Street
Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate, Tseung Kwan O
New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: investor@singtaonewscorp.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional

documents during the Year. The memorandum of association
and the Bye-laws of the Company are available on both
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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As a major media organisation in Hong Kong, the Group
attaches great importance to corporate social responsibility,
complies with relevant laws and regulations, and is committed
to ensuring that it conducts its business in a manner that takes
into account the impact on our people, the communities we
serve and the environment around us. Through implementing
practical policies and responsible business practices, we
establish ourselves as a responsible and reliable corporate
citizen for sustainable business growth and development while
safeguarding stakeholders’ interests and creating long-term
value for our shareholders.

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

This report focuses on the Group’s core activities in Hong
Kong, namely newspaper and magazine publishing and related
digital media operations (which represents the majority of
the Group’s revenue and cash flow) and covers information
on how we address the most significant environmental and
social impact arising from our business operations here.
The reporting framework adopted is in accordance with
the disclosure requirements set forth in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”)
contained in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The reporting period is from 1 January 2018 to 31 December
2018. In compliance with the ESG Guide, the Board has
overall responsibility for the Group’s Environmental, Social
and Governance strategy and reporting, including evaluating
and determining the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance-related risks and ensuring that appropriate
and effective Environmental, Social and Governance risk
management and internal control systems are in place.

ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

In preparing this report, we identify Environmental, Social and
Governance subject areas and aspects that are of particular
importance and relevance by engaging with stakeholders
who have an interest in or are affected by our operations.
We define our key stakeholders as our staff, customers,
suppliers, shareholders, investors, and business partners. Our
engagement activities include focus groups, questionnaires and
surveys conducted with employees, readers and suppliers, to
collect views from both internal and external stakeholders
so as to better understand their expectations and identify
opportunities and challenges in our operations. The results
of the stakeholder engagement are taken into consideration
when we assess and prioritise our issues. Anti-corruption,
health and safety, product responsibility and employment were
ranked as the more important aspects by our stakeholders,
while environment-related issues and community investment
were ranked as relatively less relevant to the Group’s business
operations.
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Al.

ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions

Consistent with our approach to long-term sustainable
business development, the Group takes active steps to
adopt good environmental practices and comply with
relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection. Our businesses continually seek ways
to improve energy efficiency, prevent pollution and
reduce, reuse and recycle wastes. It is the Group’s
policy to ensure that our business activities are carried
out in a manner that causes minimum adverse impact
on the environment, to strive to continually improve
our environmental performance and to enhance
environmental protection awareness among our staff

especially those involved in our printing processes.

The Group’s production operations do not result in
significant air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land or generation of hazardous and
The Group is committed to
reducing these emissions, discharges or waste insofar

non-hazardous waste.

as they exist. The Group’s operations,

its newspaper printing operations,

including
comply with all
applicable environmental and related legislations. The
Group outsources the printing of magazines to third-
party printers and has no data on emissions from such
activities. The Group is not aware of any confirmed
incidents in relation

non-compliance to emissions,

discharges into water and land or generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste in 2018 that had a

significant impact.

In April 2018, the Group completed the consolidation
of its printing operations which involved the relocation
of printing facilities in Yuen Long to the printing plant
in Tseung Kwan O. The relocation was undertaken to
improve production efficiencies which not only provided
cost savings to the Group but also had a positive impact
on environmental matters.
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KPI Al.1

The Group’s operations do not result in significant air
emissions. Emissions of nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulphur
oxides (SO,) and respiratory suspended particles (RSP,
also known as Particulate Matter (“PM”) from the use
of vehicles owned by the Group are not significant. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, the amount of NO,
emissions, SO, emissions and PM emissions generated
by the use of vehicles owned by the Group in Hong
Kong were 44,867g, 692g and 3,570g, respectively. The
decrease in emissions in 2018 was due to a reduction
in the number and usage of vehicles following the
relocation of the Group’s headquarters to the same site
as its printing factory in Tseung Kwan O as well as the
consolidation of the Group’s printing facilities under one

BEAENIEEZEALL

REBNEBEETSERREBERIEK -
HERAAEEmEEE@MmAERORE/1Y
(NOy * Wi &1 ¥ (SO0 & B 72 Fa KL (RSP 3K
HWAEBRNYEW) I TEE - HE2_FT—)\F
TZA=T—HBLEFE FREXEEEEB
FIEBEEMMEEANRELLY  BRELYR
TR BEIR 2 5 B B44,8675% © 6925 }.3,570
T ZE—\FHHERERYL  REHNEAEE
A BT BEREFEER—HI - I E
HERIBE A BREMBERFTAES
LURE, ©

roof.
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
NO, emissions (g) BEAMERE () 44,867 187,076
SO, emissions (g) matwiEnE(R) 692 888
PM emissions (g) BOFENERE(R) 3,570 13,041

Note: The emissions data above is calculated based on
the formulae and emission factors set out in “How
to prepare an ESG Report, Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” contained in
the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The data only includes the use of vehicles
owned by the Group.

KPI Al.2

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are primarily
“energy indirect” emissions resulting from the generation
of purchased electricity for consumption by the Group’s
printing plant and office (Scope 2), as reported on
below. Greenhouse gas emissions resulting from
combustion of fuels by vehicles owned by the Group
(Scope 1) are also reported on below. Other greenhouse
gas emissions such as from business air travel by
employees (Scope 3) are not material and therefore are
not reported on.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, greenhouse
gas emissions from the use of vehicles owned by the
Group in Hong Kong amounted to 127,164 kg of total
CO, equivalent emissions (including CO,, CH; and N,O).
Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from purchased
electricity in Hong Kong amounted to 6,612,509 kg of
total CO, equivalent emissions. The decrease in Scope
1 emissions in 2018 was due to the reduction in the
number and use of vehicles mentioned above, and the
decrease in Scope 2 emissions was due to a reduction
in electricity consumption.

BRI - wgMhERRE

HE-"Z-)\F+-A=+—HIEE " @&
BAEBEEREMEEEMMEAMNAER
BERzHE—_SttREE@RE-_atix R
R REALTER) BI271648 T - REEEAS
NEFEAMEEEZEREHER 28-Sk
BEAGGI2S509RT - —E—N\FHEERE
FR(EE)RL SR EMRAREEAE
EEMBELRERAERE  MEAERES
W(EBEZ) R ADBSHNE N ERETR -

2018 2017
CO, equivalent emissions —EtHmEEHER —E-N\HF —E—+F
Scope 1 (kg) #wE—(RT) 127,164 161,217
Scope 2 (kg) HE (R 6,612,509 9,876,563
Scope 3 (kg) #BE=(QT) N/A T iE N/A 3

Note: The emissions data above is calculated based on
the formulae and emission factors set out in “How
to prepare an ESG Report, Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” contained in
the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. For electricity purchased from The Hong
Kong Electric Company Limited, the emission factor
is based on the 2017 sustainability report of The
Hong Kong Electric Company Limited; and for
electricity purchased from CLP Power Hong Kong
Limited, the emission factor is based on the 2017
sustainability report of CLP Power Hong Kong
Limited.

KPI Al.3

The hazardous waste generated by the Group’s
newspaper printing operations in Hong Kong include
spent developer, spent ink and scrap zinc plates. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, a total amount of 100
tonnes of hazardous waste were generated, including
135 tonnes of spent developer, 4.4 tonnes of spent ink
and 82.1 tonnes of scrap zinc plates. The increase in
spent developer and spent ink was due to the above-
mentioned relocation of printing machines which
required additional testing.

Hrit: NELBIRBEERBEEABERZIME
BR 7 7] 48 uh P P 388 B R f] B BRI
HekERREIME —  REERE
WIS R IE I8 5 AR R RE BT
S - FRABEEEERERAFTN
BN HEREBLI2RELEEAR
RA—_FE—LFAKEERRE ME
AREETEENARARMNES - HiF
MERTD2RPEENARAA T —
TEAFBEERBRS -

HRANERALS

AEEREFEENBRENREFMELENES
BREYEBRERBNBZHE - BEHENER
BEHEIRIEER - BE T N\F+_A=+—
BIEFE FMEEEEEEY A HLI0AM
BREERBOBEZAIBSAN - BERE44R
MR Ko {5 PR B B EN R $% TR82.1 A MR o £ B EY
BB L EmREMEN AR EdRR
B BV R 3% it 9% 4B 75 22 R SR S ED R 44 =3 P A&
B o

2018 2017

—E-NE —E—+F

Spent developer (tonnes) FERBENRE 13.5 109
Spent ink (tonnes) B2 (AHE) 4.4 3.2
Scrap zinc plates (tonnes) 155 A9 48 B9 B Rl 3 A (2 WA ) 82.1 86.8
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KPI Al.4

The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group,
including domestic waste, office waste and renovation
waste, was not material in 2018.

KPI Al15

The Group adopts appropriate measures to mitigate
emissions. In particular, the Group’s printing plant
adopts appropriate environmentally-friendly measures
and assign appropriate responsible staff in charge of
reducing emissions. Electricity consumption at our
printing plant and office account for the majority of
indirect greenhouse gas emissions in our operations
and we have implemented initiatives to increase energy
efficiency so as to control or reduce emissions. These
include the use of LED spotlights and T5 fluorescent
tubes to replace traditional lamps at the production
premises, using timers and automatic shut-off for
outdoor lighting systems, and regular cleaning of the
air-conditioning units and chiller plants to maximise
their efficiency and reduce energy loss. More of the
Group’s general energy use efficiency initiatives are
described under KPI A2.3 below. In addition, the waste
paper, used printing plates and waste ink generated
by our printing operations are collected by reputable
recycling companies, as described in more detail under
KPI A1.6 below, to reduce emissions from these sources.

KPI A1.6

Chemical wastes including spent developer are
generated during the Group’s printing processes and
our printing plant is registered as a chemical waste
producer with the Environmental Protection Department.
Spent developer and other chemical wastes are collected
by licensed chemical waste collectors in compliance
with the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General)
Regulation (Cap. 354C of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Waste paper and used printing plates generated by our
printing operations are collected by a reputable recycling
company who specialises in waste management and
waste recycling. The recycling company, under an
annual contract with the Group, collects waste paper
from our printing plant for unloading to the allocated
depots. After sorting and packing, the baled waste
materials are shipped overseas or to mainland China
for further recycling. Similarly, used printing plates are
collected by the recycling company, sorted, packed,
and shipped to mainland China for further recycling. In
addition, waste ink is collected by the ink supplier for
resource recycling treatment.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

A2.

The Group engages environmental recyclers to handle
scrapped electronic parts, and used printer cartridges
are collected by suppliers for recycling. Waste paper
generated by our office operations and other recyclable
office materials are also collected for recycling.

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to use resources efficiently and
minimise waste generation in our operations. We strive
to strengthen our environmental protection efforts to
conserve resources and manage wastes when conducting
our business activities. In managing its use of resources,
it is the Group’s policy to:
exceed all

—  Meet or applicable environmental

standards;

—  Choose suppliers and sub-contractors that follow
appropriate environmentally-friendly practices;

— Promote environmental awareness among staff,
business partners and the public.

Paper and ink are the major raw materials used in
the printing of the Group’s publications. Caring for the
environment and optimising production cost are the two
main considerations in the selection and use of these
materials. Our aim is to use environmentally-friendly
products as much as possible, and at the same time

minimise consumption and wastage.

A2.
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In 2018, the Group used 42,090 tonnes of newsprint
for the production of its newspapers in Hong Kong,
and 4,640 tonnes of newsprint was collected for
recycling. Around 50% of the paper used by the Group
for printing newspapers in Hong Kong in 2018 was
recycled paper or contained recycled paper. The paper
used was supplied by reputable manufacturers in North
America, Europe and Asia, all of whom are members
of the Forest Stewardship Council and adhere strictly
to manufacturing processes that create minimal impact
on the environment. The Group used organic-based
printing ink for printing newspapers in Hong Kong.
This ink consists of a composite of resin and vegetable
oil that fulfils environmental conservation objectives.
All ink used was supplied by manufacturers in Korea
and Australia who comply with 1SO14000 and 14001
Environmental Management System Standards as well
as the ISO 9000 and 9001 Quality Management System
Standards.

RZZE—N\F  AEEREBDRIREFE
R AR K H42,0002 B8 - I UL 4,640 ME
MEREELWAR - AEBR_F—N\FH
REBHRIREOMLRE - 450%SBERLS
BEMAKD - FHEMERAFERITMEE
FiRf ofdtE BONE DN 2ERiE
FAYBHRMEREZEENETE  UWETHIR
BERERIFENRERR - N AEE
BREBORRENHR B HEAE o
EHEELREYBENERMAER  TEEER
REMBIZ - FTEFE ARAZAHAFTAIS014000
K 140013% 35 B 1R 88 RIZ L K 1SO9000 % 90018
EEHRBRZENER KRN ERFEME -

Newsprint used (tonnes)

B ¥R 4K OH 7 (R WE)
Newsprint collected for recycling (tonnes) H ¥R 4% [ 4z (2 ME)

2018 2017
—E-N\E e
42,090 50,104
4,640 5,182

KPI A2.1

Electricity used in the newspaper printing process at
its printing plant and in the office operations account
for the majority of the Group’s electricity consumption.
The Group purchases electricity from energy service
providers in Hong Kong including The Hong Kong
Electric Company Limited and CLP Power Hong Kong
Limited. The electricity consumption by the Group in
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
12,965,600 kWh. The decrease in electricity consumption
in 2018 was due to the use of more energy-saving
systems and devices at the Group’s headquarters in
Tseung Kwan O compared with the previously rented
premises.

REAEMNIEEZEA21

RNEEFEBENHEFEEDR B E R == LA
MM AZREEFANEN - REEAEBN
RERRSEEE (BESBEEERAE LT
EBENERRANEBAE HE-_ZT—N\F
T A=+ —HLFE FEBEFTBENE
SEFEAR 2 512,965,600 T EL B o A R AR
EMYE AEENRBERNANRFERE
LEERGREHE  KMAE-ZE—N\FH
BEHERE -

2018 2017
—E-NE —E—+F
Electricity consumption (kWh) BEhHEFEEE (TEE) 12,965,600 16,763,031
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KPI A2.2

The Group’s major water consumption is for its printing
operations and office operations. Water consumption
by the Group in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2018 was approximately 37,794 cubic
metres. The increase in water consumption in 2018 was
due to water usage by the new staff canteen at the
Group’s headquarters in Tseung Kwan O.

RIE - HERERARSE

FEENIEEA2.2

AEBTERKBERIEER B AEEEM
Aok - BE-_FE-N\F+-_A=1t—HLF
B AEBEEBTBENFKEERKZ7,794L T
Ke ZE-N\FHNRKEEBEMBRRELE
BN EREEMENETERAKE -

2018 2017

—E-N\FE e

Water consumption (cubic metres) FEKEE (S 37,794 34,586
KPI A2.3 BRENIEZEA23

As mentioned under KPI Al5, the Group adopts
appropriate environmentally-friendly measures
for energy use efficiency and assigns appropriate
responsible staff in charge of energy saving matters. In
general, the Group deploys energy-saving lightings, uses
natural sunlight as much as possible and urges staff
to switch off idle lightings, air-conditioning, computers
and other electrical equipment; in addition, staff are
encouraged to use recycled paper and to use telephone
or video conferencing to reduce local and overseas
travelling. Reminders and notices are regularly issued to
staff to remind them to use energy smartly as well as
to save water and to reduce sewage from the source.
With the Group’s new energy-efficient data centre in
Tseung Kwan O fully in operation, related electricity
consumption in 2018 was nearly 30% lower than the
previous year.

KPI A2.4

Water is not a significant element in the Group’s
business operations and generation of waste water is
minimal.

KPI A25

The packaging materials used by the Group for its
finished products are immaterial.

W0 A B AR IR IR AP - ZFE@??K’HX%@%?
MIRRRERBARREREASZE - A
EEETBEMEEE - AWML NEEF
FAERERRAR - BAIGEHAEA K - WHEE
THEEBAGCRASHEMARBAZE =57 F
B R HAb B F e84 ¢ o - BMMEBEIER
EARARENAEFEIREGH AR DR

KBIHINTE - RMEBABELRETRBAN IR
EEETEMAER  BORKRIERERE -
BEEASERN G ERAIANE RSB
2EBMA ZE-\ENHEEREEERESF
WA IT30% ©
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A3.

B1.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to environmental protection.
It is the Group’s policy to minimise the impact of
its business activities on the environment and natural
resources.

KPI A3.1

The Group’s new headquarters in Tseung Kwan O has
been in full operation since the end of 2017. The new
building has been designed and constructed taking into
account the impact on the environment and has included
a range of environmentally-friendly measures, from
the steel-based structure of the building, the exterior
to the
water-cooled VSD (variable speed drives) chillers and
in 2018 the
Group has also completed the merger of its two printing

concrete walls and low-emissive glass panels,
energy-efficient data centre. In addition,

plants into one. Some of the more obsolete printing
processes have been replaced and the more efficient
printing operations under one roof will generate savings
in the use of resources, thereby bringing a more positive
impact on the environment for the long term.

SOCIAL
Employment

It is the Group’s policy to recruit the best qualified
people and to maintain a pool of human resources
according to different businesses’ manpower
requirements and planning. It is also the Group’s policy
to transfer or promote well performing and capable
employees to fill vacancies so that employees are
provided with opportunities to widen their exposure

and further their career development within the Group.

The Group is dedicated to employment diversity and
anti-discrimination in the workplace, and adopts an
Equal Employment Opportunity policy. All applicants
for the Group’s positions have equal opportunities of
employment irrespective of their age, sex, marital status,
family status, disability, race, nationality or religion
(provided that these do not impede the abilities of the
prospective appointees to carry out normal job duties
or affect the health and safety of fellow employees). Job
applicants are treated fairly and equally. Employment
is offered only to the best qualified applicants with
reference to their merits and abilities to meet the
requirements of the jobs irrespective of whether they
are referrals or direct applicants.
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The Group’s Human Resources Department provides
recruitment advice and related services to all
departments and line managers are responsible for
ensuring that these policies are implemented in their
operations. The Human Resources Department is
consulted before any action is taken in relation to
any employee and confirmation of full time and part-
time employment is offered by the Human Resources
Department.

We offer remuneration packages to staff taking into
account their performance, contribution and the
level of responsibility/empowerment pertinent to the
specific jobs. Remuneration packages are reviewed
according to individual performance, business unit
performance as well as the Group’s overall business
performance. We attract, retain and motivate high-
performing employees with incentive payments, such
as allowances, performance driven commissions and
bonuses, discretionary year-end bonuses and share
option scheme. We offer a comprehensive range of
employee benefits to full-time staff including insurance
and medical coverage, maternity and paternity benefits,
long service recognition awards, etc.; and we provide
mandatory provident fund schemes for all staff including
part-time staff.

Staff employment policies are adopted with approval
by management and confirmed by the Group’s Legal
Department to ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations including the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Updates to the relevant laws and
regulations, policies and procedures are posted to staff
via memoranda or company intranet.

The collection, access, update, retention and/or transfer
of employees’ data for the process of employment
are conducted strictly in accordance with designated
procedures which are subject to regular reviews in
compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group’s Human Resources Department has
appropriate systems and processes in place to ensure
compliance with the above policies and with Hong Kong
statutory provisions. It gives appropriate advice to all
operating units in following the standard procedures and
practices. All employment letters, time-sheets, overtime

BRI - wgMhERRE
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MRAzRESREZENEERHN  2RFF
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eE -BMTRE2BEIEERBEIRM
wH M AEEREE -

ETRBEREKEEBHZERIARA X
HOEREPRERR - ARERETHEBER SRR
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forms, regular compensation, mandatory provident fund ETFEEZRTHER  UBRETEE
contributions, sick leave and injury compensation, and KB ©

arrangements regarding working hours and rest periods

are subject to annual audit and regular review to ensure

compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

KPI B1.1 BREAEMEEBLL
As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of —E-N\FF+ZA=+T—H xEEH
1,380 full-time employees including 1,044 in Hong Kong x Hﬁz EE1,380A  BHRBIEEHRE E\l,044/\
and 336 in the Group’s mainland China and overseas Ko A B K B AN HME B336A o
offices.
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —E—+F
Full-time employees in Hong Kong 2HEEEB) 1,044 1,142
Full-time employees in mainland China 28 E B (P B X EEFE N
and overseas 336 359
Total number of full-time employees BEBES 1,380 1,501
The table below shows a breakdown of the Group’s TREASEZFRANRMERE DOEE
employees in Hong Kong by age group and by gender: ==
Full time employees by age group: RERANEINEZBEE A
2018 2017
Age Group F#r 48 Bl —E-N\F —E—LF
29 or under 29BR AT 21.6% 22.4%
30-39 305% £395% 16.0% 16.6%
40-49 405% E495% 33.4% 36.8%
50 or above 507% 3 bA = 29.0% 24.2%

Full time employees by gender: RERNMIHERES AR

2018 2017
Gender % 5l —E-N\F —E—LtF
Male St 57.7% 58.1%
Female g 42.3% 41.9%
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B2.

KPI B1.2

The Group’s employee turnover rate in Hong Kong in

RIE - HERERARSE

BB MIEEBL.2
RZZE—NF AEENEEREERAL X

2018 was 25.6%. The table below shows the Group’s 725.6% c NRANEBIRFHR AR RMER S
employee turnover rate by age group and by gender: DHEE MK X
Employee turnover rate by age group: RERARNESHWEER AR

2018 2017
Age Group F i 4 5Bl —E2-N\F —E—tF
29 or under 29BR AT 66.4% 78.2%
30-39 305% E395% 31.1% 34.5%
40-49 4058 B495% 12.1% 8.4%
50 or above 507% 3k BA & 5.1% 5.9%
Employee turnover rate by gender: REANBSNEERRLE:

2018 2017
Gender % 5l —E-N\F —E—tF
Male Sk 15.0% 16.9%
Female pogid 40.0% 42.8%

Health and Safety

The Group takes measures to provide and maintain
a safe and healthy workplace for our employees
through establishing an Occupational Health and Safety
Management System. We pledge to follow and observe
the following principles in implementing the system:

— To recognise that safety and health at work is
an integral part of our business performance and
to endeavor to achieve a high level of safety
performance;

— To accept the responsibility of providing and
maintaining a safe workplace for our employees
and contractors/suppliers working within our
premises;

—  To comply with the occupational health and safety
regulations and relevant legal requirements where
appropriate;

B2. BRERZZ

AEBREBRELZEZLNEREERERE AR
Szt 1.111&@FWIT’E$&1R AR
HITZRABRBILERTHEA:

— RALZEMERIESRERRIRN
B —3o  WHHED SKFR B2
ZTERERKRR:

— AEEEREINEASEMBEERN
M5 TR R BB K it R iR AR+
— (A% 2 REBENTHESAH:

— BTBER2REFERABEMELRR
¥l
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— To define safety organisational structure and
responsibilities and provide adequate and
appropriate resources for developing and
implementing the system;

—  To provide appropriate training for our employees
in order to ensure the system 1is properly
implemented;

— To ensure our employees and contractors/suppliers
working within our premises implement the
system;

— To periodically review the system and its
performance and implement appropriate follow up
actions in order to achieve continual improvement.

KPI B2.1 and KPI B2.2

For the year ended 31 December 2018, there were a
total of 5 cases of work-related injuries representing an
average injury rate of 4.79 per 1,000 employees (defined
according to Occupational Safety and Health Branch,
Labour Department). There were a total of 323 days
lost due to work-related injuries. No work-related fatal
incidents occurred in 2018.

KPI B2.3

The Group complies with relevant laws and regulations
relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
For example, in compliance with the Fire Services
Ordinance (Cap. 95 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has installed
adequate fire sprinklers and extinguishers in our
workplaces and emergency exit floor plans are clearly
posted; all emergency exits are checked frequently to
ensure no obstacles and we hold fire evacuation drills
and safety talks at regular intervals. All workplaces are
also equipped with first aid boxes and the printing
plant is equipped with an AED (automated external
defibrillator). In compliance with the Factories and
Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Factories and Industrial
Undertakings (Safety Management) Regulation (Cap.
S9AF of the Laws of Hong Kong), we have set up a
Safety Management Committee and a Safety Management
System to monitor all safety issues in the workplace,
audited by a registered safety auditor annually. In
addition, we hold regular factory-related drills (e.g.
chemical spillage) at our printing plant.
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B4.

RIE - HERERARSE

Development and Training B3. R RIZFI
We encourage our staff members to improve their job BMEARBIENFINGE - TIEHKE
capabilities and career prospects by providing them Br - mBIIREEREREAKRRERO®
with opportunities for professional and personal growth g HBEIRAILEEIRBENS
and development, through various training programmes,
workshops and seminars.
An induction training is organised for new employees to BMAMEIRMHARIE  ZMAMTHAR
apprise them of the Group’s businesses and the industry SEEBRAETENMRR - JH: Hh - A ﬁ
in which we operate. In addition, on-the-job training EEBEEEERES)EHEBREI
is offered to employees, including management and ERARBERAMNBERTE - ZFHIS %
directors, for the purpose of refreshing and developing ERABTHBEEERER - @A E R (R
their knowledge and skills. These include training B2 5 51D ~ <7 an &% BA 16 B (B 78 % Bl 362
related to compliance with relevant laws and regulations B)REAMBEERERED o BAFIIE R H
such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the Trade TEZERREBEI - REEREMHEL
Descriptions Ordinance (Cap. 362 of the Laws of Hong THREBTENEFER  BMATAREES
Kong) as well as other advertising and media laws. MBLMBERBEFRBERRS WA
Work safety and anti-bribery training is also provided b B EHEERN BB LEERTMSHEE
on a regular basis. To ensure that our staff are kept B IR o
abreast of the developments in the media industry, we
also offer training on the latest editorial management
systems, office automation, online media technology as
well as digital sales and marketing, according to the
roles and responsibilities of the employees.
KPI B3.1 and KPI B3.2 BREAMEEB.IRBEEAMEEB3.2
For the year ended 31 December 2018, a total of 945 HE_Z-)\F+_A=+—HILFE #£F
employees attended training through both internal and 945 BB T HEAMRIMIIFIREHHER 2
external training course (representing 90.5% of full-time BB B 7990.5%) £ % #£36,610/N R g IF |
employees), with a total of 36,610 hours of training.
2018 2017
—E-)N\F —T—tF
Number of employees who attended ZIEINET A
training 945 997
Total hours of training 48 T 155 5 2K 36,610 31,141
Labour Standards B4. BT #B|

The Group adopts a “No Child Labour and No Forced

Labour” policy which:

—  Ensures that no person below the age of 15 is
employed in the workplace;

—  Prohibits the use of forced or compulsory labour;

AEERRN T ERBEIRTRESEIHEK:

— BEITEETARATHALIE:

—  BUREREAHED:

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018 m



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - g MhERRE

B5.

—  Ensures that no employee is made to work against
his/her will or to work as bonded/forced labour,
or subjected to corporal punishment or coercion
of any kind related to work;

—  Refrains from engaging with vendors and suppliers
who use child labour and forced labour in their
operations.

The Human Resources Department as well as
department heads will ensure implementation of this
policy, in compliance with Employment of Children
Regulations (Cap. 57B of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Employment of Young Persons (Industry) Regulations
(Cap. 57C of the Laws of Hong Kong), throughout the
process of recruitment and employment registration. Any
violation of related regulations and procedures will be
subject to warning, re-education or disciplinary action
and such other appropriate measures as the Group’s
management may decide to take.

KPI B4.1 and KPI B4.2

The Group has taken necessary measures to prevent
child labour and such measures are communicated
regularly to all departments and suppliers. The Human
Resources Department maintains appropriate procedures
to verify the date of birth of new joiners. Work time
sheets with details on job nature are required and kept
to ensure that young persons (as defined under the
Employment Ordinance) do not engage in night shifts
or hazardous jobs, and to ensure that minimum wages
are adhered to. Limits for working hours and overtime
are set taking into consideration the age of employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2018 the Group
was not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations on preventing child labour or forced
labour.

Supply Chain Management
It is the Group’s policy to source materials from

operated by
environmentally reputable suppliers who are in line

sustainable sources managed or
with the Group’s view to social responsibility and these
suppliers are diversified geographically to ensure the
source materials supply is not affected by change of
environmental policy of individual country or individual

region.
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KPI B5.1 and KPI B5.2

In 2018, the top 10 suppliers for the Group’s regular
business operations in Hong Kong (being suppliers of
products and/or services with an annual total contract
amount of HK$10 million or above) accounted for
approximately 40% of the Group’s total purchases of
products and/or services. These are mainly suppliers of
newsprint, ink, printing services and delivery services
and approximately 20%, 30%, 20% and 30% of them
are located, respectively, in Hong Kong, Asia, North
America and the rest of the world including Europe and
Australasia.

Newsprint and ink are the major materials consumed
by the Group. Senior management staff responsible
for this role visits existing and potential suppliers
(who individually accounts for 20% or more of total
consumption) to examine and assess whether they
fulfil the industry’s expectations in the social and
environmental aspects, especially concerning the raw
materials and the natural resources they use to produce
their products.

Product Responsibility
The Group aims (inter alia,
newspapers, magazines, recruitment media and other

publications) and
promotional events, printing and publishing services)

to provide products

services (inter alia, advertising,
of the highest standards. As a content provider, the
Group aims to produce high quality content to make
its products preferred and valued by readers. As an
advertising medium, the Group aims to be an effective
platform for advertisers to reach their target audience.
Also, the Group is committed to protecting the privacy
of individuals with respect to personal data.
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KPI B6.1, KPI B6.2, KPI B6.3 and KPI B6.4

For the year ended 31 December 2018, none of our
products sold or shipped was subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons, and the Group was not aware of
any products and service related complaints that would
have significant impact on the Group. It is the Group’s
policy to respect intellectual property rights (which is
also one of its valuable assets as a content provider),
not to use infringing articles in our business and only
use licensed software on office equipment. All staff are
required to strictly comply with the Copyright Ordinance
(Cap. 528 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as stipulated in
the Employee Handbook, and are required to report any
suspected intellectual property rights infringement of
the Group. In terms of quality assurance, regular review
meetings are held by relevant staff to ensure provision
of high quality content to readers.

KPI B6.5

Brief updates and/or training are provided to keep
the relevant staff in pace with the developments in
the advertising and media laws, and the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Regarding advertising service, advertisements of
suspicious nature are reviewed and commented before
publication so as to minimise the possibility of any
claims, allegations and/or contravention of the relevant
laws. In relation to privacy, a personal data policy is
set out in the Employee Handbook to which staff are
required to strictly adhere when handling personal
data. In compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, privacy policy statements are also included
in the Group’s websites and mobile applications, and
Personal Information Collection Statements are made
whenever personal data is collected. All personal data
is maintained with care and can only be accessed by
authorised staff, and protected by appropriate security
measures.
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B7.

BS.

Anti-corruption

It is the Group’s policy to ensure that its business
operates according to the highest standards of ethical
conduct and professional competence. All staff are
required to strictly comply with the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the code of conduct contained in the Employee
Handbook, in particular the conflict of interest and
anti-bribery provisions. Guidelines have been issued to
provide a practical guidance in relation to the operation
of the above anti-bribery provisions.

KPI B7.1

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
was not aware of any concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

KPI B7.2

The Group encourages the reporting of any suspected
breach of the aforesaid to the Human Resources
Department through the whistle-blowing mechanism.
Such reports are kept confidential and the identity of the
reporting employee will not be divulged. The Group will
take all reasonable steps to ensure that the reporting
employee suffers no detriment. Also, different internal

audit assignments are conducted from time to time.
Community Investment

As a media organisation, the Group strives to provide
high quality journalism and an effective advertising
medium to ensure business success, while at the same
time the Group is committed to fulfilling its social
responsibility as a good corporate citizen that brings
benefits to the communities in which it operates. Our
community investment strategy is to leverage on and
align the resources of the Group (including our readers
and staff) with the needs of the communities we
serve. We focus on two core areas where we believe
our understanding of the needs and our support can
best contribute to the long term development and
sustainability of the community, namely, Education and
Charity & Community Care.
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KPI B8.1 and KPI BS8.2
Education

It is our belief to support and nurture today’s young
people who are our future, by providing them with
opportunities to formal education as well as personal
development. This section outlines our key educational
initiatives:

—  Students’ Loan Fund and Scholarship under
Sing Tao Charitable Foundation

Sing Tao Charitable Foundation was established in
1976 with the aim of providing financial assistance
to those in need, including student loans and
scholarships, which comprise:

* Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Students’ Loan
Fund

Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Students’ Loan
Fund seeks to assist, by way of interest-free
loans, students who face financial difficulty and
are nominated by their education institutes.
The Loan Fund is composed of two parts —
loans to students of the eight University Grants
Committee-funded universities and Hong
Kong Shue Yan University, and emergency
loans to students of the aforementioned nine
universities, certain other tertiary institutions
and secondary schools recognised by the
Education Bureau. In addition to providing
funding to the Loan Fund, the Group also
participates in its selection committee. In the
2017/2018 academic year, Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation Students’ Loan Fund provided loans
of over HK$1 million to 75 students.

e Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Scholarships

Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Scholarships
was set up to offer one-off scholarships to
outstanding students studying Journalism and
Communication at The Chinese University
of Hong Kong, in order to nurture future
journalists and talents in the news industry.
In the 2017/2018 academic year, Sing Tao
Charitable Foundation Scholarships provided
scholarships of HK$40,000 to 8 students.
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The Standard/Sing Tao “Fat Choy” Drive
Medical Students Loan Fund

The Standard/Sing Tao “Fat Choy” Drive
Medical Students Loan Fund aims to provide
financial assistance, by way of interest-free
loans, to students in Medicine, Nursing and
Chinese Medicine at The University of Hong
Kong. In the 2017/2018 academic year, The
Standard/Sing Tao “Fat Choy” Drive Medical
Students Loan Fund approved loans of over
HK$1 million to 32 students.

—  Education-related Activities

Since 1994 the Group has organised the annual
“Leader of the Year” Award to acknowledge
outstanding leaders and thereby encourage
the younger generation to strive for excellence
and contribute to the development of Hong
Kong. To date, a total of 121 awards have
been presented to individuals and groups in
recognition of their achievements in a range of
categories spanning Community/Public Affairs
to Education and Research. A new award
category “Young Entrepreneur” was added in
2017 to recognise young leaders and foster the
spirit of entrepreneurship and creativity.

The Group co-organises the annual “Sing Tao
Inter-School Debating Competition” with the
Education Bureau and the event reached its
33 year in 2018. The competition provides
an opportunity for students to hone their
skills in use of language, debating, analytical
thinking and organisation, as well as to raise
their awareness of current affairs and enrich
their experience in extra-curricular activities.
In 2018, the competition attracted participation
by 196 schools and over 2,350 students and
teachers.

BRI - wgMhERRE

c [RH/ESBFEMEDES]

(R ES5%VENEHEL]R
EREAREERER  BESEREF
ZERNBERBEREER Bt
MEXEBE  BEBEEBEEHES -
R+ T N8F [RE
EERVEREPSE S [ HMNEE
A b H B 581,000,000 JT ©

— HEHEBEH

s AREBE-ANOFESFERME
HEMER ] REAERBEBNEM
I #E 1tk 5% B F B A LA S L 4 B A
R BEER - BREARIMAK
HEHDRIUARBTEALKE i
PIREHEZERG  ERER R
HEH  HERBH - RZT—LF
MIBRIBFEERIZHEAR - A
RAFSAMYRELEEHMA

= o
N

s NEEFEEHERAMESEBRE
HWmHE 2T )\FCBASE
=t=E - FREAEZEIIKELE
mee s w4 BEHRAEB
RABENRSHE 22248
RINEBER - R_T—NF[2
E2ERBEWLEIBICHER
KB 82,350 AL Al £ B o

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - g MhERRE

* In order to raise students’ interest in journalism
and allow young people to better understand
the operations of a newspaper, the Group
regularly organises visits from schools and
non-profit organisations. During the visits,
staff from the Group’s editorial department,
art department, printing department and
information centre interact with students to
explain and demonstrate their operations in
addition to answering questions from students.
In 2018, the Group hosted 13 visits by 407
visitors from schools and organisations.

* The book publication and distribution unit of
the Group makes donations of books to schools
and charity organisations annually, in order to
promote healthy reading habits among students
to broaden their knowledge. In addition,
the Group’s publications organise various
education-related activities regularly, including
seminars and fairs on school admissions,
contests on story writing and drawing as
well as other competitions which encourage
students to understand and participate in their
communities.

Charity & Community Care

The Group is committed to “giving back to society” by
supporting charitable activities and caring for those in
need. In our day-to-day news gathering and reporting
activities the Group is frequently in touch with and
aware of the special and urgent needs in the community.
This section outlines our key charity and community
care initiatives:

—  Charity projects under Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation

In addition to education-related financial
assistance, Sing Tao Charitable Foundation also
provides aid to victims of accidents or disasters.
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Sing Tao Charitable Foundation — Readers’
Donations

Through the reporting in the Group’s
publications, readers become aware of the
needs of individuals and families struck by
adversities and want to provide financial
assistance to them. Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation serves as a channel to coordinate
readers’ donations and ensure that the process
is systematic and accountable. Readers can
choose to donate on a one-off or ongoing
basis and over the years the Foundation has
helped many individuals and families in need
to tide over their worst times. In 2018, Sing
Tao Charitable Foundation participated in 15
cases and directed approximately HK$400,000
in donations from our benevolent readers.

Sing Tao Charitable Foundation — Disaster
Relief

Another role played by Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation is disaster relief — the Foundation
has taken the lead to organise fund raising and
donation activities in times of major calamities
to help victims recover from their misfortune
and return to their normal lives. For example,
after the 2008 Sichuan Earthquake, Sing Tao
Charitable Foundation worked with Sowers
Action to rebuild 7 schools in the affected
areas with a view to assisting the victims to
improve their long term livelihood through
better education.

—  Charity and Community Care Activities

As a newspaper, Sing Tao Daily is at the
forefront in encountering happenings in society
and the needy. In 2009, it set up an Adversity
Support Scheme with Yan Oi Tong to provide
emergency financial assistance to those who
face sudden mishaps and hardships. Sing
Tao Daily’s reporters refer cases and contact
the individuals and families concerned, and
the Scheme also arranges support services
by professional social workers. In addition,
Sing Tao Daily is also the media sponsor
of the Scheme and assists in publicising
the cases requiring assistance to encourage
the public to care and donate. In 2018, the
Scheme participated in 7 cases and provided
HK$169,000 in donations.
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Since 2011 Headline Daily has been a media
sponsor for The Community Chest Rainbow
Fund, which is involved in providing immediate
and short term financial assistance to
individuals and families with urgent and critical
needs. Headline Daily supports by devoting
editorial space to publish relevant cases and
to appeal for donations from readers, as well
as by referring cases to the Fund for approval.
In 2018, the Fund provided donations of
HK$230,000 to 5 cases.

We also encourage our employees to participate
in charitable activities, including blood
donation days, second-hand books donation
and charity book sales.

The Group’s education and parenting media
platform Ohpama.com has organised a
volunteers’ team to encourage parents and
children to do voluntary service together, such
as visiting and helping the elderly people. In
2018, a total of 250 volunteers participated
benefiting around 240 people.

The Group’s different business units regularly
support various charitable activities by
organising, sponsoring or acting as a media
partner to promote the events among the
public, including the HKGCC Free Ride Day,
the 2018 HKU English Society Welfare Week,
the 2018 JobMarket Volunteer Awards, the
Heifer “Race to Feed 2018”, the Jockey Club
COOL Neighbours for Energy Saving, the
Hong Kong Red Cross Emergency Appeal for
Indonesia Earthquake 2018, the 6® “Because
I am a Girl — Donate a Pencil” Campaign,
amongst others.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
(the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the Year.

A fair review of the Group’s business as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out on pages 12 to 17 of this annual report.
In respect of the discussion on the Group’s environmental
policies and performance, its compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations and relationships with stakeholders are
set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 36 to 58 of this annual report. These discussions form
part of the directors’ report.

The Group is committed to enhancing governance,
promoting employee benefits and development, protecting
the environment and giving back to society in order to fulfill
social responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. The
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact on the operations of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES
Principal risk and uncertainties of the Group can be found in

the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
12 to 17 of this annual report.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the Year and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in this
annual report on pages 81 to 225.

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK2 cents (2017
HK4 cents) per ordinary share and a special dividend of HK10
cents (2017: HK4 cents) per ordinary share in respect of the
Year, payable on 27 May 2019 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 17 May
2019. Together with the interim dividend of HK2 cents per
ordinary share paid to shareholders on 21 September 2018,
the total annual dividend will amount to HK14 cents per
ordinary share for the Year (2017: HK10 cents).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, and of assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on
page 228 of this annual report. The summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the Year are set out in notes 27 and 28
to the financial statements respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.
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Report of the Directors

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 (as amended), amounted to approximately
HK$1,291,355,000 (2017: approximately HK$1,381,776,000),
of which HK$17,322,000 and HK$86,611,000 have been
proposed as a final dividend and special dividend for the
Year respectively.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

There were no charitable contributions made by the Group
during the Year (2017: HK$133,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers represented less than
30% of the Group’s total revenue. The aggregate amount of
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

During the Year, none of the Directors or their close associates
or the shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak
Mr. Jia Hongping

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis
Mr. Lo Wing Hung

Mr. Siu Sai Wo

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Judy Chan

Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina

Mr. King Richard Yun Zing

Mr. Lee Cho Jat
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Report of the Directors

EEFWE

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Ho
Tsu Kwok, Charles, Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak, Mr. Jia Hongping
and Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina will retire by rotation,
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2019 AGM”). Details of the Directors’ standing for re-election
are set out in the circular to the shareholders of the Company
sent together with this annual report.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Ms. Judy Chan, Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy
Catilina, Mr. King Richard Yun Zing and Mr. Lee Cho ]Jat,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 23 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.
The Company has maintained directors and officers liability
insurance cover for the directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings of the Company every vyear. Other
emoluments are determined and approved by the Board
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance, and the results of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Rules Governing the Listing of securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), were
as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company

EEFHRE

EERESTHRAENES

RZF-N\E+ZA=1+—H EERARAES
TRABRARF R EBBZE(EZREFLY
B0 (TB5 R EEGRDDEXVED) 2 B in M iE
e BAEREZESRBEGIIE326A AR
ATHRENELMACHIBRETEREIZM
BERAREZEMARNTETRADME+AE 2
(EPHBETAESTETEFRSINFRESTADIKE
BFEADDARTHEARAMNEEBREXINA
RABI(BRAADE T :

@ HEXRQAAHER

Number of ordinary shares and underlying

shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FREBRREBROEE SHOREHEMLE

Percentage

Interests in of the

underlying Company’s

Personal Corporate shares issued voting

Name of director Note interests interests (Note 2) Total shares
eyl ERAFE

RAHHER ROMNERERE

EEps M BAER ARER (H##2) a8y RHZED
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Chatles B L E 1 - 426,197,500 4,230,000 430,427,500 49.70%
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak IEELE - - 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.69%
Mr. Jia Hongping BATEE 2,000,000 - 4,500,000 6,500,000 0.75%
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis Ly i 3,000,000 - 6,000,000 9,000,000 1.04%
Mr. Lo Wing Hung EXERE 18,000,000 - 1,500,000 19,500,000 2.25%
Mr. Siu Sai Wo FHMLE 7,872,500 - 8,900,000 16,772,500 1.94%
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EFEWmE

(b)

Notes:

Interests in associated corporations of the (b) HEARRZHEBEIETHNER
Company
As at 31 December 2018, Mr. Lo Wing Hung (“Mr. Lo"), RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H ARAIEFE
a director of the Company, held the corporate interests KERENTELEEDRTIARRQR 2B
in shares of the following associated corporations of the MR FE 2R
Company:
Percentage of
the associated
Total number corporation’s issued
Name of associated corporation Notes of shares held voting shares
wERABEED
BHEZRH RTNERER
BREELRE it LEES RG2EAH
BasBuy Company Limited ETHEEUERAH 4 2 100%
Bastille Heat Book Store Limited ErmBAAEEFRAA 4 1 100%
Bastille JC Bookcity Limited EtHBYERERAF 4 2 100%
Bastille Post Company Limited (“BPCL’) EtoBaRAA(ELHR]) 3 25.400,000 70%
Bravo Link Limited (‘BLL) ARFREARLA(RK)) 4 1 100%
Bravo Link (HK) Limited (‘BLHKL) BRHRR(ER)ERAA(ARER) 5 1 100%
Bravo Link New Media Limited RRHRBARAF 7 2 100%
Ticker Asia Limited 4 155 77.5%
Ticker International Limited 6 2,500 20%
Bt -
The corporate interests of 426,197,500 shares were held 1. N Al = 2 I’ 19426,197,5000% B Luckman
by Luckman Trading Limited (“Luckman”), which was Trading Limited (LLuCkmanJ) E =IO/ ) =z
beneficially owned by Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles. A ERES -
These interests represented share options granted under 2. EF E?E RAARRBER=ZE——FHA=+
the share option scheme of the Company which was =H T e B AR A 5t &l Tx ﬁ ZHERE B
adopted on 23 May 2012, details of which are set out B 5B BN B RS SRR BT 528 o
in note 28 to the financial statements.
The corporate interests of 25,400,000 shares were held 3. AR a2 % 19 25,400,0000% A Bastille  Post
by Bastille Post Holdings Limited (“BPHL”), which was Holdmgs Iimlted (BPHLD B - ZAAIHE
beneficially owned by Mr. Lo. EEBERHESR -
Mr. Lo was deemed to be interested in these shares 4. EEERBREEERETHMAFTEZS
held through BPCL, which was owned by BPHL and itz - ZARDRIBEBPHLEAEE R
the Group as to 70% and 30% respectively. 70% K2 30% #E 75 ©
Mr. Lo was deemed to be interested in the one share 5. EXEWwRABEEEBRA %Fﬁ% Bkt
held through BLL, which was wholly-owned by BPCL. B ZARHETHREERS -
Mr. Lo was deemed to be interested in 2,500 shares 6. ErEWRAEEREB Tlcker Asia Limited FT
held through Ticker Asia Limited, which was owned by FA2, SOOHX Btz ZA A mETHRE
BPCL as to 77.5%. B77.5% 1 25 °
Mr. Lo was deemed to be interested in these shares 7. BEEREHEABEEFBAELIMNBRKRBERES
held through BPCL and BLHKL as to 90% and 10% DRIFFHIO% R10% M IR o BB BB

respectively. BLHKL was wholly-owned by BLL.
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Report of the Directors

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any
interest and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the share option schemes disclosures in
note 28 to the financial statements, at no time during the
Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2018, those persons, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had
interested or were deemed to be interested in 5% or more of
the issued voting shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, were as follows:

EEFHRE

BRAXHEEESN  BEEFERARRESTHA
ERBIPRASEAARALEMEEEE(EER
&k MERGIEXVED) MR O RAEERO T - M
REBEEZRPERG E32EARBAATHEFNE
TR - RRBEGRETADBERTHNE AT
KBz E s RORR -

EESTARRONER

B BB A A At BI N B IS SR MY AE 28 BB S - AR A K
HLAT: {r] P8 2 A 430 4 A AN 4R AL ) B 1R 2 ERAE ]
ZH - AEEFREBALRTSEMEMEAR
BB EREEMRERME -

TERREHMATHES

KB N\F+=A=+—0 REEXRBEGE
BIE3HART AT BENBRMATEE - 75
AL GEFRAR RS THA BB SN 5 SRR
BEEARTERTHERFEBRB%IN L2
3

Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
issued voting

Capacity and
nature of  ordinary shares

Name Notes interest held shares

EAREE

FHK FEEER BONEREE

i1 it BHEitE 8B RB2BEDH

Luckman (D Beneficial owner 426,197,500 49.21%
BEREBA

Hong Kong Tobacco Company Limited FHEEEFR A E] 2 Deemed interest 426,197,500 49.21%
(“HK Tobacco”) (FEEE] WRAEBZER

Stagelight Group Limited Beneficial owner 81,959,500 9.46%

EafiA
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Notes:

(€Y)

2

.

The interests of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, held through a
controlled corporation, duplicate with those disclosed in the
section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests” above.

Pursuant to an option agreement dated 20 June 2001
and ten supplemental agreements entered into between
Luckman and HK Tobacco on 19 July 2002, 19 July 2003,
19 July 2006, 19 July 2007, 19 July 2008, 19 July 2010,
19 July 2012, 19 July 2014, 19 July 2016 and 19 July
2018 respectively, HK Tobacco was granted an option to
purchase from Luckman 33,000,000 ordinary shares of the
Company. Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, HK
Tobacco is deemed to be interested in all the 426,197,500
ordinary shares of the Company held by Luckman.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company had not been notified
of any other interests or short positions being held by any
person in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

BPHL is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Lo, an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. Lo, through BPHL, holds 70%
interest in BPCL. The Group indirectly holds the remaining
30% interest in BPCL. BPHL and BPCL (together with its

subsidiaries and associates,

the “BP Group”) are therefore

connected persons of the Company as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with BPCL and the BP Group (as the case may be):

On 11 December 2017, the Group and the BP Group
entered into a Group Master Services Agreement for
a term of three years commencing from 19 December
2017 and expiring on 18 December 2020 (the “Group
Master Services Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Group agreed to, from time to time, provide the BP
Group with various services, including but not limited
to the following categories:

(@  Sharing of administrative services relating to
accounting services support, office administration
support, human resources support, information
technology support, general company secretarial
support and legal support between the Group and

the BP Group;
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Report of the Directors

(b)  Provision of office space by the Group to the BP
Group to accommodate its employees;

(0  Provision of advertising spaces by the Group to
the BP Group for its own use;

(d) Provision of advertising spaces by the Group to
the BP Group (as an advertising agent) for its sale;

()  Distribution of books published by the BP Group
through the Group;

(f)  Provision of information technology system
services by the Group to the BP Group for the
development of websites, mobile sites and mobile
applications;

(g) Provision of content being owned by the Group
to the BP Group;

(h)  Provision of editorial services (including art and
production) by the Group to the BP Group; and

(1 Provision of marketing related services and
products by the Group to the BP Group.

On 11 December 2017, the Group and the BP
Group also entered into a BP Group Master Services
Agreement for a term of three years commencing from
19 December 2017 and expiring on 18 December 2020
(the “BP Group Master Services Agreement”) pursuant
to which the BP Group agreed to, from time to time,
provide the Group with various services, including but
not limited to the following categories:

(@  Provision of advertising spaces by the BP Group
to the Group for its own use;

(b)  Provision of advertising spaces by the BP Group
to the Group (as an advertising agent) for its sale;

(o) Distribution of books published by the Group
through the BP Group;

(d) Provision of content being owned by the BP Group
to the Group;

(e)  Provision of editorial services (including art and
production) by the BP Group to the Group; and

(f)  Provision of marketing related services and
products by the BP Group to the Group.
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EEFWE

As stated in the announcements of the Company dated
11 December 2017 and 22 December 2017, the pricing policy
under the Group Master Services Agreement and the BP Group
Master Services Agreement will be based on the nature of
transactions from time to time entered into between the Group
and the BP Group as follows:

(@  relating to the transactions on provision of office space
by the Group to the BP Group, the Group will have
regard to the then prevailing market licence fee for
similar type and size of space in the nearby locations,
and/or consult reputable agents for benchmarks of
assessment for at least two comparables;

(b) relating to the transactions on provision of advertising
spaces by the Group to the BP Group and by the BP
Group to the Group for its own use by way of booking,
the price will be determined by the business team of the
Group based on the then prevailing market conditions,
industry practices and rate offered to independent third
parties; and

(o relating to the other transactions, the Group will from
time to time obtain quotations from suppliers and/
or make price enquiries for the same or similar type
of service for at least two comparables so as to offer
the same or more favourable terms in the Group’s
perspective, to the BP Group.

Proper internal control measures have been in place to review,
approve and access all these transactions.

At any time during the terms of the Group Master Services
Agreement and the BP Group Master Services Agreement,
the Group and the BP Group may enter into individual
agreement(s) in relation to any of the services contemplated
thereunder upon and subject to the terms and conditions
thereof.

The Company set the annual caps for each of the following
categories of the transactions for the three years from
19 December 2017 to 18 December 2020 (both dates
inclusive):

(@  Provision of various services by the Group to the BP
Group; and

(b)  Provision of various services by the BP Group to the
Group.
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Report of the Directors

During the Year, the approximate aggregate service fees
received or paid by the Group and the annual caps in respect
of each category of the transactions are set out below:

EEFHRE

RAFER  AEESIERZZ AR MR R

MERGEERNRFE LREINMT

Approximate aggregate

services fees Annual cap

for the financial for the financial

year ended year ended

Category 31 December 2018 31 December 2018

BOBRKRBER FELR

BE-Z-N\F BE-ZE-N\F

+T=ZA=+—HBLt +=ZA=t+—HLt

il MR EE MREE

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Provision of various services AEBFBRELTHRSE 1,609 10,000
by the Group to the BP Group REHEERE

Provision of various services ErmssEEm AL 1,440 7,600
by the BP Group to the Group MR EERE

The Directors considered that the transactions mentioned
in sub-paragraphs 1 and 2 above will benefit the Group
in maximising operational efficiency and management
effectiveness, enhance versatility in content production and
distribution, and provide increased exposure in the internet
related media business, to further strengthen the Group’s
operations and maximise the Group’s media business value.

Under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the transactions
mentioned in sub-paragraphs 1 and 2 above constituted
continuing connected transactions (“CCT”) of the Group
for the Year which require disclosures in this annual
report. Details of such transactions were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 11 December 2017 and
22 December 2017.

EEZARMEXFIR2DBRMA 2 R ZEEFNA
SERRLEUNENRERBUE ReANREERD
HOZHEE UREEMEHBEEEE LENR
R EAE-TSRBEAKENEBEERRESAS
BIREERHERE-

BEEMRAETOASE @ 5t EXXFE1 K20 B AT
CRGERAEEREAFE 2 REBRERS ([FHE
BERS]) TEARAFREE -ZEXHNFE
ERARAFRHA-_E—+F+-_A+—BRER_-F
—+E+ A+ B AEREHE -
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EEFWE

The Company’s auditor were engaged to report on the Group’s
CCT for the Year in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor have issued a letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the Group’s
CCT mentioned above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules confirming that nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe the continuing connected
transactions:

(1  have not been approved by the Company’s board of
directors;

(i)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Group; and

(iii) have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual caps
disclosed in previous announcements of the Company.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s CCT for the Year and the Group’s
internal audit report, and confirmed that the Group’s CCT for
the Year were entered into:

(1  in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements applicable for the CCT in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there were no connected transactions
or CCT, which were required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules, entered into between the Company or its subsidiaries
and a connected person during the Year.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the Group’s connected transaction and CCT
subsisting at any time during or at the end of the Year are
disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions” above.
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or his or her
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at any time
during or at the end of the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in normal
course of business during the Year are set out in note 33
to the financial statements. In relation to those related party
transactions that constituted connected transactions as defined
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the
section “Connected Transactions” above.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of
the Company’s total number of issued shares was held by the
public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment

as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2019 AGM.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Ernst & Young ZXKEBFEE BT TelE 3E: +852 2846 9888

22/F, CITIC Tower EBPRAFZEIR Faxf# E: +852 2868 4432
ﬁj{ 1 Tim Mei Avenue i KE221 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Tao News Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 225, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

MREERER(E

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

and investment properties held by the Group amounted
to approximately HK$1,322,388,000
which HK$1,018,348,000 related to owner-occupied
properties measured at fair value and HK$65,526,000
related to investment properties. The valuation process

in aggregate, of

was inherently subjective and dependent on a number
of estimates. The Group engaged an external valuer to
perform the valuation for the properties measured at fair
value.

RZE—-N\F+=-—A=+—8H" EEHAEVE K
}%& ﬁu)&&ﬁ%%m/\,Z’J1322388000/mt He
1,018,348,0008 IR A F B EMNE AW EBHE -
65,526,000 LA EYEBR - HERFAFAEEE
M WEBCRRZEG - BERECEBIINEGEME
BRAFEFENMELETHE:

The related disclosures are included in notes 3, 13 and
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRABRBEDHENGAVBHRMES  13%14 °

MREREHE RERTFEEBRELSENS X

Valuation of properties

E Y]

As at 31 December 2018, property, plant and equipment, | Our audit procedures included considering the

independence and competence of the external valuer
employed by the Group; the wvaluation
methodology and the assumptions adopted by the valuer,
with the assistance from our internal valuation expert;

evaluating

evaluating the data used as inputs for the valuation and
comparing such data with market data of comparable
properties;
assumptions and judgements need in the valuation.

and discussing with management on key

BfmEZEFEREER ESEMBFENIIEGE
B & 38 321 K B A RE 0 ¢ FE 3 FT E9 R R 1 1B B K A9 155 BY)
TR THERMMARANGEETERBR: FEBER
fﬁig ANEREE  YERBUMENTSBBFELE K
EREENmEARGENERERRMAE -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
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MRERER(E

Key audit matter

HMREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

REZTEERRELKSENTG

Impairment assessment on trade receivables

JE IR 5 8 18 AT 1

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded trade
receivables of approximately HK$383,896,000 before
impairment of HK$20,710,000. The adoption of HKFRS
9 has fundamentally changed the Group’s accounting for
impairment on trade receivables by replacing HKAS 39’s
“incurred loss” approach with a forward-looking expected
credit loss (“ECL”) approach. The measurement on the
Group’s trade receivables under the ECL approach was
estimated by management through the application of
judgements and use of highly subjective assumptions. The
impact of economic factors, both current and future, and
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors were also
considered in management’s assessment of the likelihood
of recovery from customers.

RZE—NE+-A=+—H BE£EHEERKREXR
49383,896,00078 7T ($0 K& )AL 1E20,710,00078 JTAI) ° & /& BF
HHREERESRUAMEENTEHREREBXLX(FEHERIE
KNDEBEXABRRE BT ERERIEELEBKRE &
RKMBEEVBREENFOREDEARALERE E5EE
WERFREMSTRIE - RIEBBHERBREZYE B%
BREWESTNAESREEBEINAARAE  EA
TH EEEAGHEREFPUEAREMERIEEEBR &
RRGEERENTE -

Due to the significance of trade receivables and the
uncertainty inherent in such estimates, we considered this
as a key audit matter.

HREREFNEZERZSHAERNTHARAKE - &
MRA/U T —FBREZSEE -

The disclosures of the trade receivables and their expected
credit loss allowance are included in notes 3 and 20 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BRRUERLEERERABERBERORE
A 75 R M &E3 5220 ©

Our audit procedures included assessing the controls
over the monitoring of trade receivables; evaluating the
methodologies,
Group in calculating the expected credit loss allowance;

inputs and assumptions used by the

understanding and discussing with management for
judgements used under the ECL approach; assessing
historical loss pattern and management’s basis of

judgement applied on this data under the ECL approach;
and assessing the adequacy of the allowance recorded
by reviewing subsequent settlements after the year end.
We also evaluated whether the historical loss rates are
appropriately adjusted based on the current economic
conditions and forward-looking information.

BB AT P L4 AT 4 B R PR R B 9 ¢ R
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ki Wing Yee, Winnie.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

] o N\ 7/
mAEERK

Year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE_—F—/\F+-HA=+—HIFEZE

Notes 2018 2017
N3 —Z2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
REVENUE LN 5 1,431,704 1,511,864
Cost of sales £ & B AN (895,401) (929,000)
Gross profit EH 536,303 582,864
Other income and gains, net HEi g A R F58 5 18,528 35,243
Distribution expenses 7 85 B X (235,176) (240,240)
Administrative expenses TR X (280,636) (311,324)
Other expenses Hth 7 % (5,358) (9,468)
Finance costs Rl & KA 6 @ an
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE TS AR A R EE -
Joint ventures AEDE 4,238 6,603
Associates FR/NE] 7,137 1,148
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R Bt A& R 7 45,035 64,875
Income tax expense FrisfiM % 10 (20,792) (23,526)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE Z2A T #EH A FE{L
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 7 5% A 24,243 41,349
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE ARATEEREZFEAELS
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS FRER— (EAWL)
OF THE COMPANY - (HK cents) 12
Basic HAR 2.80 477
Diluted #E 2.80 477
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

el ER

Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F—/\F+-HA=+—HIFEZF

Notes 2018 2017
s SE-NF  -EiF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR NEEEF 24,243 41,349
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H At 2 H W &
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that A& BifEIAlgb E¥T HiEEE =
may be reclassified to profit or loss M H A2 W, (B )
in subsequent periods:
Available-for-sale investments: AHERE:
Changes in fair value N EEE - 816
Exchange differences on translation of B EGINEFEHE X Z5E
foreign operations (7,286) 21,646
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) A& BifEAJge EFH BEE R
that may be reclassified to profit or MEMEEKE(BE)
loss in subsequent periods F R (7,286) 22,462
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that LAf& BRI NEEE# D i #E B &
will not be reclassified to profit or B E i 2 U 5 /( Jgﬁ B)
loss in subsequent periods:
Gains on property revaluation M EM HQ i 13 71,344 79,912
Income tax effect sz 2 26 (11,239) (16,872)
Net other comprehensive income that Nz eeER HHEER
will not be reclassified to profit or HY H 2 U 2R OF R
loss in subsequent periods 60,105 63,040
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR BEIZFEHth 2 mE UK &
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 52,819 85,502
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ARAREEABGEFERZE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO Wz A E
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 77,062 126,851
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ire BRI R

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

Notes 2018 2017
o &t —E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$000 HK$000
F#ET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEEZE 13 1,256,862 1,271,590
Investment properties "EME 14 65,526 49,762
Other intangible assets EthmEEE 15 100 100
Investments in joint ventures REELEZRE 16 57,666 64,706
Investments in associates REZENFI 28 E 17 16,997 14,803
Equity investments designated at BERBAFEFAEME
fair value through other HR Rz ERERE
comprehensive income 18 47 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABSERZ
profit or loss WiEEE 22 11,249 -
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 18 - 10,264
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE E 26 3,900 13,644
Other deposits paid Hte#Zke 21 65,953 55,495
Total non-current assets IERBEEBE 1,478,300 1,480,364
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories TFE 19 59,475 55,660
Trade receivables & IR BR 3R 20 363,186 411,408
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTRIE - B b JE MO TE o
other assets HEmE F 21 34,306 44,578
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEFAEREERZ
profit or loss B E = 22 85,129 99,735
Loan to an associate m—EEEQRRENER 17 4,543 -
Tax recoverable A] Y [B] 5 1R 2,433 4,087
Cash and cash equivalents Be kR EEER 23 527,627 517,317
Total current assets mEEEBE 1,076,699 1,132,785
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and bills payables JENEER R B 24 86,660 60,583
Other payables and accruals Eo b e 3RIE K FE R R 25 201,201 265,941
Provision B 25 - 5,446
Tax payable FER B IR 13,299 19,891
Total current liabilities mEBARERE 301,160 357,861
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 775,539 774,924
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERRBEEZ
LIABILITIES EE#E 2,253,839 2,255,288
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI &

31 December 2018 —ZFE—NF+=-H=4+—H

Notes 2018 2017
b i —Z2-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FETT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERRBEEZ
LIABILITIES BEEHE 2,253,839 2,255,288
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities R IBEAGE 26 117,543 113,756
Net assets BEFE 2,136,296 2,141,532
EQUITY Bz ¥
Equity attributable to owners RREHEE N EAG R
of the Company
Issued capital BTN 27 173,222 173,222
Reserves i 29 1,963,074 1,968,310
Total equity % 4B 5B 2,136,296 2,141,532

Siu Sai Wo
B A

Director

EZE
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Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= A FEE £ 454
/2\\/\|:| ‘& fm A&

B

Year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE—F—/\F+-HA=+—HIFEZE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEFAES
Available-
Issued for-sale
ordinary Share Share Asset investment  Exchange
share  premium Contributed option revaluation revaluation fluctuation  Retained Total
Notes capital account surplus  reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
B®fT B BRE EE TftHER EXRD
Wi EBERA B R BABR WE  ERRE HEMRA ®E  RERN RESE
HEK$000 HEK$000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HEK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FET TET FET FET TET FET FET
(Note 27) (Note 29)
(Hit27) (Hrit29)
At 1 January 2017 RZZ2—tF-A—H 173,222 25,442 407,890 12,292 170,450 0,393 (59.237)  1336,811 2,073,263
Profit for the year KEEHEN - - - - - - - 41,349 41,349
Other comprehensive income & &t 2 F M &
for the year:
Gains on property revaluation, MEZEWE - MHEHE
net of tax - - - - 03,040 - - - 03,040
Changes in fair value AEHERENTEED
of available-for-sale BRHE
investments, net of tax - - - - - 816 - - 816
Exchange differences related to SN EHEENEL B
foreign operations - - - - - - 21,646 - 21,646
Total comprehensive income —~ FEZHEYH BE
for the year - - - - 63,040 816 21,646 41349 126,851
Equity-settled share option REEHBRERH
arrangements 28 - - - 10,706 - - - - 10,706
Transfer of share option MR ERERERBRE
reserve upon the forfeiture 1]
of share options - - - (266) - - - 266 -
Final 2016 dividend paid BRNZE-"ERERE - - - - - - - (34,644) (34,644
Special 2016 dividend paid BERNZE-REHFIRS - - - - - - - (17,322) (17,322)
Interim 2017 dividend “E-LFPERE 11 - - - - - - - (17322) (17322)
At 31 December 2017 R-B-+F+-A=+-H 173,222 254424 {07800 22732 233,490¢ 7,209 (3759DF  1309,138* 2,141,532
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

/\‘/T\

Year ended 31 December 2018 # &

== N\ 7/
1: / ~ II\I:IIH

2R

—E-NFFZA=F—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AREERAES
Available-
Issued for-sale
ordinary Share Share Asset investment  Exchange
share  premium Contributed option revaluation revaluation fluctuation  Retained Total
Notes capital account surplus  reserve reserve reserve reserve profits equity
BRI B4 BRE EE TfHER EXRD
Wi ERBRA &R BABH WE  ERRE HEMRA WE  REREN RESE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HKS$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET TET FET TET FET FET TET FET FET
(Note 27) (Note 29)
(Hit27) (Hrit29)
At 31 December 2017 RZEB—t#+-A=t-R 173,022 25,442 407,890 22732 233,490 7,209 (37590 1309138 2,141,532
Effect of adoption of KB BB REESR
HKEFRS 9 FORMT & 2.2(b) - - - - - (7,209) - 7,209 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January RZZ—-\F-A—-HZ
2018 BRRES 173,222 25,442 407,890 22,732 233,490 - (37,59D 1,316,347 2,141,532
Profit for the year K i E&f - - - - - - - 24,243 24,243
Other comprehensive income ~ FEEf2ENE
for the year:
Gains on property revaluation, #EEEWE - MBEHE
net of tax - - - - 60,105 - - - 60,105
Exchange differences related to S8 EBFHENEL B
foreign operations - - - - - - (7,286) - (7,286)
Total comprehensive income — FEZEKE B
for the year - - - - 60,105 - (7,286) 24,243 77,062
Equity-settled share option RELERERERH
arrangements 28 - - - 4,312 - - - - 4,312
Transfer of share option WERERECERERBRE
reserve upon the forfeiture fEE
of share options - - - 991) - - - 991 -
Final 2017 dividend paid BENZZE-+ERBES 1 - - - - - - - (4044 (34,644)
Special 2017 dividend paid ~ BIENZZF—+EBHEE 1 - - - - - - - (34,644)  (34,044)
Interim 2018 dividend “E-\FRERE 11 - - - - - - - (17322) (17322)
At 31 December 2018 RZZB-NE+=A=t+-H 173,222 25 442* 407,890 26,053* 293,595" - (44,877 1,254971* 2,136,296
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * BUFBRPERTHEAMBIKART OGS

of HK$1,963,074,000 (2017: HK$1,968,310,000)

in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

/\\/T\/\IE N7 //|b£i§

Year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE_—F—/\F+-HA=+—HIFEZE

Notes 2018 2017
o &t —E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBEEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B ¢ A1 4 A 45,035 64,875
Adjustments for: EEHRT5IE %
Finance costs Bh & B AR 6 1 11
Share of profits and losses of BEeERERNRERE
joint ventures (4,238) (6,663)
Share of profits and losses of FE 45 Bk & 2 Rl A 2 & 18
associates (7,137) (1,148)
Bank interest income RITH B WA 5 (4,046) (3,351
Investment income "EWA 5 (3,781) (4,261
Dividend income from equity KEERMEREZ
investments &% B A 5 1,752) (2,028)
Fair value gains, net on: N EWE - FE
Investment properties WEME 5 (7,211) (5,951
Financial assets at fair value BEAFEFABR=EZ
through profit or loss MBEE 5 3,376 (6,967)
Derivative financial instruments MmESsRIA - ~FE
— transactions not qualifying HHERIZIRS
as hedges 5 (302) (867)
Gain on disposal of an investment LEREYHE 2 W
property 5 (4,786) -
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of LEWE - FL/;E%& SETER
property, plant and equipment ZEB (M) 5 1,752 (5,268)
Depreciation e 7 86,690 77,369
Amortisation of intangible assets B AESH 7 - 9
Impairment of trade receivables JE W2 BR FOR 1B 7 6,827 984
Write-off of trade receivables JE L BR SR M 8 7 - 285
Recovery of a loan receivable g 5] fE Uk B 3R 7 (1,500) -
Write-off of an available-for-sale A IR E 8
investment 7 - 1,950
Write-off of financial assets at fair BEAFEFABRZER W
value through profit or loss BE F b= 7 - 6,240
Equity-settled share option expense MRAE#HEE IR X 7 4,312 10,706
113,240 125,925
Increase in inventories FEEm (3,815) (11,392)
Decrease in trade receivables, FEULEBRFR « FA{IFRIE - HbfE
prepayments, other receivables and WK IR KR E & % D
other assets 53,196 20,600
Decrease in financial assets at fair value ZAFEFFABTZERZ
through profit or loss B & E R A 10,198 2,705
Decrease in derivative financial PTESR T ER D
instruments 302 867
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills EAERLERE  EMERN
payables, other payables, accruals and TE -~ BT RIE R B A
provision #n, Orl 4) (40,032) 11,767
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2018 HZE—F—/\F+-HA=+—HIFEZF

Note 2018 2017
H &t —E2-N\¥ —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Cash generated from operations BEXBMEARS 133,089 150,472
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) Bi& (B #) &FEF B (16,424) 93
Overseas tax refunded/(paid) BR (B EIINHE 1,407 (332)
Net cash flows from operating activities #% & ¥ ME 4 2
REREFHE 118,072 150,233
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REXBELEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received B U F B 4,046 3,351
Investment income ERA 3,781 4,261
Dividends received from joint ventures W& & X ZKE 6,488 8,925
Dividends received from listed equity Bl ETEZUEREZRE
investments 1,752 2,028
Purchases of items of property, plant and EEY % - BENMREER
equipment (25,450) (216,982)
Deposits paid for purchases of items of EEYZ - BEM&REIEE
property, plant and equipment ZEHER (10,458) (55,495)
Proceeds from disposal of HE-—BINEYERE T
an investment property 10,436 -
Proceeds from disposal of items of EEME  BELZREIERB
property, plant and equipment Fr 1% 5K 18 3,736 7,727
Purchases of available-for-sale fEE At ﬁ ERE
investments - (3,25D
Purchases of financial assets at fair value FEEZ QAT EFTABRRERZ
through profit or loss B EE - (2,340
Decrease in non-pledged time deposits HEVSEF R EI B H 8B = & A
with original maturity of more than 2 AR T B AE FOR
three months when acquired 2,578 42,895
Net cash flows used in investing KEEBER
activities REMEFHE (3,091) (208,881)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHELEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Capital element of finance lease rental @& LK 2 E R0
payments - (317
Interest paid 2EF A 6 (€)) M
Interest element of finance lease rental EEE BB R 2F| B 515
payments 6 - aom
Dividends paid 2R B (86,610) (69,288)
Net cash flows used in financing BEFEEFEAZ
activities Be R $5 (86,611) (69,616)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

/\\/T\/\EE N7 //|b£i§

Year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE_—F—/\F+-HA=+—HIFEZE

Note 2018 2017
Wit = MG
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHETT TFET
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH RERREZEEEZM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R ) F 8 28,370 (128,264)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning TR & RIESEEIEE
of year 483,582 592,205
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXFH B FE
changes, net (15,482) 19,641
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT HFHRHERRESEEHE
END OF YEAR 496,470 483,582
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBREEEEBERIMN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be RIRITHE 23 282,600 295,029
Non-pledged time deposits EE R TE BT 23 245,027 222,288
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in ,57@5( MR F AR e R
the statement of financial position Re&EBEIEE 527,627 517,317
Non-pledged time deposits with original FE/S R R 2| B H 8 =& A
maturity of more than three months 2 AR E B E
when acquired (31,157) (33,735)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in RERERAFANIE K&
the statement of cash flows BeEEIER 496,470 483,582
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered
office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

involved in the

During the year, the Group was

following principal activities:

. media
. property holding
. investment holding

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, Luckman
Trading Limited, which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands, is the Company’s controlling shareholder.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, land and buildings, derivative
financial instruments, equity and debt

securities, and financial assets at fair value through

investments

profit or loss. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(.e., existing rights that give the Group the current

ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(o the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of
a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for
as an equity transaction.

2.1
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2018 —ZFE—NF+=-H=4+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 21 WBZEEE)
Basis of consolidation (continued) HERBZEE(E)
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it MAEBXEH —HNBAR 2 EH# - A
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) ERERROZMNBRARZEE(BEHE) X
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying BE EMIFZERER ZEREE LGDR
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the EEANRLEER 2t E 58 RIEROMKK
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; BZAYE (WRBEAREZAFEN
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration GDEREPTMENEE 2 BHER - &
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained AR EMEER SR ANER 2 N E B FE (3L
and (i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. hEH»BEAEZIREEN(MER) &
The Group’s share of components previously recognised A A ERE RN EEHEENBGBA
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit EEER -
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 ENBRENKEZED

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

AEEREANFEMBRREERXRAUT
Ml RGBT BB B RE LR -

statements.
Amendments to Classification and Measurement EARUMBREED URGMEEFRGZHXZH
HKFRS 2 of Share-based Payment FE25RMER] DM E
Transactions
Amendments to Applying HKFRS 9 Financial EEVBREER BEYEHREELEIOR &
HKFRS 4 Instruments with HKFRS 4 FAFER] T A HEE B AR
Insurance Contracts FEAF IR & 41 JE
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments EBUBHREER 2/ TA
F95
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with EARBBRERED FXEEFEAHWN
Customers 21557
Amendments to Clarifications to HKFRS 15 BB REED BEHBEHEELHEI5H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with F15HAEET KEEE BN 5
Customers
Amendments to Transfers of Investment EAETER -/ Ed-0E 3
HKAS 40 Property E4051E 5]
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions EB(BRGBRE IESZHMAENTALE
and Advance Consideration REZEg)RE
FE225
Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and —E-pFER EEVBKBRELENEIR R
to HKFRSs 2014 HKAS 28 ZE-NFHEY  BEGIERIEBRER]
2016 Cycle BB BRE
BRI 19 F B 2L

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 4 and Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, which are
not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the new and
revised HKFRSs, are described below:
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

@

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 address three main
areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
share-based
payment transaction; the classification of a share-

measurement of a cash-settled
based payment transaction with net settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order
to meet an employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting
where a modification to the terms and conditions
of a share-based payment transaction changes
to equity-
settled. The amendments clarify that the approach

its classification from cash-settled

used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments
also applies to cash-settled share-based payments.
The amendments
that a transaction with

net share settlement features for withholding a

introduce an exception so
share-based payment

certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an
equity-settled transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore,

share-based payment

the amendments clarify that if the terms and
conditions of a cash-settled share-based payment
transaction are modified, with the result that it
becomes an equity-settled share-based payment
transaction, the transaction is accounted for as
an equity-settled transaction from the date of
the modification. The amendments have had no
impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group as the Group does not have any
cash-settled share-based payment transactions and
has no share-based payment transactions with net
settlement features for withholding tax.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2018, bringing together all three
aspects of the accounting for financial instruments:
classification and measurement, impairment and

hedge accounting.

With the exception of hedge accounting, which the
Group has applied prospectively, the Group has
recognised the transition adjustments against the
applicable opening balances in equity at 1 January
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was
not restated and continues to be reported under
HKAS 39.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

22 ENBRERNEE2EE(E)

(@

(b)

FEMBHRELENERET 2R
BATN=EEE: fFEAREBMO N
RHyMBEFRTOTE: ABFINE
EBNBRNNRS (FEINE THRIUE
TEEEBRNINABNREEEL D
B RhEAEHEERBRNINRS
BV R RS R & XN E R
BB - ZFETEERREE
fE 7 SO B A ST 0 B R R A O E AR R
REXNENOEFFTETE - %
FERIEL —BES - EAFROEE
FenknINRX5FEME T RN
mERAREENHEARME  KBEESE

DESBREGERDINRZWHTE
HTHRME) - WHONZFETEA  WE
ReBERD N RBHRR LGS
Ak ERERSRBEGEER DN
X5 ABARXZAEHRZBEE/K
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B BRRARRAL EBE(AIZE -
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Notes to Financial Statements
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

A=+—A

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

(continued)

Classitication and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of
adopting HKFRS 9 on the statement of financial
position, including the effect of replacing HKAS
39’s incurred credit loss calculations with HKFRS
9’s expected credit losses (“ECLs”).

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts
under HKAS 39 and the balances reported under
HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 is as follows:

m (#E)

DR E

22 B BERENMEEZ22E (&)

ATERDIARBE LM B REENE

OISR MAKRNEE

%5 R | 055 1 TR B3 (5 A 1B Kk (7]

£ & Bl

=N VAN

BREEBH

HMEMABXDEREB B S ERE395%

MERLEERBERNTE

R-E—\E—A—H EEE:
% 30% I8 Tt R .51 6 81 15 46

Bl
e

off %

AIFRSR A2 MM AR HRIOT

HKAS 39 measurement
BEGT RS RHE

HKFRS 9 measurement
EEMBREENEIRTE

Notes Category Amount Reclassification Amount Category
Viti3 - F] 8 ENDE Ex 28
HKﬁ\’WO HKﬁ"Wﬂ HKﬂ\’OOO
FET FET FAET
Financial assets HBEEE ,
Equity investments designated  EERATHEFAZRE
at fair value through other ANRENERERE N/A FVOCI' (equity)
comprehensive income TE - 47 47 (&%)
From: Available-for-sale B mfnERs
investments (0 47
Available-for-sale investments A/ HERE NA
AFS? 10,264 (10,264) - TER
To: Equity investments BEEFRATESA
designated at fair Et 2 ERHD
value through other EnlRE
comprehensive income , (@ n
To: Financial assets at fair value EZ: KR FE A B
through profit or loss RoBBEE (i) (10,217)
Trade receivables & U B 3% L&R* 411408 - 411,408 AC!
Financial assets included SABATE
in prepayments, other Hit A R
receivables and other £t ﬁ [3ig
assets BBEE L&R 32,923 - 32,923 AC
Financial assets at fair valie A FEFABEE 2B FVPL
through profit or loss KEE (mandatory)
FVPLS 9973 10,217 109,952 (& H1t)
From: Available-for-sale ER:ofnERs
investments (ii) 10,217
Loan to an associate - FEEJ B RNAEEL A
¢ L&R 4,543 - 4,543 AC
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEHEER L&R 517,317 - 517,317 AC
1,076,190 - 1,076,190

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018




Notes to Financial Statements
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

22 ENBRERNEE2EE(E)

(b) (continued) ) (#&
Classification and measurement (continued) SR E ()
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
measurement measurement
ERGHENEIR ERUBREELEIS
& e
Category Amount Reclassification Amount Category
55 ¢ H ENSE 8 L]
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET
Financial liabilities HBEE
Trade and bills payables ERERRZE AC 66,583 - 66,583 AC
Financial liabilities included in other FTAE BN B R AT
payables and accruals REZHBER AC 190,469 - 190,469 AC
257,052 - 257,052

Notes:

®

(65))

FVOCI: Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

AFS: Available-for-sale investments

L&R: Loans and receivables

AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at
amortised cost

FVPL: Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

The Group has elected the option to
irrevocably designate certain of its previous
available-for-sale equity investments as equity
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Group has classified its unlisted
investments previously classified as available-
for-sale investments as financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss
as these non-equity investments did not pass
the contractual cash flow characteristics test in
HKFRS 9.

K et -

®

(iD)

FVOCI: I R FEFTAEME2E R S 2 8
BEAE

AFS : At HE/RE

L&R : B 7k E fE U k1A

AC BB AT R M EERMEA
&

FVPL: AV EFFABTRZMBEE

AEECEBETARHEBEES TEBE
At EREERE /R AFETFAEM
rEMEEREERE -

2% % 9 25 1 48 B R BB E 5 BT 15 3R
HRBIEON M A KR SR BB, -
HAREDSEBE S EATHIERA
BIELTREHEARATEIABRE
THBEE -

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018




Notes to Financial Statements
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (continued)
Impact on reserves and retained profits

The impact of transition to HKFRS 9 on reserves
and retained profits is as follows:

22 B BERENMEEZ22E (&)

(b) (#&)
HERRE S FZZE

BREEBREMBRESENFEOR Y FHE
RREGENZZEWNT:

Reserves and
retained profits

ik 8 % R BB 7 A
HK$000
FET
Fair value reserve under HKFRS 9 ERMBHREENFEIORETZA
(available-for-sale investment revaluation TEFEE(ERBSTERNEIR
reserve under HKAS 39) BHTIZAHHBEREEGRRER)
Balance as at 31 December 2017 as previously RZE—tF+-A=+—H
reported TR W2 M 7,209
Reclassification of financial assets from S EERIHEEERESEH
available-for-sale investments to financial DEEENFEFABREZ
assets at fair value through profit or loss M EE (7,209)
Balance as at 1 January 2018 as restated RZZE—-N\F—A—BEI2&H -
Retained profits R B E R
Balance as at 31 December 2017 as previously RZE—tF+=-A=+—H
reported SR & 1,309,138
Reclassification of available-for-sale investments to HAHEEREEN SRR
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss NFEFAERERCVBEE 7,209
Balance as at 1 January 2018 as restated RZE—/\F—H—HEMN &% 1,316,347
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

©

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and
related interpretations and it applies, with limited
exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 establishes a new
five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach
for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative  disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods
and key judgements and estimates. The disclosures
are included in note 5 to the financial statements.
As a result of the application of HKFRS 15, the
Group has changed the accounting policy with
respect to revenue recognition in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the
modified retrospective method of adoption. Under
this method, the standard can be applied either
to all contracts at the date of initial application or
only to contracts that are not completed at this
date. The Group has elected to apply the standard
to contracts that are not completed as at 1 January
2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application
of HKFRS 15 was recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits as
at 1 January 2018. Therefore, the comparative
information was not restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 18 and related
interpretations.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

©

@

(e

(continued)

The Group has reviewed the impact of HKFRS
15 on its revenue stream and the application of
HKFRS 15 has had no significant impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group
apart from providing more extensive disclosures
on the Group’s revenue transactions.

Amendments to HKAS 40 clarify when an entity
should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into or out of
investment property. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs when the property meets,
or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is evidence of the change in
use. A mere change in management’s intentions for
the use of a property does not provide evidence
of a change in use. The amendments have had no
impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int
to determine the date of the transaction when

22 provides guidance on how
applying HKAS 21 to the situation where an entity
receives or pays advance consideration in a foreign
currency and recognises a non-monetary asset or
liability. The interpretation clarifies that the date
of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income (or part of it)
is the date on which an entity initially recognises
the non-monetary asset (such as a prepayment) or
non-monetary liability (such as deferred income)
arising from the payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance of recognising the related
item, the entity must determine the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
had no
impact on the Group’s financial statements as the

consideration. The interpretation has
Group’s accounting policy for the determination of
the exchange rate applied for initial recognition
of non-monetary assets or non-monetary liabilities
is consistent with the guidance provided in the
interpretation.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to Definition of a Business?

HKFRS 3
Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation'

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)

between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?®
Amendments to HKAS Definition of Material®

1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment

HKAS 19 or Settlement!
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint

Ventures'
HK(IFRIO)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments*
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Annual Improvements

Amendments to HKFRS 3,

to HKFRSs 2015—
2017 Cycle

HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021
i No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption

TREZE®) 251
BB E23W
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i I 8 58 I A 2 H HIB 2 E AT IR A
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide
additional guidance on the definition of a business.
The amendments clarify that for an integrated set of
activities and assets to be considered a business, it
must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive
process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to
create outputs. The amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of acquiring
the business and continue to produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired
substantive processes together significantly contribute
to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on
goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to
assess whether an acquired process is substantive and
introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIO)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and HK(IO-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to
make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses
unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently
increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability
and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be
required to separately recognise the interest expense
on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on
the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required to
remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of
certain events, such as change in the lease term and
change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payments.
Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17
and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make
more extensive disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees
can choose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective approach. The
Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The
Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2019 and will not restate
the comparatives. In addition, the Group plans to apply
the new requirements to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and measure the
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ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The
right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the
lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments relating to the lease recognised
in the statement of financial position immediately before
the date of initial application. The Group plans to
use the exemptions allowed by the standard on lease
contracts whose lease terms end within 12 months
as of the date of initial application. During 2018, the
Group has performed a detailed assessment on impact
of adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group has estimated the
right-of-use assets of approximately HK$13,500,000 and
lease liabilities of approximately HK$13,500,000 will be
recognised at 1 January 2019.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition states
that information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information.
A misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made
by the primary users. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2020. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)
Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope
exclusion of HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an
associate or joint venture to which the equity method
is applied and does not include long-term interests
that in substance form part of the net investment in
the associate or joint venture, to which the equity
method has not been applied. Therefore, an entity
applies HKFRS 9, rather than HKAS 28, including the
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, in accounting
for such long-term interests. HKAS 28 is then applied
to the net investment, which includes the long-term
interests, only in the context of recognising losses of
an associate or joint venture and impairment of the net
investment in the associate or joint venture. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments on 1 January 2019
and will assess its business model for such long-term
interests based on the facts and circumstances that exist
on 1 January 2019 using the transitional requirements in
the amendments. The Group also intends to apply the
relief from restating comparative information for prior
periods upon adoption of the amendments.

HK(FRIO)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12
(often referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The
interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies outside
the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated
with
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers

uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
uncertain tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions
an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments
by taxation authorities; (ii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax
losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how
an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively,
either fully retrospectively without the use of hindsight
or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application, without the restatement
of comparative information. The Group expects to
adopt the interpretation from 1 January 2019. The
interpretation is not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is
included as part of the Group’s investments in associates
or joint ventures.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its land and buildings, investment
properties, derivative financial instruments, equity
investments, debt securities and credit linked deposits
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group wuses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in

active markets for identical assets or

liabilities
Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly
Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018

2.4

EXEHBEBMERE)

DFEFEE)

EUVBRRAGFEXBRELATFENMEEE
REE G ARBHAFEAEREMSAA
EZEENREBRGABE TEAFES
MAEITDE:

ENHRAEEXRELELTETS
EOREAR) O RE

- ERYUQFEFENFAEER
EENREERBAENEESL
BZABRNGEERM

- EREATEAENEAEER
EENREERBAEBILDTAR
B fh E R

RRERNVBREREANEERBEMNS
AEENBERESHREBRYLFES
EERMEAREERENREBRBAE)
EFFELE  WRESFRTEELHHEEZ
THEHK -

FUMBEEZRE

BERERBREE  WHEERREVERINE
FHEBERNS  BGFEEZANKROSEE -
BEZARODSHEREEIRGELSNL L
EAEE UAREQAFERLERAZES
EE URSERNEEMETE  KRIFEE
WAREEABRBINEMEESENEEZ
BRATHREBBESRA BELBERT  HE
TEEMBzReELEM 2R KBS -



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

An impairment loss is charged to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset. An assessment is made at the end of each
reporting period as to whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other
than goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(1  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ii)  is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iiD the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in ()i has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018

24 EREFERRBERE)

BEAL
ETAERT Al RRAREER:

@ EAXEZBEABERBIHORENXE
R A% ME A

) HEAEEEBEZESISERZEH
() HAEEEHREATE =

(i) RAKBEXNES AR AEREE
ABHIKE

i}
i

\
/
m
K

b BBEALASFTANLTHEMAR

() ZREBNMASEBERR-—SEHK
8

() X EERS EREEZXSZ—
BEERHNTAF - [WBRRR XK
BARDMBENRIHAEEDE:

Gi) ZEBLEASEHLEHRERE=T
MEEDE:

(v X BEREF-THNAELEY
BEE—EERZEBE-ZFFNBER
ET .

V) ZEERAASEENEANEERR
BRI E RN ESRF MR A B
& 1E T A

v ZEBX@IEMEEARNZES K
KRS

viD @OEMANEAAHZELRER
EAFERRZER (HESRATF)
MEREEABNKRE K

FEBBE —SKEZEMR
AlRAASESAEE &
HEZEEABRY -

(viid E 8 -
g/



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve.
If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a
deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the
deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the deficit
previously charged. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Leasehold land

Not depreciated

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 2% to 5%

2% to 5%

6% to 50%

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20% to 33%

10% to 30%

Buildings
Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures,
equipment and others

Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represented a building
under construction, which was stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and was not depreciated. Cost
comprised the direct costs of construction during the
period of construction. Construction in progress was
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives represent
purchased data library, copyrights, trademarks and
domain names which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 20
years.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life
represents a motor vehicle registration mark, which
is tested for impairment annually individually. Such
intangible asset is not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the statement
of profit or loss so as to provide a constant periodic
rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to the statement
of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and buildings elements, the entire lease payments
are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable
from 1 January 2018)” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows.

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

. The financial asset is held within a business model
with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling.

. The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled
to the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair
value through other comprehensive income, as described
above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

24 EREFERRBMEE)

RERHMMBEERBEE-F-N\F—A
—HRERACERMBRERAEIRETH
BER) (&)

Hig:t 2 (#&)

HEE B A FIEGFARME 0K a2 HE
E(#nltKRE)

92 B R 1k - K S A 9B R L b4
BEMBEDEAREBEATEIARE
SEWaE 2 B RE - REFATBR
RRIERFEMTA  ZHETRAES - B
CHBEREAS - SEAABTARER
FAEE -

uA—raTﬁ&ﬁFmH& s R BEBTEEENG
ABRE ERVINER REREBERER
NERAEMK A - BER B HEBRLEEF
HZAEERARNEB KB5S —JsEn‘I'E‘
MEAEERIEARENBEEIDKAH
Fir 15 3} 18 A % 25 05 R BR O - EAﬁti’E/RT
EA%WEE@EM%EHK\*/J\H‘E BERER
ETEE;)\/H\WEEEHK wmERMEREDZRE
(ERRES-2-

BAFEGTARD RZYEEE

BRAVEFABREZMBEERERIEE
BEZHMBEE RUPBABEELSRAF
Brf AR R MBEELRFBRIZEAF
BEfECUBEE - WEBAMBEEDE R
MBALELEE  MEBMBEESER
BEEE - (TETA (BEERRATELA)
BOBEBFREEE  ERETCRAERE HT
BAERIGS - BEeREIFARINEER
MEHMBEE  TwmEEBRANE - 15
BAVEAABREIBELAE -BEWNOL
SR B 75 T A R 4R 35 A AN S48 A PR A
AEM2mU s D58 1EBA%)J*F6EW (o
ﬁuﬂﬁﬁﬁi%ﬁi%}md\anﬁ E'Jﬁﬁ%lﬂ
AEE /B ATV EFAER

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018



Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 5 2% P

31 December 2018 —ZFE—NF+=-H=4+—H

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on equity investments classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are also recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with positive net changes in fair value recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends or interest
earned on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value
if their economic characteristics and risks are not
closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as
at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss category.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EABHBEME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

When the fair value of unlisted investments cannot
be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in other income and gains
in the statement of profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses
for receivables.

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative
financial assets in listed and unlisted equity investments
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available for sale are those which are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Debt securities in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market
conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale investments (continued)

After initial recognition, available-for-sale investments
are subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised
gains or losses recognised as other comprehensive
income in the available-for-sale investment revaluation
reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-
for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale investments are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively
and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss as
other income in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future
or until maturity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EABHBEME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale investments (continued)

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1
January 2018) (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general
approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs
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2.4
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the

significant financing component,

simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
exists if one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included
in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet
been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Interest income
continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

24 EREFERRBMEE)

MBEERERBR-ZF-—N\F—-F—A04
ERAZEBE RSN A THRR)E)

KBRS R 2 5 & E

BRNBEERAIRZMBEE AREE
EHEENEZENMBEEEBNIFAE
NEZEMMBEEERRSFERE -1
RAEERE Y BEEBERRBEHFEH
MHEEMTHESRBEEN) HBERIE -
AlglziEERRE—AREER R ZHEU
M EE - WERBFMERE - @ 5IFF R
BEYEAREEERREBERNEETEER
RESBMENET -

PR BOEMREERNSBNREERE
BREEFAKREREZRETEEHKRE
ERKRERER) 2 EZBAE o BFHRER
EREZRENBMBEEERNERM X (R
RONTERFAEZERNE)FIR -

BEZEEEEBNABERMRD - BR
ERGERTER - MBBMAERELRE RN
REERN  RAONERERRERBER
RABREBEEREFTROMNEK - EXEE
XA LA OOR R = R A e B R
BREASER - 558 EWE R ME[E
A E e — O -

MR EER R - FEREBEZ S BB MNK
W MERRS W ERARERELEZS
HEs . AEBREERERMEMIRDZ
AIERERERE - MRMIHSEERZWKE -
AROSEEFABREROEMA -

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018



Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 5 2% P

31 December 2018 —ZFE—NF+=-H=4+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EABHBEME(E)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that
is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot
be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset that is
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an
unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale investments

For available-for-sale investments, the Group assesses
at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Available-for-sale investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised
in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale
are not reversed through the statement of profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (policies under
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Available-for-sale investments (continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future
interest income continues to be accrued based on the
reduced carrying amount of the asset and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the statement of profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables, certain accruals and provision.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Slle@C]Ul’:‘Ht measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(policies under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under HKFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and HKAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Loans and borrowings (continued)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018
and HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 January 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group invests in certain derivative financial
instruments, such as forward currency contracts, for
trading purposes. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit
or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the actual
cost, first-in, first-out basis or weighted average basis,
where appropriate and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs
in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences

associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary

differences can be utilised.
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2.4

—ENEFZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(@

(b

©

()

Advertising income

Revenue from advertisements is recognised at the
point in time when the advertisements have been
published or broadcasted.

Circulation income

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
at the point in time when the newspaper and
magazines have been delivered.

Sale of products including contents

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the assets is
transferred to customers, generally on delivery of
products.

Provision of news and project management
services

Revenue from the provision of news and project
management services is recognised when the event
or activity takes place.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018

24 EREFERRBERE)

AR (B=2-N\E-—F—-—BBERE)

KEEF &R AWK (F)

(@

(b

©

(@

V== N

EERARESTHEHERERER -

BITRA

HEEMPARBEMSERERER -

HEEmMmERAE

HEERMBAREBEERHEBBTERP
B (—RARXNEME) ER -

FE AT RIE B E IR

R ENEREERGH W AR ZIE
BRASELRER -



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January
2018) (continued)

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Other income

Interest and investment income is recognised on an
accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Securities transactions are accounted for on a trade date
basis.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January
2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@  advertising income, when the advertisements have
been published or broadcasted,;

(b) circulation income, when the newspapers and
magazines have been delivered;

(©  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(d) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(e from the rendering of services, when the services
have been rendered;

(f) interest and investment income, on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset;

(g) securities transactions are accounted for on a trade
date basis; and

(h) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Contract liabilities (applicable from 1 January
2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which the Group has
received a consideration (or an amount of consideration
that is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
the consideration before the Group transfers goods
or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

Employee benefits
Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. Further details of the valuation of the
shares are given in note 28 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. When
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018

24 EREFERRBERE)

EBERF(E)
KR B EREZ 15 (&)

BERNEBRRHOAZAFELEEERSER
FEMHRBRMT - ST REERIR M 2 A BE
MRREEHERFEBERAaTAZHAEZR
EfFTZ— 8 - MISRBIFMHHRRER D
B2 RXF1E o MR 52 B 18 30 4 48 B9 B AR
BERKZ AR E RS IFEBIRM
RRIFFBGRFE 2 RBRAFEREFTIEE
MR# RS RB MG - RIZARIR FIA 8 -

EARGEZEEFMHBRAR RBRBEMSE - @
BRERYBERBE 2 RBY TSR -
ERBEE-—BATSAEEBIRME - ER
m%%é?ﬁ%# BER XBDEE R
57 & 1&)2\/,\?—’}/\)5)?% L RE R LR
%ﬁ°

i P #E 45 3B AR B 2 IR SRR AT - RIFE R & K
37 0 T8 A0 A5 BROR 1R 18 2 % R B Y R MR R
JE1T ° o - (EERT KRR - Bk
MR Z R FEBRE  HHUETARHE
ERRFEZREERN -

WIS E B - B A0 Rt s
AR - MASEEE R 2 BRI
R 2R EAEENESIEHHEEUR
N TSR EBIF R E BTN MR - A
i 1 s S S B A BT B BT ER - AW AR AR
REZHEBEREEERIE - MAT-E N g
Bz BREAE MO EARMEMIIETTR
2EE o

WMARTTERBREZEEZE RAESERA
FE - RS ER MR HE -



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes and other retirement benetits

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes in Hong Kong and overseas for
those employees who are eligible and have elected
to participate in the schemes. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the participating employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the schemes. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. When an employee
leaves the Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted ORSO
retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong or other
retirement benefit schemes overseas prior to his/her
interest in the Group’s employer contributions vesting
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group
may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions. In respect of the Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
the Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific amount for the employees
in Mainland China, pursuant to the local municipal
government regulations. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Termination benetfits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because bye-law 140 of the Company’s bye-
laws grants the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EABHBEME(E)

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classitication between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset
value or such event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based
on a market-based valuation technique as detailed
in note 35 to the financial statements. The valuation
requires the Group to determine the comparable public
companies (peers) and select the price multiple. In
addition, the Group makes estimates about the discount
for illiquidity and size differences. The Group classifies
the fair value of these investments as Level 3. The fair
value of the unlisted equity investments at 31 December
2018 was HK$4,524,000. Further details are included in
note 22 to the financial statements.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

Before 1 January 2018, the Group classified certain
assets as available-for-sale and recognised movements of
their fair value in equity. When the fair value declined,
management made assumptions about the decline in
value to determine whether there is an impairment that
should be recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The Group assessed at the end of each reporting period
whether there were any indicators of impairment for
these unlisted investments. These unlisted investments
were tested for impairment when there were indicators
that their carrying amounts might not be recoverable.
An impairment existed when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeded its recoverable
amount. In determining the recoverable amount,
management considered various factors, such as value
in use, available data for disposing of disposing of
such assets and other factors relevant to these unlisted
investments. The carrying amount of available-for-sale
assets as at 31 December 2017 was HK$10,264,000.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of other unlisted equity investments

Before 1 January 2018, the Group assessed at the
end of each reporting period whether there were any
indicators of impairment for its financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, including certain unlisted
investments stated at cost less impairment losses. These
unlisted investments were tested for impairment when
there were indicators that their carrying amounts might
not be recoverable. An impairment existed when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeded its recoverable amount. In determining the
recoverable amount, management considered various
factors, such as value in use, available data for disposing
of such assets and other factors relevant to these unlisted
investments. The carrying amount of an unlisted equity
investment stated at cost less impairment losses as
included in the balance of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as at 31 December 2017 was
HK$3,900,000.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type and
customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (.e., gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the media sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customers’ actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 20 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets
are tested for impairment annually and at other times
when such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of fair value of properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases or transactions. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from fair market value by reference to
independent valuations. This conclusion is supported
by an independent professionally qualified valuer
who was engaged by the Group during the year to
perform valuations on the Group’s properties. The
carrying amounts of land and buildings and investment
properties at 31 December 2018 were HK$1,018,348,000
(2017: HK$998,211,000) and HK$65,526,000 (2017:
HK$49,762,000), respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax
assets relating to recognised tax losses at 31 December
2018 was Nil (2017: HK$425,000). The amount of
unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2018 was
approximately HK$648,316,000 (2017: approximately
HK$678,773,000). Further details are contained in note
26 to the financial statements.

Claims and disputes

The Group is the subject of various claims and
disputes, mainly involving libel claims in respect of
alleged defamation, which is common in the publication
industry. Management assesses the claims and court
cases instituted against the Group on the basis of facts
and seeks legal advice when required. Moreover, the
Group is also involved in disputes as the claiming
party. In both cases, it involves subjective elements
and projected outcomes for estimation of provision for
potential liabilities or any disclosures of contingent
liabilities arising from the litigations. Further details are
contained in note 30 to the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the business of
publishing and distribution of newspapers, magazines
Canada, the United
States of America, Europe, Australia and New Zealand,

and books to readers in Hong Kong,

and sale of respective content of such publications in
Hong Kong and Mainland China.

4. RES>TER

AEBIBRERATE NEKR XH -

MR E AR EE BTN /ﬁ#&a
MERERZEY  RRNEFERTEAMHE
ELETYZHEARAR -

The Group operates as a single operating segment. REEBEAE —KEDPEE - BE—KLE D
The single operating segment is reported in a manner HAmMFELERFERB2ABRE -
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the ZHAEHM FTEKLEAREBELL D
chief operating decision-makers. The chief operating ZEBROBERRBTE  wEIREAELE
decision-makers, who are responsible for allocating BERTEZARNBIRITESE
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segment, have been identified as the executive directors
of the Company who make strategic decisions.
None of the revenue derived from any single external FA - HEREEM “*9|\¢EQ§)E'Z”517\E
customer amounted for more than 10% of the Group’s BAEBRAZ10% (ZE—+F &)
revenue during the year (2017: NiD.
Geographical information it E & R
(a) Revenue from external customers @ KEIREFZHA
2018 2017
—g-NF —
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Hong Kong and Mainland China HEERREAM
(country of domicile) (FFEED 1,100,038 1,150,252
North America SIS 291,952 315,736
Australia, New Zealand and Europe BN~ PR R K BOM 39,714 45,876
1,431,704 1,511,864

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

Geographical information (continued)

(b)  Non-current assets
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resMERE)
hEE R (E)

(b FRBEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FET

Hong Kong and Mainland China HEERRE A
(country of domicile) (BER) 1,226,176 1,226,021
North America b3 235,426 228,346
Australia, New Zealand and Europe SN~ A UM 1,502 2,089
1,463,104 1,456,456

The non-current assets information above is based

LA EEENABEEMERIES

on the locations of the assets. HE o
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -HtARKZEFE
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WAZDHT:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEF ALK A 1,426,107 -
Advertising income BEEKA - 1,196,931
Circulation income TR A - 199,560
Content sales and AREE R
news service income ¥ AR IS A - 26,852
Radio broadcasting advertising income BEEEEESWA - 23,735
Project management service income BEREERBERA - 22,220
Service income AR A - 17,297
Others Hh, - 20,585
Revenue from other sources K B E A )R 87 A
Gross rental income Hel A@EzE 5,597 4,684
1,431,704 1,511,864
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(1) Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 December 2018

5. WA -EtWARKEFRGE)

REEFEHHEA
@D DEERAEH

BEZ-F-\F+-A=1+—-HLHFE

HK$°000
FET
Type of goods or services EmfREER
Advertising income EEBA 1,127,443
Circulation income TR A 182,570
Content sales and news service income AR HE X B RSB A 27,439
Radio broadcasting advertising income BEEEEESRA 24,726
Project management service income HHEIERSE WA 32,317
Service income Rz 75 U A 13,985
Others Hib 17,627
Total revenue from contracts with customers REEFPAEHM A BE 1,426,107
Geographical markets & i T 45
Hong Kong and Mainland China BEBRFEAM
(country of domicile) (BER) 1,098,822
North America it 3= 287,571
Australia, New Zealand and Europe SEOM - R R R BOM 39,714
Total revenue from contracts with customers REEFPAHMA R 1,426,107
Timing of revenue recognition PN A
At a point in time RE— 5, 1,426,107
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

@

@

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that
were included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period:

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

5. WA -HEtWARKEFRGE)

REEFENHNBRAGE)
D  DERAEH(E)

TRARBEMIFABGLAE ZER
BEREEER WSS

2018
—2-/\¥

Circulation income

21T

HK$°000
FET

22,158

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s

obligation is summarised below:

performance
Advertisements on newspaper, magazines and
radio broadcasting

The
upon

performance obligation is satisfied
issuance of the advertisements on the
Group’s publications and upon broadcasting of
advertisements and payment is generally due
within one month, extending up to three months

for major customers.

() JERIEMT

BERASEROEEZERBAMT

HE MO RELERFE

O

BHEERAKEENMLENERESR
EREEESRERT MR —KRX—EA
RNEE REBEPMEAERE=(E
H o
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i)  Performance obligations (continued)

Circulation of newspapers, magazines and other
publications

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of these publications and payment is
generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers.

Contents sales and news services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
transmission or delivery of contents and payment
is generally due with one month, extending up to
three months for major customers.

Project management services

The performance obligation is satisfied when the
event or activity takes place, and payment is
generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers.

Other services

The performance obligation is satistied upon the
transmission or delivery of the final products
and payment is generally due with one month,
extending up to three months for major customers.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -HttWARKZZHEE)
(continued)
An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows: Hw A RKZE FEOMET
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Other income Hi A
Bank interest income RITH B A 4,046 3,351
Investment income "ERA 3,781 4,261
Dividend income from equity investments Bz IERE 2 kB A 1,752 2,028
Others EA 7,351 4,381
16,930 14,021

Gains/(losses), net
Fair value gains/(losses), net on:
Financial assets at fair value through

Wi (B8 FHE
N EWRE(ER) 2 %8
BAVEAABRER MG

profit or loss BE (3,376) 6,967
Derivative financial instruments — MESMITE - TR/FEEH T
transactions not qualifying as hedges BRI 302 867
Investment properties (note 14) wEWE (1) 7,211 5,951
Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of HEWE MEMXEEIZ
property, plant and equipment Wz, (Ei8) 1,752) 5,268
Gain on disposal of an investment property & — & &Y % 2 W& 4,786 -
Foreign exchange gains/(losses), net EH W (B8 F8 (5,573) 2,169
1,598 21,222
Total other income and gains, net Hib g A KU FEEARER 18,528 35,243
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6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BMERE
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BLERK AN Z DT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHETT FET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERRBEZFE 1 1
Interest on finance leases BMEHAOFE - 10
1 11
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBIAIEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after REBZBRBRAENZNGGEA)T 5
charging/(crediting): &IE
Notes 2018 2017
b & —E-N\F T—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Cost of inventories sold EREFERA 282,125 283,012
Depreciation e 13 86,690 77,369
Amortisation of intangible assets* BB B 15 - 9
Auditor’s remuneration % 86 BN & 5,013 4,672
Minimum leases payments under BEGEROMSL 2
operating leases = EMEEHIE 16,322 40,047
Employee benefit expense (including [EEEHMHASZ(BIEES
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): B & (B 5E8)) -
Wages, salaries, bonus, allowances T& - Fbl - fe4L
and benefits in kind FEBh & YR F 478,437 504,088
Equity-settled share option expense R 45 B R IR M T X2 28 4,312 10,706
Retirement benefit scheme R ARAE T 5t 8 4 e
contributions** 21,377 22,127
504,126 536,921
Gross rental income el A @Ezs (5,597) (4,684)
Less: Direct outgoings W EERY 3,932 3,856
Net rental income MW A F5E (1,665) (828)
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

31 December 2018

B 75 R 2R BT 5

—E-NEF+=A=+—H

7. BRBUAER (&)

Notes 2018 2017
logz3 —E-N\F —T—tfF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Impairment of trade receivables* JFE WA B SRR (B 20 6,827 984
Write-off of trade receivables* JE LT B K B+ - 285
Recovery of a loan receivable W [B1 52 A1 i 85 &9
previously written-off* JE W E B (1,500) -
Write-off of an available-for-sale AL 6 12 &
investment* 18 - 1,950
Write-off of financial assets at fair value £ FEFAEZE
through profit or loss* 2 BA TS B B 22 - 6,240
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEWE - BENMKREHR
property, plant and equipment BzEE /(W) 1,752 (5,268)
Gain on disposal of an investment HE—HEEYEZ
property Wz (4,786) -
Foreign exchange differences, net MEHZRE - R 5,573 (2,169

* The amortisation of intangible assets, impairment *
of trade receivables, write-off of trade receivables,
recovery of a loan receivable previously written-
off, write-off of an available-for-sale investment and
write-off of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are included in “Other expenses” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

sdeske

At 31 December 2018,

there were no forfeited

ek

contributions available to the Group to reduce its
contributions to retirement benefit schemes in future

years (2017: Nil).

BIVEESE BYRIRTORE - BUBERRX
Woss - U ST AT I R B UK B SR - AT
EREMBE LR A FEFABZE 2UB
BEMBFAGAEERAHEMBRAX] -

RZE-NF+-_A=+—H TEAH
RE BRI A RFEENREFFEER
R FBE( T+ F\E) o
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31 December 2018 —ZFE—NF+=-H=4+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEWMS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant AREBEEMESBRIEBMIAAB A LMHRE (L
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the mHRAID - EERRMEPIZE383D@ ~ (b) ~ (©
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), EOBERAT(BEESAmER) RHIE250
(h), (© and () of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance WENT:
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Fees e 600 600
Other emoluments: H M2 -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e ERMAEYRER 22,839 21,839
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 144 397
Employee share option benefits 12 8 I8 iR 12 A 1,981 4,459
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RKAE F 5T &1 f 128 121
25,092 26,816
25,692 27416

(@)

Independent non-executive directors

@ BIYFHTES

The fees paid to independent non-executive FRMBIYIERTEST I N2 S
directors during the year were as follows: AT

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

HK$°000 HK$000

FHET TFET

Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina ] #2838 22+ 150 150

Mr. King Richard Yun Zing ® TR L AE 180 180

Mr. Lee Cho Jat THELEE 150 150

Ms. Judy Chan PR 5 22+ 120 120

600 600

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2017: NiD.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018

TR BEABLIFATESNEM
Me(—F—EF:8)-



Notes to Financial Statements

8.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8.

(b)

Executive directors and non-executive

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

=4 AG-))

b)) BTESRIYTES

directors
Salaries, Retirement
allowances and Employee benefit
benefits  Discretionary share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses benefits  contributions  remuneration
e 2l 3= RIKER
we REUNER MEREA BRERER BEEES & A5t
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
2018 —ZE-N\F
Executive directors: BWTES:
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak Al EfE %% - 1,515 3 388 18 1,924
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles B L& - 8,494 3 316 - 8,813
Mr. Jia Hongping BT RE - 1,553 3 255 56 1,867
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis ks - 2,724 3 388 18 3,133
Mr. Lo Wing Hung Bk - 2,032 3 133 18 2,186
Mr. Siu Sai Wo B AL A - 6,521 129 501 18 7,169
- 22,839 144 1,981 128 25,092
2017 ZE—+F
Executive directors: BTES:
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak ] EE %4 - 1,511 4 869 18 2,402
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles ] HE B e A& - 7,519 4 675 - 8,198
Mr. Jia Hongping BUTEE - 1,543 54 598 49 2,244
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis 2k - 2,717 4 869 18 3,608
Mr. Lo Wing Hung BEoKELE - 2,027 4 271 18 2,320
Mr. Siu Sai Wo BtAmEAE - 6,522 327 1,177 18 8,044
- 21,839 397 4459 121 26,816

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2017: NiD.

FRBEEE SR KR B R AT () B
IR (ZT—LF )

Cia
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31 December 2018 —ZFE—NF+=-H=4+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the vyear
included three directors (2017: three directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above;
and two non-director employees (2017: two non-director
employees). Details of the remuneration of the non-
director highest paid employees are as follows:

EeEFrMnauES

FARRFHNTIUEEBRE-UESR(ZT
—tF =UER)(EMESFEHNUL LM
8 RMUIFERER(ZF—LF MUFE
E=EE) - ARFEERRFMOEEZMNE
FEBIT

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—tF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHETT FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMEEYREA 7,683 8,072
Discretionary bonuses B 15 78 4L 6 15
Employee share option benefits B E MR ER A 1,549 1,363
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIREAFHEI R 18 20
9,256 9,470

The number of non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

MeBUTHENZIEERSTHNEE A
T

Number of employees

EBEEAY
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,00178 7T £4,000,00078 7T 1 1
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,0017% 7T 2£5,000,000/%8 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 7T 25,500,000/ 7T 1 -
2 2
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INCOME TAX

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

10. FRrE#H

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of EENSHDRFAREBEL 2HFHER
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits Fise ) BA165% (= B — + 4F : 16.5%) B =& #
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits e RNEM R ERB RN 2B IE IR A
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates EREAEEBRE R Z2BITHERAE o
of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Current: BV ER -
Charge for the year: FAXE:
The People’s Republic of China RE AR
(including Hong Kong) (BEEB) 11,800 16,948
Elsewhere EoAth i [ 503 496
Under/(over)provision in BEFERETIR
prior years (ERER 1) (2,524) 1,569
Deferred (note 26) i E (Fft 5£26) 11,013 4,513
Total tax charge for the year F R X B 20,792 23,526
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31 December 2018 —ZFE—NF+=-H=4+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FTB#H (&)
A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable BARNTI R EAEKBHOMBE AR FERR, T
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for EEERAERMEAEZ EARBER S
the countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and M (ER)2HBERY (Ee)  EEERERBX
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the HECHERS (Ee)ZHE URER
tax charge/(credit) at the effective tax rates, and a MEBEVEEBRR)BERBT R HERNOT
reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory
tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:
Australia,
New Zealand
Hong Kong Mainland China North America and Europe Total
BN FEE
B FE R L& REM At
HK$'000 % HK$000 % HK$000 % HK$000 % HK$000 %
FET FET FET FET FET

2018 —E2-N\%
Profit/(loss) before tax BRBATER,(BE) 69,738 (4,474) (1,989) (18,240) 45,035
Tax at the statutory tax rate REEMEFEZHE 11,507 16.5 1,119) 250 (843) 424 (5,042) 276 4,503 10.0
Lower tax rate for specific provinces of {87 %& {73k 77 % & 7 F9

local authority B R BE & - - (82) 1.8 - - - - 82 (0.2
Lower tax rate at 8.25% for assessable 1A & /8 f) JE 5 % i 7l i

profit up to HK$2 million in Hong 2EEBTLIES 2% MK

Kong EREiE 165) (0.2 - - - - - - 165) (0.4
Effect on opening deferred tax of PERESHHMNELRE

increase in rates k424 - - - - (66) 3.3 - - (66) 0.1)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of MA{EHME 2 & BMHIARE

previous periods (80) 0.1) - - (2,444) 1229 - - (2,524) 5.6)
Profits and losses attributable to joint & & (> ¥ k¥ E A RS

ventures and associates B RER 1,107)  (1.6) (205) 4.6 (1,314)  66.1 - - (2,626) (5.8
Income not subject to tax BEMNH WA (3,131) 4.5) 4) 0.1 (1,415) 71.1 - - (4,550) (10.1)
Expenses not deductible for tax LIEIE P 2,694 3.9 630  (141) 4,076 (204.9) 929  (5.1) 8329 185
Tax losses utilised from previous periods & A/ £3f8 2 B 15 518 (2,680)  (3.8) (74) 17 - - - - 275549 6
Tax losses not recognised TERRZHBER 2,259 3.2 911  (20.4) - - 4,161 (22.8) 7,331 16.3
Temporary differences not recognised ~— WHEBR 2 BEEEE 2,309 3.3 - - 9,763  (490.9) - - 12,072 268
Others Hity 1,271 1.8 - - - - 53 0.3) 1,324 29
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s RASEERBEFEL

effective rate RERS/(E%) 12,877 185 57 (13) 7,757 (390.0) 101 (0.6) 20,792  46.2
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31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

INCOME TAX (continued) 10. Fi8Hi(&)
Australia,
New Zealand
Hong Kong Mainland China North America and Europe Total
RN - AR
B FE A % BN BF
HK$'000 %  HK$000 %  HK$000 %  HKS000 %  HK$000 %
FHET FET FET FHET FET

2017 ZE—tF
Profit/(loss) before tax BHAET/ (BR) 80,563 (2,403) (131 (13,152) 04,875
Tax at the statutory tax rate REERR;FEZRE 13,293 16.5 (602) 25.0 177) 135.1 (3,526 26.8 8,988 139
Lower tax rate for specific provinces ERIE 707 EEHH

of local authority B R BE & - - m 0.1 - - - - () -
Effect on opening deferred tax BERSYBMELTHEA

of increase in rates b2 - - - - 3,012 (2,299.2) - - 3,012 4.6
Adjustments in respect of current tax ~ AEHE 2 MR IARE

of previous periods 844 1.0 B B 725 (533.5) B - 1,569 2.4
Profits and losses attributable to BECERBERA

joint ventures and associates EEENRER 113 0.1 (102) 4.2 (1,804) 14458 - - (2,109) (3.2)
Income not subject to tax BEMHZ WA (2,282) (2.8) (133) 55 (23) 17.6 - (2,438) (3.7)
Expenses not deductible for tax LRI b 2,560 3.2 572 (237 787 (600.8) 965 (73) 4,884 75
Tax losses utilised from previous periods i F IATE B 2 B 15 5 48 (1,363) (17) (41) 17 - - - (1,404) Q2
Tax losses not recognised TEERHBER 8,504 10.6 462 (19.2) - 2818 (214) 11,844 18.3
Temporary differences not recognised ~— WHEBR 2 BEEEE (925) (1.2) - - 106 (809 - - (819) (13)
Tax charge/(credit) at the Group’s RASEERBEHEL

effective rate BERAX /(%) 20578 255 155 (64 2,536 (19359) 257 19 23506 363
The share of tax attributable to joint ventures &3 RS A B FE G T I8 /31,931,000
and associates amounting to HK$1,931,000 (2017 (= if‘ti 2,350,000/ 7T) - u‘f’)\nﬂ?
HK$2,350,000) is included in “Share of profits and losses BHaRRNIELREL P EREZL ARG & E
of joint ventures and associates” on the face of the BIA -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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31 December 2018 —&F

11.

12.

% s % P &

—NFE+ZH=+—H

DIVIDENDS 11. KB
2018 2017
—2-NF  —T—t%
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Interim — HK2 cents (2017: HK2 cents) HHY — g AOE A A2 (1L
per ordinary share (ZT— 5 284) 17,322 17,322
Proposed: Bk -
Final — HK2 cents (2017: HK4 cents) NI B — R @28
per ordinary share (== — ’t$ 47810) 17,322 34,644
Special — HK10 cents (2017: HK4 cents) FRIIR S — BRE @A 1078
per ordinary share TIJJ(_ ’t$ 47810) 86,611 34,644
121,255 86,610
The proposed final dividend and special dividend for NEF 7 BRI B REFRIRBALEARRD
the year are subject to the approval of the Company’s AIREREEREBAFTERNS EHE - HAE
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. B o
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. AR EBEREFEABRGERER

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings
per share amounts presented for the years ended
31 December 2018 and 2017 in respect of a dilution
as the impact of the share options had an anti-
dilutive effect in the basic earnings per share amounts

presented.
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2018

B 75 R 2R BT 5

13. 1% BERR®E

—FE-NEFA=+—H

Furniture,
fixtures,
Land and Plant and Leasehold equipment Motor
buildings machinery improvements and others vehicles Total
TR BExR HEWE BA - KB
#F #aR £ RERHM AE CE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
31 December 2018 —E-N\E¥
+ZA=t+-~8
At 31 December 2017 and RZT—t5F
at 1 January 2018: +ZA=+—-HkK
—Z-)\&—-A-R:
Cost or valuation RAES A E 998,211 473,331 52,972 207,813 13,690 1,746,017
Accumulated depreciation A E - (263,029) (30,878) (174,833) (5,687)  (474,427)
Net carrying amount REFE 998,211 210,302 22,094 32,980 8,005 1,271,590
At 1 January 2018, net of RZE-NF-A—H
accumulated depreciation Mmer REHHTE 998,211 210,302 22,094 32,980 8,003 1,271,590
Additions NE - 13,479 7,857 3,864 250 25,450
Disposals HE - (4,978) a187) (96) (227) (5,488)
Transfers to investment BRERENE
properties (16,060) - - - - (16,060)
Depreciation provided FRMERE
during the year (32,117)  (35,346) (5,168) (10,930) (3,129)  (86,690)
Surplus on revaluation ERAH 71,344 - - - - 71,344
Exchange realignment X RHE (3,030) - (100) (82) (72) (3,284)
At 31 December 2018, net of ~ RZT—/\F
accumulated depreciation +ZRA=+—-HB#k
ZEE 1,018,348 183,457 24,496 25,736 4,825 1,256,862
At 31 December 2018: RZZB-N\E
+ZRA=+—8:
Cost or valuation KA E R E 1,018,348 300,721 32,465 192,922 11,085 1,555,541
Accumulated depreciation Rt E - (117,269 (7,969) (167,186) (6,260)  (298,679)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,018,348 183,457 24,496 25,736 4,825 1,256,862
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

13. W% BERKREE)

Furniture,
fixtures,
Land and  Construction  Plant and Leasehold equipment Motor
buildings in progress  machinery  improvements and others vehicles Total
Tk BER MEME KMl -RE
BT EEIR e £iE  REREM A E At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
31 December 2017 “E-t%
tZA=+-H
At 1 January 2017: —T—tF-A-H
Cost or valuation RAEREE 509,773 222,799 674,705 94,211 189,073 10567 1,701,128
Accumulated 2EHME
depreciation - - (449,745) (83,570) (171,237) (2,473) (707,025)
Net carrying amount REFE 509,773 222,799 224,960 10,041 17,836 8,094 994,103
At 1 January 2017, net RZE—t5—-H—H
of accumulated R EHHE
depreciation 509,773 222,799 224,960 10,641 17,836 8,094 994,103
Additions NE - 198,020 24,060 23,011 23,629 3,311 272,631
Disposals HE - - 1,792) (380) 131 (156) (2,459)
Transfer B 420,819 (420,819) - - - - -
Depreciation provided FANERE
during the year (16,716) - (36,926) (11,894) (8,490) (3,343) (77,369
Surplus on revaluation EfA% 79,912 - - - - - 79,912
Exchange realignment EHAE 4,423 - - 116 136 97 4,772
At 31 December 2017, ~ RZE—+%F
net of accumulated +-A=+—-H
depreciation k2 E 998,211 - 210,302 22,094 32,980 8,003 1,271,590
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+%F
+ZA=+-8:
Cost or valuation RABERMAE 998,211 - 473,331 52972 207,813 13,690 1,746,017
Accumulated REME
depreciation - - (263,029) (30,878) (174,833) (5,687) (474,427)
Net carrying amount RHFE 998,211 - 210,302 22,094 32,980 8,003 1,271,590

RESVENMEE FRELER AQFE
%Ei?&%’zlié‘%ﬁ’\]iiﬁzﬁﬁifaﬁi*ﬁﬁ
&= B|E - I%&E%oﬂS%@Zﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬂﬂ

The directors of the Company have determined that the
Group’s land and buildings consist of three classes of
asset, i.e., commercial, industrial and residential, based

on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property. REFELR_ZE—/\FT+_A=+—HRE

All of the Group’s land and buildings were revalued
on 31 December 2018 based on valuations performed
by Chung, Chan & Associates, an independent
professionally qualified wvaluer, at HK$1,018,348,000.
Each year, the Group’s chief financial officer decides
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s chief financial officer has
discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results once a year when the valuation is
performed for annual financial reporting.
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

A revaluation surplus of HK$71,344,000 resulting from
the revaluations on the Group’s land and buildings, net
of income tax effect of HK$11,239,000, has been credited
to other comprehensive income during the year.

13.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

ME - BERREE)
RAFER AAEELHREF EFE

A 7 E B $71,344,00058 7T (F0BR 11,239,000
BILREAH B DA LM EIk S

Further particulars of the Group’s land and buildings REB T NIEFZE—FFIFEHNE2060E
are included on pages 226 to 227. F2278 o
Fair value hierarchy AFEERFE
The following table illustrates the fair value TRBRIAEETHMEEFHNRAFESES
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s land and F
buildings:
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using
R-ZE-NFE+ZA=+—-HANAFEFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EBTE 0 EATBRE EATUHEE
£ 35 8 B AfE BAfE .
(B8R — (E&/=) (E8&=) CELl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value 5 % RN FEE
measurement for: e
Commercial properties =) % Ly % - - 166,969 166,969
Industrial properties L ESY)| % - - 817,587 817,587
Residential properties FEWE - - 33,792 33,792
- - 1,018,348 1,018,348

Fair value measurement

as at 31 December 2017 usmg

RZE—+tF+_A=T—HBNAFEFEKH
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1D (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERWY 0 BEAUEBR EATAER
7 ¥R (B LN E] i A\ E \
(EH—) (EH= EH=) &5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value SEHANTE
measurement for: =
Commercial properties HEYE - - 159,076 159,076
Industrial properties TEMHE - - 806,544 806,544
Residential properties FEWE - - 32,591 32,591
- - 998,211 998,211
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value REAFERN BIEEER—KER_2H $§;
measurements between Level 1 and 2 and no transfers BEREASEBEHER =2 A AFEFE2(ZE
into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil). LF )
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. ¥ -BENLSEE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) APEESERFNEE)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DERAFESHEANSER="NAFETFEN
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: AR -
Commercial Industrial Residential
properties properties properties
[EEX/ES ITEME EEYHE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T TET TET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 RZE—EF—HA—HH
BREE 134,786 348,208 26,779
Additions NE - 420,819 -
Depreciation provided during the year F R E & E (3,825) (12,013) (878
Net gain from fair value adjustment TE E 2 T U P i R
recognised in other comprehensive HRE A FEAEN
income F U = 25,209 49,530 5,173
Exchange realignment b H 7% 2,906 - 1,517
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 RZE—t4F
and 1 January 2018 T+TZA=1+—H8kK
—ZE-N\F—H—H
M ERmEE 159,076 806,544 32,591
Transfer to investment properties HEEREME (16,060) - -
Depreciation provided during the year & 3T & & 5 (4,308) (26,692) (1,057)
Net gain from fair value adjustment EEMEER S ER
recognised in other comprehensive R E R ERAEDY
income F U 30,312 37,735 3,297
Exchange realignment HE 5, 58 B (1,991 - (1,039

Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 RZ=ZT—/\F

tZA=+—H

B AR E B 166,969 817,587 33,792
The fair values of the land and buildings were THREFHAFEDERBLEE  RBES
determined using the comparison approach based on SEUMETRZEMEN R - K/ &
market comparables of similar properties and with R R FRAERRELAEMETE -

adjustments made on factors such as location, size, age,
condition and aspects of the properties.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. N¥E BERREE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) PEESERFNEE)
Below is a summary of the key inputs to the valuation UWTAR T REFHEMEANEZZERG A
of land and buildings: BERHE:
Range (weighted average)

Significant & 3 (hnRE T8

unobservable inputs 2018 2017

ERAFRABEHAE —E-N\F —T—tF
Commercial properties Adjusted price per square foot HK$8,325 — HK$9,805 HK$6,539 — HK$9,124
EEXZES REEFFHRER 8,325 7T - 9,805/8 7T 6,539/ 70 — 9,124/8 7T
Industrial properties  Adjusted price per square foot HK$2,155 - HK$2,349 HK$2,164 — HK$2,552
TEWE ARG HRER 2,1558 7T - 2,349 7T 2,164 7T - 2,552 T
Residential properties Adjusted price per square foot HK$8,896 - HK$9,857 HK$9,968 — HK$11,937
EEME ARG FHRER 8,896 T - 9,857 T 99088 T - 11,9378 7T

The Group has determined that the highest and best
use of the commercial and certain industrial properties
at the measurement date would be to convert those
properties for residential purposes. For strategic reasons,
the properties are not being used in this manner. While
for the remaining industrial properties, the Group has
determined that the highest and best use of them at
the measurement date remained to be for industrial
purpose.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted price
per square foot would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the land and buildings.

AREEERE RHEH AHEAXES
TIEVENEARERERAER/BZEY
XERETHE ENREEH ZFWE
BRI KRMPER - ERNEBRIEYE - AE
BELRE NFER ExARERER
BREEREIXZRE -

KRBABBYTHITREBREBELA(TR)EE
B REFOHRFEKRNE LI (TE) -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEREE 49,762 42,016
Disposal H & (5,650) -
Transfer from owner-occupied properties EEEERYME 16,060 -

Net gain from fair value adjustments N E AW TR (M 5Es)

(note 5) 7,211 5.951
Exchange realignment PE W 38 & 1,857) 1,795
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HB®EmE 65,526 49,762
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14.

% s % P &

~NE+=A=+—A

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The directors of the Company have determined that
properties
based on the nature, characteristics and

the Group’s investment are commercial
properties,
risks of each property. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2018 based
on valuations performed by Chung, Chan & Associates,
an independent professionally qualified valuer, at an
aggregate value of HK$65,526,000. Each year, the
Group’s chief financial officer decides to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria
include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group’s chief financial officer has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results once a year when the valuation is performed for

annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details of
which are included in note 31(a) to the financial

statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on page 227.
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ﬂE’METEEH?% #1665,526,000/8 7T © & F
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s
properties:

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

14. REWE(E)

AFEERTEE
fair value TRETAEEREMEN AT ETESER
investment

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018 using

R-ZB-NE+=-A=+-BNATEFTERA

Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ERWE EAUBRE EAFUEE
H R E A WAE
(&) (FH=) (F/=) a &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Recurring fair value SEHANTFE
measurement: e
Commercial properties BEXUES ~ - 65,526 65,526
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using
RIBE—tF+A=+—BNRATEFERRS
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level D (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
mEMS BEAAER EATNAEE
B R E W AE wH\AE
(FH—) (FEH ) (FH=) a&f
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T TFET FET
Recurring fair value FEMENFEE
measurement: e
Commercial properties BEX/ES - - 49,762 49,762
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14.

—ENEFZA=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value

measurements between Level 1 and 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).

14. REWE(E)

DFPEERFEE)
RAFER BEEER - LREFR_2HE

BLRBASBLHER=AFEFE(CZT—
tEFEE) -

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DERATFTEERAZEL -—NAFETED
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: AR -
HK$000
T8T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2017 RZE—tLF—A—ANKRHEE 42,016
Net gain from fair value adjustment recognised in EREFEAEME A R FRER
other income and gains, net in profit or loss BROKELAFEFAENFh = 5,951
Exchange realignment b 5 38 & 1,795
Carrying amount at 31 December 2017 and RZZE—tHF+_A=+—HR
1 January 2018 ZE-NF-A—BHNEREEE 49,762
Disposal e (5,650
Transfer from owner-occupied properties EREBBRAME 16,060
Net gain from fair value adjustment recognised in EREANEMKA RIS FEF
other income and gains, net in profit or loss BRHOKEBATFEAENFRE 7,211
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B (1,857)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2018 R N\F+_A=+—HWEREA 65,526

The fair
determined using the comparison approach based on

value of the investment properties was
market comparables of similar properties and with
adjustments made on factors such as location, size, age,
condition and aspect of the properties. The weighted
average range of the adjusted price per square foot is
HK$8,464 to HK$9,952 (2017: HK$5,639 to HK$9,191).

The Group has determined that the highest and best
use of the commercial properties at the measurement
date would be to convert those properties for residential
purposes. For strategic reasons, the properties are not
being used in this manner.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted price
per square foot would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.
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OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. Htt\EEEE
With
With finite indefinite
useful lives useful life Total
AR &R
AEAFEH AEAFH &5t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
31 December 2018 —E-N\HF
+=A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2018 and RZZE-N\F-A—BK
31 December 2018, net of accumulated —E-N\F
amortisation and impairment +ZA=+—H82
RANE - B RET
i &R (A - 100 100
At 31 December 2018: RZE—NF
+-A=+—H
Cost BN 24,904 100 25,004
Accumulated amortisation and RET#EELBE
impairment (24,904) - (24,904)
Net carrying amount REFE - 100 100
31 December 2017 —E—+t5F
+=A=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2017, net of RZ_E—-—tF—-—H—RAZ
accumulated amortisation and BAE - Bk BT
impairment 5 KR 1E 9 100 109
Amortisation provided during the year 4 [N % {5 & §8 (€©)) - (©))
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF
+=Z—A=+—H - 100 100
At 31 December 2017: RZE—+F
+=—A=+—H
Cost DN 24,904 100 25,004
Accumulated amortisation and RET#EERBE
impairment (24,904) - (24,904)
Net carrying amount REFE - 100 100
As at 31 December 2018, the intangible asset with RZE—N\F+_A=1+—H ERAFEHF
an indefinite useful life represents a motor vehicle v\ EERSEXELIHE -

registration mark.
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16.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

—ENEFZA=+—H

16. REELEEZRE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET TET

Share of net assets FEREEFE 57,666 64,706
Particulars of the Group’s joint ventures, all of which ARREERAZAERGEREZHEBN

are indirectly held by the Company, are as follows:

T

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED

Place of Nominal value Percentage of
incorporation/ of issued share/ ownership interest
registration and registered attributable to the Principal
Name business capital Group activity
=5 £5)
AL RO mEE rEEEM
=x BRREE R AMER FEEESZEILE IEEX
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Sing Tao Daily Limited Canada Canadian dollar 25 25 Newspaper
YN (“CA$” 10,000 publishing
Class A WMERLT
common shares
10,0000 7T
(Tanse )
BRIAEER
Sing Tao Newspapers Canada CA$2,021,871 50 50 Newspaper
(Canada 1988) Limited JfNZE X Series 1 publishing
common HREET

shares and
CA$15,780,809
Series 2
common shares
2,021,871 /07T
F—HEETBRK
15,780,809 00 7T
FEREEBR

Annual Report 2018
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 16. REELEZRE(E)
Sing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988) Limited is Sing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988) Limited
considered a material joint venture of the Group. The WHREAEBZ—HBERAEELE - TX7
following table illustrates the summarised financial B BSing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988)
information in respect of Sing Tao Newspapers (Canada Limited 7 A ER B2 (B BERERE
1988) Limited adjusted for any differences in accounting AN EGERREEESR)
policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
financial statements:
2018 2017
A —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET TET
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIReEEEB 54,427 57,685
Other current assets EMmE&E 47,751 58,529
Total current assets MBEEBE 102,178 116,214
Non-current assets ERBEE 40,651 47,196
Trade payables FE TR K 5,172 4,279
Other payables and accruals E b FE S 3B & B R SRIE 16,778 24,846
Total current liabilities meaEeE 21,950 29,125
Non-current financial liabilities FERBUBEE 6,394 7,595
Net assets BEEFE 114,485 126,690
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HEAREBEN G & dHE
joint venture: 2R 7 R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE 2 A RO 50% 50%
The Group’s share of net assets and the RAEBZEEEEFEER
carrying amount of investment in the joint A& PXEE ZREE
venture 57,242 63,345
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17.
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INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

16. REELEZREE)

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T %
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Revenue WA 322,611 332,302
Interest income BB A 615 499
Depreciation and amortisation e & (5,337) (5,147)
Tax i 18 (2,810) (4,303)
Profit and total comprehensive income for AN [E @ F K& 2 MUk = 4258
the year 7,652 12,261
The following table illustrates the financial information TRIWRAEBRFEMETITEANEEDE
of the Group’s joint venture that is not individually Bt & &R
material:
2018 2017
ZE-N\F T—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Share of the profits and total comprehensive %3 {l H & 1[0 5ll iff 5 TN & KX HY
income for the year of the remaining joint BREDERFEE R R
venture not individually material 1@”& =B 412 532
Carrying amount of the Group’s investment 785 B A H &[5 5 T &
in the remaining joint venture not ANEELEZRENR
individually material mE 424 1,361
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. REBERAIZRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FETT
Share of net assets FE(EEEFE 16,997 10,260
Loan to an associate m— A EQRRENER 5,600 5,600
Less: Impairment of a loan to an associate i : [ —ME & AFIEHME
RZRE (1,057) 1,057)
21,540 14,803
Classified as current assets DEERBEE (4,543) -
16,997 14,803
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17.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The loan to an associate included in the Group’s current
assets (2017: non-current assets) with a net carrying
amount of HK$4,543,000 (2017: HK$4,543,000) as at
31 December 2018 is unsecured, bears interest at 1%
per annum, and is repayable on 2 December 2019, with
a repayment on demand clause at the discretion of
the Group. As at 31 December 2017, as the loan was
not expected to be repaid within 12 months after the
reporting period, the loan was included in non-current
assets.

During the vyears ended 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2017, there were no movements in the
impairment of a loan to an associate.

Particulars of the Group’s associates, all of which are
indirectly held by the Company, are as follows:

17.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

\BERAR2REE)

i
75 2 )\¢+:ﬂ5+—5'$%5ﬁ§b;ﬁ

%E 7%4 >43 000,% T(=ZF t Fg >43 000,%

M- B AT RENERABERR
BRI FARFFE  WARZT—NF+=
A—REE YAAASERBRERER
MER - R—FT—tF+-_A=+—H AR
EHHE AEARNBERR T —EARNEE -
BERDAAERBEE -

REBEZE-F-\F+_A=t—-Ak=_F—t
i‘f—%ﬂ + AR - MBS AR

{8 1) B R 1AL 0 B U 2

ARRBEFAEZAEERZE R
m

AlzHB

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary Percentage of ownership
registration and share capital/ interest attributable
Name business registered capital to the Group Principal activities
TR BRE ERTEER AEEEERA
=X RGE RE/ZERER EEZADL FTEX®
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt F
Bastille Post Company Hong Kong HK$36,290,000 30 30 Internet and mobile
Limited 55 36,290,00078 7T media business
BtoBRERAT ER 1)
//IL ng ﬁ% Az % ﬁ'%
IREEDSERERE  People’s Republic of RMB15,400,000 30 30 Provision of on-
BRAR(EESE] China registered capital line and off-line
HEEAR £ A R #15,400,0007C corporate and
A ER vocational training

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not
individually material:

and related
services

RRMAE EFIER
ﬂ:%;ﬁﬂ'&%iu DN&
18 8 AR 7%

TRINRAEBERME TEANEE QA
YRR ER:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Share of the associates’ profits and total DAEHEE RRIARFE &N K&

comprehensive income for the year 2HE =2 7,137 1,148

Carrying amount of the Group’s investments AN [ B Q\ AlZRAR
in the associates REE 21,540 14,803
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18. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 18. EERRAFEFAHMZE KW ZE 2
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BUHERE MHEERE
INCOME/AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

2018 2017
A —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET TET
Equity investments designated at fair IBEHBER QA FEFTAHEHAM
value through other comprehensive EHRBZEZHERE
income
Listed equity investments, at fair value IRERMERE  BAVE 47 -
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE
Listed equity securities, at fair value EIRAES  BATE - 47
Unlisted debt securities, at fair value EMEBES  BHAFE - 10,217
- 10,264

The above equity investments were irrevocably
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income as at 1 January 2018 as the Group considers
these investments to be strategic in nature.

In the prior year, the gross gain in respect of the
Group’s available-for-sale investments recognised in
other comprehensive income amounted to HK$816,000.
In addition, the Group had another available-for-sale
investment which was stated at cost less impairment of
HK$1,950,000 because the range of recoverable fair value
estimates was so significant that the directors were of
the opinion that their fair value could not be measured
reliably. This investment’s financial performance was
poor during the prior year and in the opinion of the
directors, the investment cost was not recoverable.
Accordingly, the investment cost of HK$1,950,000 (note
7) was written off during the year ended 31 December
2017.
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INVENTORIES 19. F&
2018 2017
—E-NF —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FET
Raw materials R4 ¥t 58,378 54,647
Finished goods BB A 1,097 1,013
59,475 55,660
TRADE RECEIVABLES FE W BR X
2018 2017
—®-N\f —E—tf
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FET
Trade receivables & U BR SR 383,896 426,424
Impairment R E (20,710) (15,016)
363,186 411,408
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly BRTHEP —MRARAMNRI  NEEEE

on credit, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally for a period of one month, extending up to
three months for major customers. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

BEFPzEZTE2RDEHRTLALT  EEH
—RA—EA TEEFPARRE=@AH - &

EFARBRSIEER - K%Eﬁﬁﬁ*%
18 & U5 R 3% 4 5 B AR A I EEEE

%WM%%M1ETH%°mWEEFM
WA BMARN &R - EEE LRBTBEEARN
SEREERTIERESTILEFER
B BEERREFZEN - AEEYL EH
ﬁ%%%mm%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

RAY - BBRERSRE
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end

of the reporting period, based on payment due date

and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

20. EWERR(Z)

RBmEHR - EUIRFRIEFRR A &
RERBERZEREIWEINDT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Current to 30 days BIHR 2= 30Kk 216,941 246,074
31 to 60 days 312 60K 47,456 50,877
61 to 90 days 61E90K 29,299 36,206
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 21,123 21,098
Over 120 days HBiE120% 48,367 57,153
363,186 411,408
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment FEWEERREEERENEESH M T
of trade receivables are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FEIT
At beginning of year F 47 15,016 15,950
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BRI EEE (M E7) 6,827 084
Amounts written off as uncollectible AN BE U o) T il 85 Y & ®E (1,104) (1,962)
Exchange realignment bE X 3 & 29) 44
At end of year F 20,710 15,016

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31
December 2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
and customer type and rating). The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off
if past due for more than one year and are not subject
to enforcement activity.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. BWRERRAR(E)
Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 REBZE-ZE—-N\E+=-B=+—HILEFEERE
December 2018 (continued) ERMEREERNFTo®RE(E)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk BERAAEEEAREEETEMEREZN
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a =ERBRERENNMT :
provision matrix:
As at 31 December 2018 N-—E—-NE+=-BA=+—H
Past due
&
Current to 31 to 60 61 to 90 91 to 120 Over 120
30 days days days days days Total
BHZE30X 31FE60K 61FE90K 91F120Kk HiB120X N
Expected credit loss rate iﬁ HERBLX 0.15% 0.26% 1.59% 2.38%  28.48% 5.39%
Gross carrying amount A
(HK$'000) (? BT 217,277 47,581 29,771 21,637 67,630 383,896
Expected credit losses EHERAEX
(HK$°000) (FA&L 336 125 472 514 19,263 20,710
Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31 RBE-ZE—tF+-A=+—HLFERE
December 2017 BB EREIREE
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade FALMERERREREBE(R_E—tF
receivables, which was measured based on incurred +ZA=+—HRERE L ER %395)’?
credit losses under HKAS 39, as at 31 December E£EBELF2)TER R E R FE KR
2017 was a provision for individually impaired trade Z ¥EE15,016,0008 7T - AR BEHEREEAR
receivables of HK$15,016,000 with a carrying amount 426,424,000 TC °
before provision of HK$426,424,000.
The individually impaired trade receivables as at RZZE—+tF+ZA=+—RH  ErRENE
31 December 2017 related to customers that were in WER T EBE T RE#E XA F B R 5
financial difficulties or were in default in interest and/or REWEP - B HE T E 265 W AR K -
principal payments and only a portion of the receivables
was expected to be recovered.
The ageing analysis of trade receivables as at RZEB—+F+_A=+—0 REFSG:
31 December 2017 that were neither individually nor #E Bl 853955 118 51l 2k &= 88 72 7% 30 A% Rl (B /9 FE UK
collectively considered to be impaired under HKAS 39 ERFAERER DT T -
is as follows:
2017
—T—+F
HK$°000
FET
Neither past due nor impaired BT 4 %60 B T B R (B 246,074
Less than 30 days past due pail= e E/\\SOEE 50,877
31 to 90 days past due B HA31F 90K 36,206
Over 91 days past due 1 HA R 381K 78,251
411,408
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20.

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year ended 31
December 2017 (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that had a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company were of the opinion
that no provision for impairment under HKAS 39 was
necessary in respect of these balances as there had
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

20.

21.

FE e BR K (42)

REBZ-F-—tHF+-A=1+-HLEFERE
EREERE3RMEE)

EARTEREZEBEERESERZH
ZHCEFPHEMA  RELBIITMRYE -

BMEYERECEREERDIERSE TEL
BEF RERBAKEIZNLHERI - RIE
NEES  ARREERAR AEEHREAR
RIBEF LS ERNERIRBNERERE - B
FRERERYBEANE  BINARRKA
EHWOBERER -

ANFE HUERRERAEMEE

2018 2017
—E-)\f —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Prepayments TER R IR 12,046 11,163
Deposits and other receivables & Rk H M pE Y RIE 88,213 88,910
100,259 100,073

Other deposits classified as non-current DERIERBDEE ZEMIR

assets ® (65,953) (55,495)

Current portion BB 5 34,306 44,578

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental
deposits and utility deposits. Where applicable, an
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
by considering the probability of default of comparable
companies with published credit ratings. In the situation
where no comparable companies with credit ratings
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated
by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the
historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts
of future economic conditions, as appropriate. As
at 31 December 2018, the Group assessed the loss
allowance under the application of HKFRS 9 was
insignificant.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.
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22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

22. RAFEFAEERZVBEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET TET
Listed equity securities, at fair value ERAES  ZATE 10,226 22,126
Unlisted debt securities, at fair value FEMEBES  HAFE 70,379 73,709
Other unlisted equity investment, at fair HMFErmERMRE -
value AR E 4,524 -
Other unlisted equity investment, at cost HMFErmERMRE -
BRFE - 3,900
Portion classified as current assets SEARBEE 2HBH 85,129 99,735
Other unlisted investments, at fair value and HAIE TR E » A FE
included in non-current assets NEtAEREEE 11,249 -
Total financial assets at fair value through ZAFEFTAEBRZEZ
profit or loss MBEE® 96,378 99,735

The above investments as at 31 December 2018 were
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss as they were held for trading.

In the prior year, the Group had other unlisted
investments which were classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss in their entirety on
the basis that the investments contained one or more
embedded derivatives. These investments were stated at
cost less impairment because the range of reasonable
fair value estimates of the embedded derivatives was so
significant that the directors were of the opinion that
their fair value could not be measured reliably. Following
an impairment assessment by management, certain
of these investments totalling HK$6,240,000 (note 7)
were identified as financially non-performing and were
written off during the year ended 31 December 2017,
as in the opinion of the directors, the investments had
been impaired and were not recoverable.

NE-N\FFTA=+—H LAKRESE
RBEBEEREE A FEFABRER MG

REF AEEEEMIFLTRECKES
*Iﬁ‘iylﬁfﬁ)\‘ﬁﬁiiﬂZﬁ%ﬁZ%Z‘%i\

MOBREATFEFABRRZMBEE -
Mﬁ?xéfhzﬁﬁi$/ﬁﬁi£ﬂ@§ﬂi’\ CRESBB®RA
ATETENGEAFENBFHEEARKX
NBEERR RFETEAETE &K'
EEETRENGR BN LAEEAH
6,240,000 TLHI & T E R & (M aE7) I 75
ERTREE EOERBE-_T—tF+
“A=T-HLEFEAME REAZEFR
A REBEDERERTAIRE -
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. ROAFEFAEBZRZUBEE(E)
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)
The Group has an unlisted equity investment which was MAFERN  AEBFHEREEM B REER
classified as a financial asset at fair value through profit FORBTIOEAERAFEFABRERE U
or loss under HKFRS 9 in the current year. In the prior BEZHFLTEZERE REF  ERE
year, this investment was classified as a financial asset E-HEAEERARNTELEZRE B %
at fair value through profit or loss in its entirety under ZREEHDERB B G ERERET
HKAS 39, on the basis that the investment contained BAVFEFABRREZPEE E L ZE K AR
one or more embedded derivatives, and was stated at ERE R RABRARTELANEGRE
cost less impairment because the range of reasonable ANFEHFOEEARAKR  URAAFEER
fair value estimates of the embedded derivatives was B AFETEAEMTE RAFEA -
so significant that the Company’s directors were of BREEEMEMEERFIORIBT 2R FER
the opinion that its fair value could not be measured E o HREREER=ZE—\F+-A=1+—HE
reliably. During the year, this investment was revalued A %8 37 F 2 (B Ah Brilliant Appraisal Limited
on 31 December 2018 based on valuation performed EITZHEEMNR R FE4,524,0008 7T ©
by Brilliant Appraisal Limited, an independent
professionally qualified wvaluer, at a fair value of
HK$4,524,000 according to the fair value requirements
under HKFRS 9.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not intend RZZE-NE+ZA=1+—8 TEETHR
to dispose of certain unlisted investments with the AR ZE A & 48 BRE E 711,249,00078 7T
aggregate carrying amount of HK$11,249,000 within the ZETIHLEMEKE At HEFAERD
next twelve months and therefore they were included BE -
in non-current assets.
23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23, BeRESEEEH
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHETT T T
Cash and bank balances Be MIBITHES 282,600 295,029
Non-pledged time deposits EmEAE BT S 245,027 222,288
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFBEER 527,627 517,317

At the end of the reporting period, the cash
and bank balances of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$34,361,000 (2017:
HK$33,394,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and twelve months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances and deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.
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24.

25.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date,
is as follows:

B 75 R 2R BT 5
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24. BNRRRRE

RBERR  BNEALREBERERAER

BZ R &M

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$000 HK$000

FET FET

Current to 30 days BlER 230K 38,056 52,107
31 to 60 days 312 60K 20,635 7,954
61 to 90 days 612 90K 9,524 3,453
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 2,501 665
Over 120 days HBiE120% 15,944 2,404
86,660 66,583

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 60-day terms.

OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND PROVISION

FERTER R et B BE—MBRCBEE -

25. HMEMNRE B REREE

Notes 2018 2017

B &t —E-N\F —ET—+F

HK$000 HK$°000

FHET FET

Receipts in advance Ta W K18 34,871 58,629
Contract liabilities eEHhaE (@ 20,573 -
Other payables Bt JE T 58 (b) 52,664 71,251
Accruals JE 5T 5% 18 93,093 136,061
201,201 265,941

Provision B & © - 5,446
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25.

—ENEFZA=+—H

OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND PROVISION
(continued)

Notes:

@

(b)

©

Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018
and 1 January 2018 are as follows:

25.

HitEAFOR - B RORERBEE)

K et -

(@

RZZE—NF+-_A=+—HEZZ—N
F-A—BZzAYEGBEHBLOT:

31 December 1 January
2018 2018
—E-N\& —T-NE
+=ZB=+—H —H—H
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET T T
Short-term advances received from customers B W5 5.2 52 B 78 1%
Circulation income T A 20,573 22158
Contract liabilities include short-term advances AHEERIEWRERNRER MR ZEH

received to deliver newspaper and magazines. The
decrease in contract liabilities in 2018 was mainly
due to the decrease in short-term advances received
from customers in relation to the Group’s circulation
operation at the end of the year.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average payment term of three months.

In the prior year, the provision represented the
estimated restoration costs upon the expiration of the
lease term of the Group’s office premises. The Group
estimated the costs of dismantling and removing
the property, plant and equipment and restoring the
site on which they are located. The amount of the
provision for restoration costs was estimated based
on quotation from the contractors. The estimation
basis was reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised
where appropriate.
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26.
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DEFERRED TAX 26. EEBIE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets FRNELEHREAELREEZEFHHU T :
during the year are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities BEHREEE
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Depreciation acquisition of
allowance in an additional
excess of related interest in a  Revaluation Recognition Withholding
depreciation joint venture of properties of tax losses taxes Total
KmeE
EBHAH i R
HEZ REMEERSD BEFE
HELBE NFEAE EfEWE ZB’R FEHBE st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 RZF—tF
—H—8 50,986 4,864 601,994 (41,864) 24,539 100,519
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to  FARIBRERNINHR
the statement of profit or loss (FIAN) 2B
during the year (note 10) (B 3 10) 7,285 - 106 (5,402) - 1,989
Deferred tax charged to asset FAREEEREE
revaluation reserve k2 RIER IR
during the year - - 16,872 - - 16,872
Withholding taxes payment during KA E A X f
the year MR - - - - (4,508) (4,508)
Exchange realignment fE A 5 - - - (1,120 (1,116)
At 31 December 2017 and RZZT—+tF
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—HK
—F-\&—A—H 58,276 4,864 78,972 (47,266) 18,910 113,756
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to  FRRIBEERAIK,/
the statement of profit or loss GIA)ZIEERE
during the year (note 10) (PF7E10) (4,982) - 1,926 4413 - 1,357
Deferred tax charged to asset FAREEEREE
revaluation reserve during the A2 EERIE
year - - 11,239 - - 11,239
Withholding taxes payment during KA & A X f
the year BB - - - - (3,015) (3,015)
Exchange realignment BE AR 3 - - - (5,791 (5,794)
At 31 December 2018 R-B-N\%F
+=-A=+-8 53,291 4,864 92,137 (42,853) 10,104 117,543
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26. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. ELEHREAGE)
Deferred tax assets ELEREEE
Depreciation
in excess
of related Recognition
depreciation of tax
allowance Provisions losses Total
BBABITE BIEE B
ZIBERRE B 2R it
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+
F—H—H 1,758 12,000 2,307 16,065
Deferred tax credited/ FANBRENGTA
(charged) to the (FOBR) 2 EIEFH 1B
statement of profit or loss (Kt 5¥10)
during the year (note 10) 846 (1,488) (1,882) (2,524)
Exchange realignment b H 7 & - 103 - 103
At 31 December 2017 and MZZE—+4F
1 January 2018 TZA=+—HkK
—ZT—-/\f#—HA—H 2,604 10,615 425 13,644
Deferred tax credited/ FARARBREERAFTA
(charged) to the (FIBR) 2 EIEFH 1B
statement of profit or loss (P 5£10)
during the year (note 10) 356 (9,587) (425) (9,656)
Exchange realignment b 5 38 & - (88 - (88)
At 31 December 2018 RZ-Z—N\F
+=BA=+—8 2,960 940 - 3,900
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had AMEER NEEBEREB B 2HIBEELN

tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately 888,570,000%%(:2 1 9F : £9926,254,000

HK$888,570,000 (2017: approximately HK$926,254,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising
in Mainland China of approximately HK$19,467,000
(2017: approximately HK$20,219,000) that will expire in
one to five years for offsetting against future taxable

profits. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of

approximately HK$648,316,000 (2017: approximately
HK$678,773,000) have not been recognised as they have
arisen in certain subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and in the opinion of the Company’s
it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

directors,
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26.

27.
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DEFERRED TAX (continued) 26. ELEHREAGE)
Deferred tax assets (continued) EEHEEEE)
Pursuant to the Canada Income Tax Act, a 25% BENERKFAERE BRIl KK 250
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to KELERMINAKEES IR 2 KR EEIE2%
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises FREMWIEBINF - Wil KENRREEZ
established in Canada. A lower withholding tax rate FEEEREOEZIBMBKEY  BledARK
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Canada WIEHNRE - EARANER 2T ER15%3K
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the 25% c At REBBEEAELE B A
Group, the applicable rate is 15% or 25%. The Group ERNMERKZ 2B ARFTEIR 2K ETE
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends MALIE -
distributable by those subsidiaries established in Canada
in respect of earnings generated.
There are no income tax consequences attaching RAT A H R AR BT RS TSR E K
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its FE
shareholders.
SHARE CAPITAL 27. BAE
Shares Bz 4
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET TET
Authorised: ETE R
2,354,256,546 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 2,354,256,5461% & %
each EE0.2E T2 & &R 470,851 470,851
1,291,486,908 5% redeemable cumulative 1,291,486,908% & i%
convertible preference shares of HK$0.1 EH01E T 5% &1
each ] fE (B A S4B ST 129,149 129,149
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAERAE:
866,106,337 ordinary shares of HK$0.2 866,106,337 1% & %
each BB L2 EBR 173,222 173,222

There were no movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year (2017: NiD.

Share options
Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the

share options granted under the schemes are included
in note 28 to the financial statements.

ARBZBARRFEAL BEEH(—F—+
FE)-

Bk

BRARRBRESEMRETERLER
BZFHBEN M HRKRM T2 -
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”)

The 2002 Scheme was adopted by the Company
on 28 May 2002 and had a term of 10 years
commencing from 28 May 2002, unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the terms of the
2002 Scheme.

Summary of the 2002 Scheme is set out below:
(@  Purpose

The 2002 Scheme seeks to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by the
participants to the Group, to motivate the
participants to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group, and to maintain or attract business
relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or may be beneficial to the
growth of the Group.

(b)  Participants

The board of directors of the Company may
at its absolute discretion invite anyone from
the following classes of participants to take
up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company:

(1 any part-time or full-time employee or
officer of any member of the Group
or of any associate;

(i) any director (executive or non-
executive) of any member of the Group
or of any associate; or

(i) any supplier, agent, customer, business
associate, distributor, professional or
other adviser of, or consultant or
contractor to, any member of the
Group.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) (continued)

©

()

Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the 2002 Scheme (excluding options which
have lapsed) (the “General Mandate”).

The Company may, at any time, refresh the
General Mandate by obtaining the approval
of shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting. The Company may also seek
separate approval by its shareholders in a
general meeting for granting options beyond
the General Mandate or the refreshed limit
provided that the options in excess of the
limit are granted to participants specifically
identified before such approval is sought.

The overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless separately approved by shareholders
in a general meeting in the manner as
prescribed in the Listing Rules, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted to
each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares
then in issue.
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28. BRESTE(Z)
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 28. BRESTE(Z)

(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May Q1) RESZBEE-FEFTA-+NBEHNER

2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) (continued)

(e)  Period within which the shares must be
taken up

The period during which a share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2002 Scheme shall be the period
set out in the relevant offer letter provided
that such period expires no later than the
tenth anniversary of the date on which it is
granted.

(f)  Basis of determining the exercise price
The exercise price shall be the highest of:

(1 the closing price of the Company’s
stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant share
options;

shares as

(i)  the average of the closing prices of
the Company’s shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations

the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of
grant of the relevant share options; or

sheets for

(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares.

(g) Remaining life

The 2002 Scheme expired on 27 May 2012.

A resolution was passed by the shareholders of
the Company in the annual general meeting held
on 27 May 2005 to refresh the General Mandate
limit to 10% of the number of the shares of
the Company in issue as at 27 May 2005. Such
refreshment of the General Mandate limit will
enable the Company to grant options carrying
the rights to subscribe for up to a total of
91,717,753 shares (adjusted due to consolidation
of the Company’s shares on 18 May 2006) of
the Company under the 2002 Scheme and other
scheme(s) of the Company, if any.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

@™

2)

Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) (continued)

On 23 May 2012, the
terminated and a new

2002 Scheme was
share option scheme
was adopted. Upon the termination of the 2002
Scheme, no further share options could be granted
thereunder. However, all outstanding share options
previously granted under the 2002 Scheme will
remain valid and exercisable in accordance with

their terms of issue.

At 1 January 2018,
options

there were 1,933,360 share
outstanding under the 2002 Scheme.
During the year, no share option was granted nor
exercised or lapsed under the 2002 Scheme.

As at 31 December 2018, there were 1,933,360
share options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme,
with an exercise period from 12 April 2011 to
11 April 2020 at an exercise price of HK$1.16 per
share.

Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”)

The 2012 Scheme was adopted by the Company
on 23 May 2012 and has a term of 10 years
commencing from 23 May 2012, unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Scheme.

Summary of the 2012 Scheme is set out below:
(@  Purpose

The 2012 Scheme seeks to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by the
participants to the Group, to motivate the
participants to optimise their performance
the benefit of the
Group, and to maintain or attract business

and efficiency for

relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or may be beneficial to the
growth of the Group.

31 December 2018
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28. BIRESTE(2)

@

@

RoBE-_FERA-+N\BEHNNER
BB (=BT (#)

R-ZEBE——FRA-+=A —TZT=
FETEIW R - WM ERE -
NZE T FFHEIKR IR - DAMKE L
FrEIERHERE - A - TELAR
BT _F5r 8 BEmERITERE
A A T B WAlAR IR H B 1T I K
1If o

R-E—N\F—F—H RE-_ZTZ
—HFFABEmERTEZEBRES
1,933,3600% - RAFE RN » WERE =
SR FEERHERE  NEERE
BAEITE RN -

RZZE—/\F+-ZA=+—0 RE=F
EoFFEREmMEARTEZEBRES
1,933,360% ' ZEERE 2 ITEHB =
E-—ENA+-_ARE-_T -TFM
A+—BLt TEERERIIGET °

R-CEBE——-HFHEA-+=HHEHHNER
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W—_E——FFE BA-ZE—=-FHA
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ERASEMELSIBIELEZE
B ETEER  tmAB2REE
BEBEMESUENREAE
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

28. BREE(E)

@2 R=

EZ—_—_FRA-+T=ZHEREHNWER

Est8(=2——F58D)#)

(b)  Participants (b SHEE

The board of directors of the Company may RAREFE2EWNBEERET

at its absolute discretion invite anyone from P2 EERR ZEMATEARE

the following classes of participants to take f&E - UAREARQFRG

up options to subscribe for shares of the

Company:

(1) any part-time or full-time employee or (1) AREBFE K 8 QB ST B
officer of any member of the Group ARz EMFEBIEBES
or of any associate; HEE

(i) any director (executive or non- G) AEBKE QR ST ([ e
executive) of any member of the Group NEZEMESE@EITHIE
or of any associate; or HMIT) ¢ 8K

(i) any supplier, agent, customer, business (i) ZAEBEKERQF 2 A #
associate, distributor, professional or e RIEBFCEBEE
other adviser of, or consultant or e DENE FEEAL FH
contractor to, any member of the A B AR -
Group.

(¢)  Total number of shares available for issue ©  AEZTZHRAEE

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the 2012 Scheme (excluding options lapsed)
(the “Mandate Limit”).

The Company may, at any time, refresh the
Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of
shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting. The Company may also
separate approval by its shareholders in a
general meeting for granting options beyond
the Mandate Limit or the refreshed limit
provided that the options in excess of the
limit are granted to participants specifically
identified before such approval is sought.

seek

The overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

()

(e

®

(g)

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless separately approved by shareholders
in a general meeting in the manner as
prescribed in the Listing Rules, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted to
each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares
then in issue.

Period within which the shares must be
taken up

The period during which a share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2012 Scheme shall be the period
set out in the relevant offer letter provided
that such period expires no later than the
tenth anniversary of the date on which it is
granted.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price must be at least the
higher of:

(1  the closing price of the Company’s
stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on

shares as

the date of grant of the relevant share
options; or

(i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations

the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of

sheets for
grant of the relevant share options.
Remaining life

The 2012 Scheme will expire on 22 May
2022.
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28. BRESTE(Z)
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@
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

At 1 January 2018, there were (1) 35,630,000
share options outstanding granted in 2015 under
the 2012 Scheme with an exercise period from
4 May 2016 to 3 May 2025 at an exercise price
of HK$1.16 per share, and (i) 45,150,000 share
options outstanding granted in 2017 under the
2012 Scheme with an exercise period from
13 January 2018 to 12 January 2027 at an exercise
price of HK$1.01 per share. During the year, no
share option was granted nor exercised under
the 2012 Scheme. Totals of 1,250,000 and 350,000
outstanding share options previously granted at
the respective exercise prices of HK$1.16 per share
and HK$1.01 per share, under the 2012 Scheme
lapsed.

At 31 December 2018, there were 34,380,000 and
44,800,000 share options outstanding granted
in 2015 and 2017 respectively, under the 2012
Scheme.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had 1,933,360
(2017: 1,933,360) and 79,180,000 (2017: 80,780,000) share
options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme and the
2012 Scheme, respectively, with an exercise period from
12 April 2011 to 12 January 2027 and exercise price
ranging from HK$1.01 to HK$1.16 per share. The exercise
in full of the remaining share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the
issue of 81,113,360 (2017: 82,713,360) additional shares
of HK$0.2 each, which represented approximately 9.37%
of the existing issued ordinary share capital of the
Company at the end of the reporting period.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 28. BRETE(E)

During the year, movements of share options granted MNER  RNRBSEENEEREBRER
to the Company’s directors and eligible employees NEEIREAZER T ERESES T
under the share option schemes of the Company are as

follows:

Number of share options

BREZE
Exercise
Date of Exercise price of
grant of At Lapsed At period of share Fair value
Name or category share options 1 January during 31 December share options options per share
of participant (dd/mm/yy) 2018 the year 2018 (dd/mm/yy) (Note 1) option
-9 S IS i B R
REAH Z—ZB-N\F RER —E-N\F BRETES TEE R e
SHREHEARER (B/B/%) —A—H ¥ +=ZB=+-—H (B/B/%) (Btit1) DNEE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors
S
Under the 2012 Scheme:
BEZZE——F58:
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles 04/05/15 830,000 - 830,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
ol 1 B 5 A 13/01/17 3,400,000 - 3,400,000  13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak (Note 2) 04/05/15 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
] [E12 5 & (K 722) 13/01/17 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Mr. Jia Hongping 04/05/15 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
BUFEE 13/01/17 2,500,000 - 2,500,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis 04/05/15 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
2 3k A& 13/01/17 4,000,000 - 4,000,000  13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Mr. Lo Wing Hung 13/01/17 1,500,000 - 1,500,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
E KR E
Mr. Siu Sai Wo 04/05/15 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
Eugiibie 13/01/17 4,900,000 - 4,900,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Total 31,130,000 - 31,130,000
&t
Other employees (in aggregate)
HES (1)
Under the 2002 Scheme 12/04/10 1,933,360 - 1,933,360 12/04/11-11/04/20 1.160 -
REZEZT-F5E
Under the 2012 Scheme 04/05/15 24,800,000 (1,250,000) 23,550,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.380
RE-F——F58 13/01/17 24,850,000 (350,000 24,500,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.321
Total 51,583,360 (1,600,000) 49,983,360
&5t
Grand total 82,713,360 (1,600,000) 81,113,360
Yy
Notes: B it
1. The exercise price of the share options is subject to 1. BhiEzZTEEARERRR  BITAR
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or AR B IR IR 2 H At FR L & Eh 1
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital. FHE o
2. Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak is the son of Mr. Ho Tsu 2. MEFEEERARBEZR ETERFMT
Kwok, Charles, who is a director and a substantial FEZRTF - B A BT A 2 B
shareholder of the Company, and therefore an BA(TER EHHEA) -

associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of Mr.
Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles.
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29.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$4,312,000 (2017: HK$10,706,000) (note 7) during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on
1 January 2019, (D) a total of 800,000 outstanding share
options granted in 2010 under the 2002 Scheme with
an exercise period from 12 April 2011 to 11 April 2020
at an exercise price of HK$1.16 per share; (i) a total of
700,000 outstanding share options granted in 2015 under
the 2012 Scheme with an exercise period from 4 May
2016 to 3 May 2025 at an exercise price of HK$1.16
per share; and (iii) a total of 500,000 outstanding share
options granted in 2017 under the 2012 Scheme with
an exercise period from 13 January 2018 to 12 January
2027 at an exercise price of HK$1.01 per share lapsed.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 79,113,360 share options outstanding
under the schemes, which represented approximately

9.13% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 85 to 86 of the financial statements. The Group’s
contributed surplus represents (i) the excess of the
nominal value of the shares issued by Perfect Treasure
Holdings (BVD Limited in exchange for the aggregate
nominal value of the issued capital of subsidiaries
the group
1996, prior to the listing of the Company’s shares,
amounting to HK$9,899,000, and (i) the credit of
HK$488,930,000 arising from the reduction of the
share premium account in 2003 less the distribution of
HK$18,181,000 in 2003 and the debits of HK$5,935,000,
HK$1,073,000, HK$34,307,000 and HK$31,443,000 arising
from the repurchase of shares during the years ended
31 December 2012, 2008, 2007 and 20006, respectively.

acquired pursuant to reorganisation in
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BRESE(E)

REEERNEEZE-_Z—)\FE+-_A=+— El
Ltiﬁ%ﬂ&%%ﬁi‘i?%ﬁlzooo/%n(_f
F 110,706,000 7T ) (B 5¥7) ©

RREBFRE  OR_ZE—ZTERE_ZFZ
_Eﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@Z%k%éﬁﬁ
800,000 ((TE AR T ——FHWA+T=AHE
E-E-_TFNA+—HIL TEEAEER
LGB TT) (R - E—HERE T —— &
B E W RITE 2 BB AR ES £ 5700,000
AT ESHR - RNFRANARERE_ZE =
AFRAA=ZRAIE TEEABRLIGET) &
GODRZE—FRE_FT——FEEEM
M AR AT 2 B8 IR A £ B500,000% (77 HA
H-ZEZ-N\FE—A+t=BE-_T-_+F—A
+=—Bit TEEAEERI0ET) ERZE
—hE—A—B%k&-

R ERMERRBE - NRAFR BT 2
RITE 7 B R A79,113,3600% » {5 AN A 77
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AEERAFEERBAFE 2HEEHBELE
FHEE2IRNANBHRKRESHESCE Z5E
HRE2EHER - ANEEZHAEB B OPerfect
Treasure Holdings (BVI) Limited #7719 2
HE BRAARAKRMDETH - AEIKRIR
BE—hhAh~AFEEEAFKNBENBERARD
BITRABREE 285D - £ 8 59,899,000
T MEHZZEZT=FHIRKRHO EEBRME
A4 7488,930,0008 LERREZSZE=F %
K 218,181,000 T A K REEZE=—F ——F -
TEEN\F ZEELFR_EERE+
A=+—RLEFEANEEE K%M DR E
5,935,000/ JT ~ 1,073,000/ JT * 34,307,000/
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30.

31.

PENDING LITIGATIONS

The Group has received claims made against certain
respect
defamation. Based on legal opinions, the Company’s

subsidiaries for damages in of alleged
directors are of the opinion that adequate provision
has been made in the financial statements to cover any

potential liabilities arising from the litigations.
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30. FREFHRZHFR

REEBREE THBRRRY N mER
HZHR - -REBEZEBR  ARFREERS
REEE L B RS R AR R S B R A
BEEMAIERFLRMELE ZE® -

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 31. REBHZH
(@) As lessor @ MFEREHEA
The Group leases certain investment properties REBRBLKEHOTHBELE TERE
(note 14) under operating lease arrangements, W (M iE14) KiEmz2BOAEHR—=
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from +RHE - BT IEE—RETHREES
one to fifteen years. The terms of the leases REFS MR ECHSA CHIRER™
generally also require the tenants to pay security DL o
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market
conditions.
At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future RZBE—NF+_A=+—H K&
minimum lease rental receivables under non- RIBERTZ B fE M 2 T Al BsE e & 18
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling HER AR EHASRES:
due as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET TET
Within one year —F RN 5,461 4,817
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFNF(BEER
N F) 7,643 10,757
13,104 15,574
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31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 31.

(b) As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties
and printing equipment under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for these properties and
printing equipment are negotiated for terms
ranging from one to seven years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

REBEHORERE)
(b) EREBEA

AEERBELERNOLHFEES THA
EWENARRE - KRR W E R
PR BORP—2LF -

W=B—\F+=A=+—A A%£H
183 50 T 51 58 U 6 2 A 4T R
W2 R RBIER S @ES

2018 2017
—E-N\% —T—tf
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Within one year —FR 5,697 14,823

In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EFNF(BEERE
™ ) 8,502 9,923
After five years hF & 226 281
14,425 25,027

32. COMMITMENTS 32, EIE

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 31(b) above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

B b P RE31) Al 2 S & A A& FE SN - R
SERNRERARBATEAALE :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FHETT FET
Contracted, but not provided for: BETAE R -
Plant and machinery TR 5 Fo B 201 630
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BEALXRS
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances @ BEBERERZEMMFFN 25 HEE
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, RN REBRFANINERBFEAN LTI
the Group had the following material transactions THzZzERRS:
with related parties during the year:
Notes 2018 2017
o2t —2-N\F BT
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
News service fee income received HREABEEZ
from joint ventures BT ERE E A
WA ® 16,317 15,769
Service fee income received from HKEABZE
joint ventures B U AR 7 & B WA ) 2,662 8,425
News service and other services fee REBEBEE N7 2 WH
income received from associates B AR 75 & AR 7%
&R A ) 1,564 1,205
Advertising income received from KB —HE#E QF 2
an associate BRESKA (iii) 416 98
News service fee expenses paid to X F—fEE&E AR Z
an associate HEREEBKA €)) 1,440 1,423

The related party transactions in respect of service
fee income, advertising income and news service
expenses received from/paid to associates above
also constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Notes:

(1) The news service fee was charged on an
annual fixed amount basis pursuant to the
relevant news service agreement.

(i) The service fee was charged at cost plus a pre-
determined mark-up.

(i)  The
between the parties with reference to the
prevailing market price.

advertising income was determined

FRLABW ENBERRZREE
WA BERARFEREERNEE
AEXRZIER ETRAFBUATE &

Hrat -

@ E RS E AR A R RS %
AEFTRRE -

pna)

G AR B MR B A D0 B SE 0 AR R

(iiD)
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33. BEALXH(#E)
(b)  Outstanding balance with a related party: (b HEEBEATzZRGEBESHE:
Details of the Group’s balance with an associate as AREFE-—BBE AT RBEER Y &
at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in B ENB R R AT ITRE -

note 17 to the financial statements.

(©  Compensation of key management personnel of

© AEBETZEEABZHH:

the Group:
2018 2017
—B-N\E —E
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Short term employee benefits % EE BB A 23,583 22,836
Post-employment benefits BB 1218 A 128 121
Share-based payments AR B ERE 23 1,981 4,459
Total compensation paid to key MEEZERABXMN
management personnel AL 25,692 27,416
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included EEMESE—FEERNBRRMN T
in note 8 to the financial statements. SHEE o
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each category of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:

31 December 2018

Financial assets

31 December 2018

El!

34. ®

JISETE=R RN

—g-NEt=A=t-A

MBEE

Financial assets

IED

B 75 R 2R BT 5

o i

—FE-NEFA=+—H

BERMIANKEEENT:

at fair value through Financial
profit or loss assets at
BRAFEFABRERD fair value
HBEE through other
Designated comprehensive Financial
as such income assets at
upon initial Held for - Equity  amortised
Notes  recognition trading investments cost Total
ROS R BOFEFA
EEROYVE Ht2EKED REH
FABREKRZ BREE RAIERZ
st HHBEE BFHEEE - ERMRE WKBEE CEl
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
Equity investments designated at fair value 87 B2 FEFA
through other comprehensive income H2E N E 2
EalERE 18 - - 47 - 47
Trade receivables & Ui BR 3K 20 - - - 363,186 363,186
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERMFRIE - Eh U
other receivables and other assets REREMEEN
YBAE - - - 21,919 21,919
Financial assets at fair value through profit % A T (&5 A 18 & BR &9
or loss HBEE 2 11,249 85,129 - - 96,378
Loan to an associate A — B D AHE )
B% 17 - - - 4,543 4,543
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReFEER 23 - - - 527,627 527,627
11,249 85,129 47 917,275 1,013,700
Financial liabilities MEaE
Financial
liabilities at
Note amortised cost
B8R AR
Bt i HWEBEE
HK$°000
FET
Trade and bills payables JERBR R R BE 24 88,660
Financial liabilities included in other payables, &I A EAhE(IFRIE « BETFIE X
accruals and provision B MBaE 126,017
214,677
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34.
(continued)

31 December 2017

Financial assets

—ENEFZA=+—H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

34. ERMIAEDE(E)

Notes

T+ FE+

MBEE

Financial assets at
fair value through
profit or loss —
held for trading
BAFERA
BaEROFB

A=+—H
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total

EmE AEREn

Wit BE - BEEE BWHE UHHEE B
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000  HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Loan to an associate m—EEEQARELHER 17 - 4,543 - 4,543
Available-for-sale investments AREERE 18 - - 10,264 10,264
Trade receivables JEE Uy BR 3% 20 - 411,408 - 411,408
Financial assets included in prepayments, T ATERFIE « Hth U5k
other receivables and other assets BELEMEEZ
B EE - 32,923 - 32,923
Financial assets at fair value through BRTEAANERRZ
profit or loss MBEE 22 99,735 - - 99,735
Cash and cash equivalents RekBRELEEE § 23 - 517,317 - 517,317
99,735 966,191 10,264 1,076,190
Financial liabilities BKAas
Financial
liabilities at
Note amortised cost
12 55 K R T
B it ERBaE
HK$’000
FET
Trade and bills payables JER RN R R 24 66,583
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FFAEMEFKIA « EEIIE K
accruals and provision BE2UWBEaRE 190,469
257,052
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35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are
as follows:

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

35. TRIANATFERATFEERFE

BEREEATEREROEN AEEE
MIANE@ENLRAFENT:

Carrying amounts Fair values

fREE AFE

2018 2017 2018 2017

—®-\F T % —B-\F T %

HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000

FET TET FHET TET

Financial assets HMBEE

Equity investments designated EEREAFER
at fair value through other A B b 2 T &R

comprehensive income ZREEEERE 47 - 47 -
Available-for-sale investments, at BAFEYERAA]

fair value HHERE - 10,264 - 10,264
Financial assets at fair value BEAFHEFAER

through profit or loss R E &= 96,378 99,735 96,378 99,735

96,425 109,999 96,425 109,999

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets, financial liabilities
included in other payables, accruals and provision and
a loan to an associate approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these

instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the
financial controller is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The corporate finance team
reports directly to the chief financial officer and the
audit committee. At each reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation
the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial

process and results are discussed with

reporting.

EEECDKNE TEARZFTANEH
HME R LReFEER - BURER
ENEFRRRE  FEARMRIE - A ER
REREMBEENYHEE  sTARLMBES
FIE - BEARARBEZMBABRRR —H
pEAFELME RN A FEEEREEM

4+

= o

AEEHYHEEFENCEMBEKER
REZBTARAFEAENBRKLERF - &
EMBEGEREAMBAENEZRESE
Ho-nEBEGREEH CEVBEEINE
MTABENEY UWRTEARGBENE
2HAE- HEAMBAERMALUE -/
BREEMNEREELZBEEEFMANTH
REFEWHRERT® -
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35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments are based
on quoted market prices. The fair value of an unlisted
equity investment at fair value through profit or loss has
been estimated using a market-based valuation based
on assumptions that are not supported by observable
market prices or rates. The valuation requires the
Company’s directors to determine comparable public
companies (peers) based on industry, size, leverage and
strategy, and calculates an appropriate price multiple,
such as enterprise value to earnings before interest,
depreciation and amortisation (“EV/EBITDA”)
multiple and price to earnings (“P/E”) multiple, for

taxes,

each comparable company identified. The multiple
is calculated by dividing the enterprise value of the
comparable company by an earnings measure. The
trading multiple is then discounted for considerations
such as illiquidity and size differences between the
comparable companies based on company-specific
facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple is
applied to the corresponding earnings measure of the
unlisted equity investments to measure the fair value.
The Company’s directors believe that the estimated fair
value resulting from the valuation technique, which
is recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related change in fair value, which
is recorded in the statement of profit or loss, are
reasonable, and that it was the most appropriate value

at the end of the reporting period.
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35 @R TENAFERAFEZLREE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (%)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs WTAERZZE—N\F+_A=+—HEH @I
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a A EZEATIERG ABHNEER TS
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2018: B E DT
Significant Sensitivity
Valuation unobservable of fair value
technique inputs Value to the input
BEX AFE
A EE H@AEZ
18 Bl WAE & BRE
Unlisted equity Valuation Average EV/SALES 2018: 13.4x 10% increase/(decrease) in
investment multiples multiple of peers multiple would result in

increase/(decrease) in fair
value by HK$93,000

JELmEEMKRE HERHE RIZEFHLEEER Z—T—N\F: 10% 8GN, CR )&
HEW A B 13.4x EH AT @EEN S
(Rl 2) 93,0007% 7T
Risk free rate 2018: 2.48 10% increase/(decrease) in

risk free rate would result
in decrease/(increase) in
fair value by HK$14,000

2 | e Ui R T —\F 1248 10%%E E R U a5 X
EACRE
EHATFEAD (E)
14,0007 7T
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35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2018

35.

EMIANDFERAFESRHE
(#&)

DFEERFE
TRERMEESRITAN A TEFEER
il & -

B FEGENEE
R-—=2-N¥+=-A=+-—H

Fair value measurement using

DRFEFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
EBTS E ) EXRAH
HE BEBAE BEBAE
(&) (F&=) (E&=) CELl
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET TFET FET
Equity investments EERIE
designated at fair NFEEFTA
value through other HEth2mEkzE 2
comprehensive income R E 47 - - 47
Financial assets at fair BAFEFAER
value through profit R MBEE:
or loss:
Equity investments EmMRE 10,226 - 4,524 14,750
Debt investments BEERE 81,628 - - 81,628
91,901 - 4,524 96,425
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 35. R TENAFEERAFEHEREE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) (%)

DFEERFEE)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BLFEAENEE: (&)
As at 31 December 2017 R-_E—+HF+_-_A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

N EFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1 (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
R EpNGl BBATA
% MmE BmAE BE®AE
EH/—) EH=) ER=) X
HK$000 HEK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET T FETT FET
Available-for-sale A HERE:
investments:
Equity investments R E 47 - - 47
Debt investments BEEZE 10,217 - - 10,217
Financial assets at fair EAFEFAERE
value through profit ReHBEE:
or loss:
Equity investments R E 22,126 - - 22,126
Debt investments BEBREE 73,709 - - 73,709
106,099 - - 106,099

R \Fh_ZE—tF+=-_A=+—8"
AEBWETMRAFEFENHBEEE -

The Group did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 December 2018 and
2017.

REAFER BEAEER - LEFR_2HE
BREBANBHER = A TEFE(ZE—
tEFE) -

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil).
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36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise cash and short term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade and bills payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts, for
trading purposes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.
The board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below. The
Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, joint ventures and associates. It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition,
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad

receivable balances are monitored on
debts is not significant. For transactions that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant
operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms
without the specific approval of the Head of Credit
Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December 2018. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
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iF24 °

EERR

AEEREERAREERFZE=ZTT &
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BEREEBEEERBEK(E)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 R-E-NEFE+-BA=+—HBzZzEXEABRREE
December 2018 (continued) KERE D ()
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
EHEA
Bx HEHREREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2  Stage 3 approach Total
EF-BE EF-_BE EF=BE GRS st
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FET FAE T FET FEIL FEIT
Trade receivables* JE I BR Fh - - - 363,186 363,186
Financial assets included FFATER FUE -
in prepayments, other HoAth & W BA K
receivables and other assets HiEE 2
BE
— Normal** — 1E e 21,919 - - - 21,919
- Doubtful** — Al g - - - - -
Loan to an associate ) — fi Bt % NG
R B
— Normal* - IE&E* 4,543 - - - 4,543
Cash and cash equivalents RekReE
BIEE
- Not yet past due — R AN 8 B 527,627 - - - 527,627
554,089 - - 363,186 917,275
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies * HASEEERGEREE 2 BREER - &

the simplified approach for impairment, information
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note
20 to the financial statements.

ki The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets and
loan to an associate is considered as “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information
indicating that the financial assets have significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets
is considered as “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, available- for-sale
financial assets, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, an amount due from an associate, other receivables
and certain derivative financial instruments, arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

TR B AE T 2 B RER B 3R R MY R 208

=]

o

# o fEPATAENRIE - B EWGIE - &

P N 1A — el B
ElASHBTEERE
EEMNRERRBEAZEM

82

ARFENERZTBEE
TZEPHE
AEVHEE

ZIEREERBERIET] BRI - ZEH
BEEZERERRA/IAE] -

R-ZB-—+tH+ZA=t-BZEXEAR

AEBEEMUBEE 2FEERR

BERE

EBReEEAR AHOEMBEE  &RA

FEMABREZMBEE  BE—H

4 o
b=

NEFOR - HbERWREERE TITES R T
B REHFHZKRE MEAZEARES
RZETAZKEE -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36.
AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017
(continued)

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, joint ventures and associates,
there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations of
credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty, by
geographical region and by industry sector. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group
as the customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables
are widely dispersed in different sectors and industries.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flow from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank overdrafts and bank loans. The Group’s policy
is that not more than 20% of its interest-bearing bank
borrowings, if any, should mature in any 12-month
period.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

MERAREEERRBER(E)
R-ZB—tF+ZA=+-—BZEXBERE)

HRARERERBRANEERFZFE =7
BECERBERFETRS  HEARSG
M- GERBRETNRERER HTF
77 BBEEERIRARIERE - ARAEEE
YRR R B P AR B2 0 i AR R BI & AT
X AUTFEGFERRBEESETHHRE -

BRASEREBYRRMES ZEERARK
E—FEEHE  RYBHRERMFE20FHKE -

RBESER

AEBEERBERADECTIEIAERHEER
TRROER - ZTAFRESBRTARY
BEE WD MERRS) BB RFEGE
EEXEBHETRE -

AEEBNEEZRERRTELRFITERMN
REBENFELEFIUNTE - AEE
HBERRZ - TER20%8 B RITER(IH)
FERR 1218 AR R E -

RBERR REAORFTRNRE A&
MBRENIISBERMT

i

Less than 1 year

DR1E

2018 2017

A —E—+F

HK$°000 HK$000

FHET TET

Trade and bills payables ERERRZEE 88,660 60,583

Financial liabilities ST H M pE A RIE -

included in other payables, JE 5T RIE K B B By

accruals and provision B aE 126,017 190,469

214,677 257,052
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk
The Group trades in financial instruments,

including
derivatives, equity securities and debt securities.

Market risk represents the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables, such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The
Group is exposed to market risk through its derivative

financial instruments and other investments.

The Group has investment guidelines that set out its
overall business strategies, its tolerance for risk and
its general risk management philosophy, and it has
established processes to monitor and control various

trading transactions in a timely and accurate manner.
Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of an
asset, liability or highly probable forecast transaction
denominated in a foreign currency will fluctuate
because of changes in the foreign exchange rate. When
seeking to optimise the returns on its funds available
for investment, the Group may invest in investments
denominated in currencies other than the Hong Kong

dollar from time to time.

36.
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BEEAREEERRBE(E)

™ 5 B B

rEBEESRMIA
ERMEBES -

BETELAE KX

mERRESR T A Z”iﬁi*Xﬁwﬁ
EHEMNE EEXRBRESMHSEEHMED -
PiNESS ..ﬁﬁiﬁrﬁﬂlﬂ&ﬁ@&ﬁﬂﬁ%x
mHRER

AEEEBIREES] - AR ERRE -
A%XH SEENME—REARERES I

BIURFETRIEHEERS A KB L E R
IR HELT o

S & J2l B2

SMERBRIEANERBUNEE  ABHE
BABARETNRGZEERNEXZHM
KEER - SREEAIHKEESNE R
B AEB AN IRER LB T AINEE
REMNEE -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BKEREEBEEERBE(E)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued) TG E R ()
Foreign exchange risk (continued) ShFE J7] B (&)
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the TRHEARRMEHPR - ANEE R AR N KR
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible RHETIERN A REHNHEE -
change in the US$ exchange rate, with all other variable FrEEMEELHRERNE -
held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax and
equity.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in USD rate before tax in equity*
EnER B B A 0% R Rz
EH (TR i Ch D) (R ) *
% HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
2018 —E-N\F
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens WIMRB Y
against US$ ETHEsS 0.72 505 -
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens %03 7T 18 ¥
against US$ ErHEA 0.72) (505) -
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in USD rate before tax in equity*
T & B 351 A% A ‘=g
ERHCTEE) M/ Ch) Rt ) =
% HK$'000 HK$°000
TFET FET
2017 ZE-tF
If the Hong Kong dollar weakens MRBETAES
against US$ E - E5) 0.59 438 -
If the Hong Kong dollar strengthens 208 & JT #8 ¥
against US$ E TR 0.59 (438) -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. BEREEBEEERBEK(E)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued) TG E R (Z)
Equity price risk 7 (B 15 /3 bz
Equity price risk is risk that the fair values of financial HEnERERETEEEN A FEARKAE
assets decrease as a result of changes in the levels of SESE2H ML AR - AEERER o
equity indices. The Group is exposed to equity price BMAERBFESREMBEHERBREAR - K
risk arising from individual investments classified as EEMNRENETER ST L B EZ
held for trading. The Group’s investments are listed or BIET2HLFEHE HEMEREXKE
linked to securities listed on stock exchanges in Hong RITHREGE -
Kong and are valued at quoted market prices or quoted
prices from investment banks.
The market equity index for the following stock URFEAREORSPRORFGAEER
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading FE&ERE  UTELFIZINMSREEE
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and NERERERENNTESML R &ECLIAT
its respective highest and lowest points during the year
were as follows:
31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2018 2018 2017 2017
—E2-N\F —E-N\F —E—tF —ET—+tF
+=A=+—-8 & & t—A=t+—H =/ 1K
Hong Kong B
- Hang Seng index - BAEEH 25,846 33,484/24,541 29,919 30,200/21,884
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Equity price risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
10% change in the fair value of the financial assets,
with all other variables held constant and before any
impact on tax, of the Group’s profit before tax and
equity, based on their carrying amount at the end of
the reporting period.

30.

BEEAREEERRBE(E)

miEE kR (E)
s (B 157 2 ()

TRETRASERBADE N R R EHPTHE
ENAFEREBENBENRNEERE S
BN BERE  IEEMEBERIRE T
g BEYEARHUBENENZE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Investments listed in: FETHHE EMRERE :

Hong Kong BE 920 2,086

Capital management BEXERE
The primary objectives of the Group’s capital REBEREEBNTIEERARBEASHE

management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group complied with
the externally imposed capital requirements and there
was no indication of breach of covenants. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017.
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37. MEBRARFE

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows:

—NFF+ZA=+—H

ARREEWBAT ZHBENT

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued share/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the Principal
Name of subsidiary business capital Company activities
MR BRTROEE AT R
MEAR AR BRREEHE ERPVEN REBD FTEXEHK
Direct Indirect
HE 3%
Chinese Information Radio  United States US$100,000 - 100 Radio broadcasting

Job Market Publishing
Limited

SKEES HMRAR AR
Land Profit Development

Limited

Perfect Treasure
Investment Limited

BEHERARAT

Premier Printing Group
Limited

iRz RENBEEBR AT

Rayma Limited

Sing Tao (Canada) Limited

of America

e

Hong Kong
e

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
REBEZES /B

Hong Kong

e

Hong Kong
e

Hong Kong

&8

Canada

mE X

common stock
100,0003€ 7T
Rl

HK$2
ordinary shares
2B L E B

US$1
ordinary share
1ETTEBR

HK$100,000
ordinary shares
100,000/ 7T % 8 A%

HK$2
ordinary shares
2B L E B

HK$100
ordinary shares
10078 7T & 3B A

CA$1
common share
1hn T & A A

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

BEOERE

Newspaper publishing
WwEELT

Securities trading
and investment

Securities trading
and investment

Printing

Nl

Operation of
a website
Huh e

Investment holding
and property
holding agency

REEBRR
MERBRE

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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37.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

37. MEBRRFEE(GE)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued share/ Percentage of equity
registration and registered share attributable to the Principal
Name of subsidiary business capital Company activities
EMAL ERTROEE KRR PELS
Lo NI RCR B R A = i AR A REBDE FTEX®
Direct Indirect
HiE Gk
Sing Tao Limited HK$77,650,000 - 100 Newspaper publishing

EBERRAT

Sing Tao Magazine Group

Limited

EBMEERARQA

Sing Tao Publishing Limited

ESHRER AR

Sing Tao Newspapers Los

Angeles Ltd.

Sing Tao Newspapers New

York Ltd.

Sing Tao Newspapers
Pty. Limited

Sing Tao Newspapers San

Francisco Ltd.

Hong Kong
&8

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
KBRS/ BE

Hong Kong
B

United States
of America

XH

United States
of America

EqE

Australia

M

United States
of America

EH

ordinary shares
77,650,000 JT

US$1
ordinary share
1ETTEBRK

HK$133,332
ordinary shares
and HK$060,668

preference shares
133,3328 7L & B
66,6687 TT 18 5t 1%

US$100,000
common stock
100,000% 7T

US$5,550,000
common stock
5,550,0003 JT
T AR

AU$250,000
ordinary shares
250,0002 7T
Rl

US$2,335,000
common stock
2,335,0003 7T
TR

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

WEELT

Magazine publishing
and advertising
agency

MBBEOTRESARE

Book publishing
BT

Newspaper publishing
WEELT

Newspaper publishing
WEET

Newspaper publishing
WEET

Newspaper publishing
WwEELT
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37.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

N

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
business

EMME L
ERREE I

B 75 R 2R BT 5
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37. MBAREE(E)

Nominal value
of issued share/
registered share

capital
BRTROEE
= B A

Percentage of equity

Sing Tao (U.K. Ltd.”

IEREBEBKBRIM

RIER AR

REEE®RAHEE (L R)

EREETAA"

United Kingdom
£

People’s
Republic of China/
Mainland China

hEARAMES
hE A
People’s

Republic of China/
Mainland China

hEARAMES
hE A

GBP2,500,000
ordinary shares
2,500,000 5 £

RMB23,000,000
registered capital
A R #23,000,0007T
AL E A

RMB30,000,000
registered capital
A R #30,000,0007T
AL E A

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another

member firm of the Ernst & Young global network

attributable to the Principal
Company activities
AAEEAG
KREBDH FTEXEK
Direct Indirect
HiE & 3%
- 100 Newspaper publishing
HwEELT
- 100 Software development
;M
- 100 Distribution

of print-media
publications in
Mainland China
B A b 2 1T
[ e ED R q

WIEME B L KG AN BB K BB
RGN BB EE R

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Company’s directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed

ARAEERR  LRMIBTEZEARFE
RE IBRAEEEER RABEFEZ
TEHDARBMBAR - BEERR - B
JIRRBIMENBAR  REFBRITE -

a substantial portion of the net assets and/or liabilities

of the Group. To give details of all the Company’s

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018
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38.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. AR BEMRR T
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of EARNATIRNBRERARTBIRRAER ZER
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as T
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WERZRE 7,890 7,273
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR ZIEE 1,515,958 1,602,548
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 1,523,848 1,609,821
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, other receivables and TERTFRIE - HAh EURIE K&
other assets EMmEE 619 645
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTHE &% 5,933 5,448
Total current assets mEEEBE 6,552 6,093
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals Ho{th A BOE K B ET B 6,843 6,081
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) REBEE(AE)FE 291) 12
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BRABEB-EEAE 1,523,557 1,609,833
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY (RBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIENIEEE 1,871 1,665
Net assets BEFE 1,521,686 1,608,168
EQUITY % #E
Issued capital (note 27) BB 1T R A (P 5E27) 173,222 173,222
Reserves (note) i1 (B 31) 1,348,464 1,434,946
Total equity % #E 48 58 1,521,686 1,608,168

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018



Notes to Financial Statements
=+ A0
BT 75 ¥R I ot
31 December 2018 —F—/\F+=HA=+—H
38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. XATFPBMRRKE)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: logsan
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: ARATIEBEEMAT :
Share Contri- Asset Share
premium buted revaluation option Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
BEEf BRE
R 10 % B B BABH i ki REEA )
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FHET FET FET FHET
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+ 5
—A—H 25,442 502,941 3,068 12,292 52,333 596,676
Profit for the year AEEEN - - - - 895,524 895,524
Other comprehensive income FEEb2EME:
for the year:
Gain on property revaluation MEEGW S - - 1,771 - - 1,771
Income tax effect on property ~ WIEEH 2
revaluation mEhy 2 - - (443) - - (443)
Total comprehensive income FE2ENS
for the year B3 - - 1,328 - 895,524 896,852
Equity-settled share option REFERERE
arrangements 74 - - - 10,706 - 10,706
Transfer of share option reserve 128 U B iR 1
upon the forfeiture of share ERERE
options [ - - - (266) 260 -
Final 2016 dividend paid BRNZE—R4F
RHE B - - - - (34,644) (34,644)
Special 2016 dividend paid BRNZZ—RF
BB B - - - - (17,322) (17,322)
Interim 2017 dividend “E—tFHH
e - - - - (17,322) (17,322)
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. AATHBMRREK(E)
COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued) et (&)
Share Contri- Asset Share
premium buted revaluation option Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
BEEf BRE
I 10 B Bk BABH ki ki REEA G
HEK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HEK$°000 HK$000 HEK$°000

TET TET TET TET TET TET

At 31 December 2017 and RZT—tF
1 January 2018 +-/A=+-H
RZZT—-N\F
—A—H 25,442 502,941 4,996 22,732 878,835 1,434,946
Loss for year AEEER - - - - (4,802) (4,802)

Other comprehensive income FEAEMPERE
for the year:

Gain on property revaluation MEEG R - - 824 - - 824
Income tax effect on property ~ WIEERHZ
revaluation mERy 2 - - (200) - - (206)

Total comprehensive income/ EERENE/

(loss) for the year (B#B)R%E - - 618 - (4,802) (4,184)
Equity-settled share option BREEEE
arrangements R 5 - - - 4312 - 4,312

Transfer of share option reserve )% I B % # B
upon the forfeiture of share BEERE

options f# - - - (991) 991 -
Final 2017 dividend paid BRNZZ—+F
RER S - - - - (34,644) (34,644)
Special 2017 dividend paid BRA-FE—t4F
KRR B - - - - (34,644) (34,644)
Interim 2018 dividend “E-\FHREKRE - - - - (17,322) (17,322)
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZ-N\§
+=A=+-H 25,442 502,941 5,614 26,053 788,414 1,348,464
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38.

39.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents (i) the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1990,
prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor, amounting to approximately HK$104,950,000, and
(i) the credit of approximately HK$488,930,000 arising
from the reduction of the share premium account in
2003 less the distribution of approximately HK$18,181,000
in 2003 and the debits of HK$5,935,000, HK$1,073,000,
HK$34,307,000 and HK$31,443,000 arising from the
repurchase of shares during the years ended 31 December
2012, 2008, 2007 and 20006, respectively. Under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Company may make distributions to its members out of
the contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

The share option reserve of the Company comprises the
fair value of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy
for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2019.

38.

39.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2018 —ZF—/\F+=-H=+—H

RRB Y HAMR &K (E)

Kiet - (&)

RABZEBABBEOARR KRG LT ATR K
—NMNAFEEEHEFAKEZHRBRAR KRG
NFE BHARRARBZSER M MEITZR
MEEZ Z%  B149104,950,000/8 70 @ MGiHD=Z
T = F R AR 19 )% (8 BR BT = 4 2 49488,930,000
BILERBEZZTZT=F 9K 2 418,181,000/
TUERBE-ZT——F  _FTTNF - —ZTZ
+EREERE+_A=+—HILEEARNE
B8 [01 B 19 1 99 B8 255,935,000 7T~ 1,073,0007%8
TC * 34,307,00078 70 2 31,443,000/ 70 R A5
E-NAN—FRREEIER])  ARRAIES T
BRAT  UEARBBAKREIELDIK °

ARmBERRFEEEFCSREERRITEZE
etz AFfE - FRMERERM 245 BN
MAERZMNRZEHBR - EHBEREE
TE ReBRNEREIRNEER: 5HEE
P b B B St OR M - RIS BRI A o

R RN

BEEgN_T-NF=A-t/\BHIRLRE
TIEAPBHE
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Address

it 3t

Lot No.

R RS

Approx. gross

Use floor area
o 3]

B# [EREEIE
(square feet)

(FLIR)

Lease
expiry
ik
W

Group’s
interest
KEE
P&
%

%

Main occupants

IRUERE

(I) PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWNER OCCUPATION:

BIERRAZME:

Located in Hong Kong
I REE

1. Rooms 1401-02, 05-06, 14/F
Car Po Commercial Building,
No. 37-43 Pottinger Street, Central
IR
TR E 137-435%
REWMEAE
1411401-02 * 05-06%

2. 7 Chun Cheong Street,
Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate,
Tseung Kwan O
BER
BERIZD
% EMHTR

Located in Mainland China

17 73 B A

3. Unit 8E, Lan Yuan Mansion,
Beijing Jindao Garden,
No. 1 Xibahe Nan Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing,
Hebei Province
AtEdtrmEBE
7955 )7 P A 157,
tRe&ER
WA IESEE

4. Units 501 and 502,

The Spaces International Centre,
No. 8 Dongdagiao Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing
EtRTHEGR

RARB K%

fed 8 B A%

501% R502E

Inland Lot
No. 2
A 25

Lot No. 39
1 395

N/A
&R

N/A
TER

Commercial 3,330

EES

322,805

Industrial and
headquarters

T¥RBE

Residential 1,132
iE

Commercial 10,064

GES

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2018

100 2842

100 2047

100 2004

100 2052

Flash Bright Development
Limited

RRERBRAT

Sing Tao News
Corporation Limited

EBHNHEEERAR

Sing Tao News
Corporation Limited

EBHMHEERERAR

Sing Tao News
Corporation Limited

EEHHEEARRA



Schedule of Major Properties

31 December 2018

TEVEHRE

—E-NEF+=A=+—H

Approx. gross  Group’s Lease
Address Lot No. Use floor area  interest expiry Main occupants
#BE 15 AR
31t i B 4R 5 Rz RO FEER WEH FEEAE
(square feet) %
(FIR) %
(I) PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWNER OCCUPATION: (continued)
BEERZNE: (£)
Located in the United States of America
R EH
5. 215 Littlefield Avenue, Lot 7 Industrial 14,900 100 Freehold Sing Tao Newspapers San
South San Francisco Block 4 T¥% interest Francisco Ltd.
6. 188 Lafayette Street, New York Lot 40 Commercial 16,200 100 Freehold Sing Tao Newspapers
Block 473 BE interest New York Ltd.
KA R
7. 17059 Green Drive, City of Industry, Tract Industrial 03,500 100 Frechold Sing Tao Newspapers Los
Los Angeles No. 26265 T%¥ interest Angeles Ltd.
Lot 7 KARES
(II) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES:
RENE:
Located in Hong Kong
REE
1. Rooms 1305-06, 13/F, Inland Lot Commercial 1,632 100 2842 Independent third parties
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 HE (long term) BUE=J
No. 37-43 Pottinger Street, Central A Ex 255 (REH)
PR
TR 37-435
REAEAE
13181305-06 %
2. Rooms 1403-04, 14/F, Inland Lot Commercial 950 100 2842 Independent third parties
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 [EES (long term) BV E=7
No. 37-43 Pottinger Street, Central A R 25% (REH)
hiR
TR HE #3743
REAEAR
14181403-04F
Located in Canada
RMEX
3. 411-417 Dundas Street West, Part of lots 6 and Commercial 23,000 100 Freehold Sing Tao Newspapers
Toronto, Ontario 7 Plan D-116 [EES interest (Canada 1988) Limited
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Five Year Financial Summary

DFHHHE

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as

extracted from the published audited financial statements, is

set out below.

AEEBEREMBFEZLETHRESE EENA
BHE  HRHEEET

BRECUBRROT -

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-BA=+—BLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—B-NF —_T—+F —FT-—RF —T-RHF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FEIT FEIT FEIT FEIT
Revenue WA 1,431,704 1,511,864 1,608,966 1,862,998 1,982,181
Profit for the year from FECEER 2
continuing operations KEFE i 24,243 41,349 33,822 76,946 115,213
DISCONTINUED BERIEEEET
OPERATIONS
Loss for the year from a B #1F&& %K
discontinued operation ZARFEEIE - - - (14,666) (1,046)
Profit for the year R FE i 24,243 41,349 33,822 62,280 114,167
Attributable to: IATALTEAL:
Owners of the Company  ARAIEAF A 24,243 41,349 33,822 62,280 114,167
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+—H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F ZZT—+tF ZT—RF T—RHF ZZT—NF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FEIT FET FEIT
Total assets EERE 2,554,999 2,613,149 2,486,518 2,460,401 2,504,391
Total liabilities BE®E (418,703) (471,617) (413,255) (399,520) (448,409)
2,136,296 2,141,532 2,073,263 2,060,881 2,055,982

Annual Report 2018

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED



B2 SING TAO
B HisE

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED
E B ¥ HEK AR 2 7

Please scan QR Code on front cover to view the 80" anniversary video

EREHE LN ERUBEN\TEAFER



	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Major Events of the Year
	Major Awards of the Year
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Directors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Environmental, Social and Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to Financial Statements
	Schedule of Major Properties
	Five Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover

